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Financial Overview

Summary of Operations

(Dollars in millions, except per share data) 2011 2010
Revenues $  204.7 $ 144.6
Operating Income $ 139 $ 9.3
Operating Income, as Adjusted* $ 43.7 $ 21.7
Net Income $ 1454 $ 9.6
Operating Margin 7% 6%
Operating Margin, as Adjusted* 28% 20%
Per Share Data
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding — Basic (in thousands) 6,211 6,014
Earnings Per Share — Basic $ 17.98 $ 0.87
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding — Diluted (in thousands) 6,834 6,437
Earnings per Share — Diluted $ 16.34 $ 0.81
Assets Under Management (Dollars in millions)
Ending AUM $ 34,587.6 $ 29,473.3
By product (12/31/2011): By investment category (12/31/2011):
B Long-term Mutual Funds $16,896.6 B cquity $18,978.5
B Closed-End Funds 5,675.6 B Fixed Income 13,187.9
Money Market Funds 2,294.8 Cash Management 2,421.2
B Vvariable Insurance Funds 1,308.6 Total $34,587.6
B Separately Managed Accounts 3,933.8
B nstitutional Products 4,478.2
Total $34,587.6

* Certain supplemental performance measures are provided in addition to, but not as a substitute for, performance measures determined in accordance with
GAAP. These supplemental measures may not be comparable to non-GAAP performance measures of other companies. “Operating Income, as Adjusted”
and “Operating Margin, as Adjusted” are supplemental non-GAAP measures that net the distribution and administration expenses against the related
revenue and remove certain non-cash and other identified amounts. For our definition of these terms, as well as a reconciliation to GAAP measures, see
“Reconciliation of Revenues, Operating Expenses and Operating Income on a GAAP Basis to Revenues, Operating Fxpenses and Operating Income, as
Adjusted” in the Supplemental Financial Information, included as an attachment to this annual report after the Form 10-K.

This report may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 which, by their nature, are
subject to significant risks and uncertainties. Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. intends for these forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor
provisions of the federal securities laws relating to forward-looking statements. For a further discussion, see “Forward Looking Statements” on page 18 of the
attached Form 10-K.
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To Our Fellow Shareholders

In a year when the global economy — and investor
sentiment — was highly volatile, and generating
sales growth, positive net flows and increased
profitability was a challenge for the asset
management industry, Virtus Investment Partners
delivered in all of these areas.

Our financial and operating achievements in 2011
—combined with the important initiatives that we
completed during the year — demonstrate that we
are a company with the right strategy, products, and
operating capabilities to deliver on our commitments
to clients and shareholders.

In just three years as an independent public
company, we have built a foundation that has
allowed us to generate consistently higher sales,
positive flows, and earnings. We have differentiated
ourselves in a challenging and highly competitive
environment and are well positioned to sustain the
long-term growth and success of our business.

Business Strengths

Our achievements during the year were a direct
result of our ability to capitalize on four primary
business strengths:

> A broad range of investment capabilities;
> Solid relative investment performance;
> Effective distribution capabilities; and

> A focused, high-caliber workforce.

Investment Capabilities

Virtus offers a wide range of investment strategies
and products from boutique, institutional-quality
money managers. Our multi-style, multiple-manager
model allows us to offer financial advisors many of
the tools they require to help their clients construct
a portfolio that meets their diverse and evolving
needs throughout changing, and often challenging,
market cycles. With access to a number of distinct

and differentiated managers, we focus on offering
the best products for our clients, and during 2011,
we continued to actively manage and expand our
investment capabilities and introduce new products
to meet current and future investor needs.

The addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector Fixed
Income Strategies team under the leadership of
David L. Albrycht, its chief investment officer, was a
significant and beneficial expansion of our affiliated
investment capabilities. The team was an important
part of our organization for more than 18 years

prior to our becoming a public company, and their
return to Virtus provides us with additional growth
opportunities. The team has delivered consistently
strong relative performance for our clients,
particularly as the manager of the Virtus Multi-Sector
Short Term Bond Fund, our largest open-end mutual
fund and one that has been a leading performer

in its fixed income category. We combined the
multi-sector capabilities with existing fixed income
strategies to create Newfleet Asset Management, a
comprehensive fixed income investment affiliate with
$8 billion of assets under management at year-end.

The mid-year introduction of the Duff & Phelps
Global Utility Income Fund (DPG) was an important
product initiative that leveraged two of our core
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competencies: the investment management
capabilities of an affiliated manager and the
effectiveness of our distribution platform. DPG, a
closed-end fund that features the strong performing
and attractive utility and infrastructure investment
strategies of Duff & Phelps Investment Management
Co., launched with a $735 million IPO, one of the
largest closed-end fund offerings of the year. Duff &
Phelps Investment Management also co-manages,
with the Newfleet Multi-Sector Team, the Virtus
Total Return Fund (DCA), a closed-end fund that
we adopted at year-end. DCA demonstrates another
advantage of our multi-strategy, multi-manager
model: the ability to offer a multi-asset class strategy
that leverages the capabilities of two affiliated

managers. The DPG and DCA initiatives drove the 31
percent growth in our closed-end mutual fund assets
to $5.7 billion at the end of the year.

We also introduced three open-end mutual funds
and seeded several new investment strategies. The
new mutual funds, which expand the breadth and
depth of our product offerings and provide additional
options for advisors to utilize when constructing
portfolios for their clients, were the Virtus Global
Commodities Stock Fund, guided by the specialty
commodities manager, Coxe Advisors; and two
new AlphaSector™ funds, the Virtus Allocator
Premium AlphaSector Fund and the Virtus Global
Premium AlphaSector Fund. At year-end, our suite
of AlphaSector products had $3.4 billion of assets
under management.
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Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol VRTS. This chart compares the cumulative return on our common
stock from the opening trade of January 2, 2009, our first day of public trading, with the SGP 500 Index and a composite of publicly traded asset
management companies. The peer group index comprises the following companies: Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.; AllianceBernstein Holding L.P.;
BlackRock, Inc.; Calamos Asset Management, Inc.; Cohen & Steers, Inc.; Diamond Hill Investment Group, Inc.; Eaton Vance Corp.;

Epoch Holding Corp.; Federated Investors, Inc.; Franklin Resources, Inc.; GAMCO Investors, Inc.; Invesco Ltd.; Janus Capital Group, Inc.;

Legg Mason, Inc.; Pzena Investment Management, Inc.; T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.; U.S. Global Investors, Inc.;

Waddell & Reed Financial, Inc.; and Westwood Holdings Group, Inc.
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Investment Performance

Strong relative investment performance is an
important contributor to sustained sales success,
and in 2011, our investment managers delivered
solid investment performance in the major asset
classes and strategies that investors need to
structure and manage a well-diversified portfolio.

Eighteen of our Morningstar-rated mutual funds,
representing 85 percent of all fund assets, had

5 or 4 stars, and four of our funds, including the
Virtus Small-Cap Sustainable Growth Fund from
our affiliated manager, Kayne Anderson Rudnick,
ended the year at the top of their Lipper peer group
categories for one-year investment performance.
Our 5- and 4-star funds feature many of the
strategies that would be part of a well-diversified
portfolio, and include several of our best-selling
funds in 2011, such as the Virtus Multi-Sector Short
Term Bond Fund and the Virtus Emerging Markets
Opportunities Fund.*

This strong investment performance, which has been
essential to our recent sales success, is a benefit of
our quality investment management and a rigorous
product oversight process that sets high standards
for performance and ensures our products are
relevant, attractive and meet investor needs.

Effective Distribution

Strong performing investment capabilities in
attractive categories do not, by themselves,

assure success in this competitive environment.

Our effectiveness in raising and retaining assets is

a result of having broad and balanced distribution
access, an experienced, high-quality sales force, and
a well-defined and executed distribution strategy.

* Additional information regarding investment performance
ratings is included as an attachment to this annual report after
the Form 10-K.

We approach financial intermediaries with a
differentiated value proposition that features two
important elements. First, we provide one-point
access to a broad array of investment capabilities
and strategies from our boutique managers. We can
offer financial advisors a range of distinctive solutions
to meet the wide variety of their clients’ investment
needs. Second, we focus on partnering with advisors
to develop long-term, rather than transactional,
relationships. Our approach is to assist advisors

in attracting, placing, and retaining their clients’
assets and building strong, effective, and lasting
relationships with their clients.

The strength of our access to financial advisors

in the major retail channels, combined with our
broad product set and distinguished investment
performance, helped us generate consistent and
growing mutual fund sales and net flows throughout
the year. Our wholesaler productivity rate was
among the highest in the industry, and we reported
a significant increase in both the number of new
advisors selling our funds and those who are adding
multiple Virtus funds to their clients’ portfolios.

While much of our recent sales growth has been
generated through our efforts with national broker-
dealer and regional firms, we are also broadening
our relationships with other financial intermediaries.
The independent and registered investment advisor
(RIA) channels represent a growing percentage of
the intermediary market, and at the end of 2011,
we expanded our retail distribution team to focus
additional resources in those channels. This new
dedicated sales team comprises experienced sales
professionals who understand the specific needs of
independent brokers and RIAs, and their addition
will allow us to generate increased sales from a
growing channel while we remain fully focused on
national broker-dealer and regional firms.
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High-Caliber Workforce

Ours is a business that is fundamentally built on the
talent, commitment and focus of our employees.
That is demonstrated daily by the quality of the
investment teams who manage assets, the product
professionals who develop and monitor our offerings,
the sales and marketing staff who generate asset
flows, the service representatives who are on the
front lines of relationships with our clients, and the
business teams who support each of these functions.
We believe the caliber and dedication of

our workforce is an advantage in our highly
competitive industry.

Our effectiveness in attracting, retaining and aligning
our talent to support our ongoing growth objectives
was a critical aspect of delivering on our goals in
2011, and will continue to be vital in supporting the
growth engines of our business in 2012 and beyond.

All of us at Virtus consider it a distinct privilege to
manage our clients’ assets, and we take seriously
the responsibility of helping investors achieve their
financial goals. We are well-positioned to continue
our growth because of the quality and commitment
of our people.

Operating Results

By leveraging these business strengths in 2011,
we generated growth in the key financial metrics of
sales, net flows, revenue, and profitability:

> Sales of all investment products increased 93
percent to $11.2 billion from $5.8 billion in 2010,
following a 51 percent increase the prior year. The
Virtus Mutual Funds were the primary contributor
to the increase in total sales, as fund sales grew to
$9.5 billion, more than double the 2010 sales of
$4.5 billion.

> Strong investment performance, combined with
higher total sales, led to a third consecutive year of
positive net flows, with positive flows in both
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2012 BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

> Capture greater market share from
existing and new channels

> Maintain product quality and performance;
opportunistically expand investment
capabilities, strategies and product
structures

> Enhance and align business support
services to facilitate continued growth

> Optimize business model and capital
structure to best position for next phase
of growth

> Attract, retain and align talent to support
the business

equity and fixed income products. Net flows for
all products were $5.2 billion in 2011, compared
with $1.5 billion in 2010, representing an organic
growth rate of 18 percent in a year when the
industry generated low single-digit organic growth.

Revenues increased by 42 percent to $204.7
million from $144.6 million in 2010 as a result of
the increase in total assets under management,
the growing percentage of higher-fee equity assets,
and the higher percentage of assets managed by
affiliated managers. Assets under management
increased by 17 percent to $34.6 billion at year-
end. Long-term assets under management, which
exclude low-fee cash management products,
increased by 23 percent during 2011.



> The growth in our profitability reflected the
increases in our top-line results. Operating
income, as adjusted, which is the non-GAAP
performance measure that we believe best
illustrates the earnings of the company, was
$43.7 million with a margin of 28 percent in
2011, more than double the $21.7 million in
2010, which represented a 20 percent margin.
Operating income, the comparable GAAP
performance measure, was $13.9 million in
2011, compared with $9.3 million in 2010. Net
income was $145.4 million in 2011 or $16.34 per
share, compared with $9.6 million or $0.81 per
share, primarily reflecting a tax benefit of $132.0
million related to the release of a valuation
allowance on certain deferred tax assets.

> The financial markets took note of our
accomplishments as well, and in 2011, for the
second consecutive year, VRTS was the best-
performing public traditional asset manager, far
outpacing the average of our peer companies as
well as the S&P 500.

Capital Management

The achievement of our 2011 operating results and
key initiatives was supported by a comprehensive
capital management strategy that struck a balance
between investing in the growth of the business and
returning capital to our shareholders.

For the full year, we deployed a significant
percentage of our annual free cash flow in growth
initiatives and the return of capital to shareholders,
including the preferred dividend and common stock
repurchases. Initiatives such as the DPG closed-end
fund launch, the internalization of the Newfleet
Multi-Sector Team, and the DCA closed-end fund
adoption represented more than $18 million of
investments in growth opportunities.

We will continue to take a thoughtful approach to
capital management, with a strategic objective of
maintaining optimal flexibility to fund core business
activities, invest in future organic and inorganic
growth opportunities, and appropriately return
capital to our shareholders.

Positioning Ourselves for Further Growth

Our accomplishments in 2011 demonstrate the
value of our business model and operating strategy,
a focused, high-caliber workforce, and our key
strengths in product, distribution and investment
performance. We also have the insight and benefits
gained from building a growing business.

We are highly confident in the opportunities that
exist for us and optimistic about the future. As we
look forward, we benefit from a clear vision for the
company, focused strategic goals, and consistent
business objectives. Most importantly, we have
an unwavering commitment to the success of

our clients, because we know their success is
fundamental to our long-term growth

and profitability.

On behalf of the board, management team and
employees of Virtus Investment Partners, we thank
you for your support this year and we look forward
to delivering continued strong results for our clients
and you, our shareholders.
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George R. Aylward

President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Chairman,
Board of Directors
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Supplemental Financial Information

Schedule of Non-GAAP information
(Dollars in thousands)

The company reports its financial results on a Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

basis; however management believes that evaluating the company’s ongoing operating results may be
enhanced if investors have additional non-GAAP financial measures. Management reviews non-GAAP
financial measures to assess ongoing operations and considers them only to be additional metrics for
both management and investors to consider the company’s financial performance over time, as noted in
the footnotes below. Management does not advocate that investors consider such non-GAAP financial
measures in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial results prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Reconciliation of Revenues, Operating Expenses and
Operating Income on a GAAP Basis to Revenues,
Operating Expenses and Operating Income, as Adjusted

Twelve Months Ended

Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010
Revenues, GAAP basis $204,652 $144,556
Less:

Distribution and administration expenses 50,563 33,205
Newfleet transition related subadvisory fees! (1,057) -
Revenues, as adjusted’ $155,146 $111,351
Operating Expenses, GAAP Basis $190,749 $135,285

Less:
Distribution and administration expenses 50,563 33,205
Depreciation and amortization 5,865 6,929
Stock-based compensation 4,926 3,894
Restructuring and severance charges 2,008 1,635
Newfleet transition related operating expenses’ 5,152 -
Closed-end fund launch costs * 10,767 -
Operating Expenses, as adjusted’ $111,468 $89,622
Operating Income, as adjusted® $43,678 $21,729
Operating margin, GAAP basis 7% 6%
Operating margin, as adjusted® 28% 20%

(continued)



Supplemental Financial Information  (continueq)

Quarterly Reconciliation Three Months Ended

Dec 31,2011 Sep 30, 2011 June 30, 2011 Mar 31, 2011

Revenues, GAAP basis $56,172 $55,457 $48,902 $44,121

Less:

Distribution and administration expenses 13,482 13,637 12,367 11,077
Newfleet transition related subadvisory fees! - (37) (1,020) -

Revenues, as adjusted’ $42,690 $41,857 $37,555 $33,044

Operating Expenses, GAAP Basis $47,978 $57,650 $45,443 $39,678

Less:

Distribution and administration expenses 13,482 13,637 12,367 11,077
Depreciation and amortization 1,403 1,431 1,496 1,535
Stock-based compensation 1,336 1,162 1,587 841
Restructuring and severance charges 1,260 7 594 147

Newfleet transition related operating expenses’ 1,381 1,580 2,191 -
Closed-end fund launch costs® - 10,767 - -

Operating Expenses, as adjusted’ $29,116 $29,066 $27,208 $26,078

Operating Income, as adjusted® $13,574 $12,791 $10,347 $6,966

Operating margin, GAAP basis 15% (4)% 7% 10%
Operating margin, as adjusted® 32% 31% 28% 21%

1

o

Reflects 30 days of fees payable under the termination provisions of the subadvisory agreement with a former unaffiliated subadvisor of the
Multi-Sector assets. These subadvisory fees ended effective July 2, 2011. The company records its management fees net of fees paid to unaffiliated
subadvisors.

Revenues, as adjusted, is a non-GAAP financial measure calculated by netting distribution and administration expenses from GAAP revenues.
Management believes, Revenues, as adjusted, provides useful information to investors because distribution and administration expenses are costs
that are generally passed directly through to external parties. For the three months ended September 30, 2011, Virtus incurred $23.3 million of
distribution and administration expenses that included $9.6 million of structuring fees related to the closed-end fund launch. For the purposes
of calculating Revenues, as adjusted for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011,
structuring fees paid to third party distributors for the closed-end fund launch are excluded as they do not have a related revenue offset.

For the twelve months ended Dec. 31, 2011, Newfleet transition-related operating expenses consist of compensation expenses of $4.8 million and
certain legal and professional fees of $0.4 million incurred in conjunction with the addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector team. Compensation
expenses include $0.7 million of stock-based compensation.

Closed-end fund launch costs are comprised of structuring fees of $9.6 million payable to underwriters and sales-based incentive compensation of
$1.2 million.

Operating expenses, as adjusted, is a non-GAAP financial measure that management believes provides investors with additional information
because of the nature of the specific excluded operating expenses. Specifically, management adds back amortization attributable to acquisition-
related intangible assets as this may be useful to an investor to consider our operating results with the results of other asset management firms
that have not engaged in significant acquisitions. In addition, we add back restructuring and severance charges as we believe that operating
expenses exclusive of these costs will aid comparability of the information to prior reporting periods. We believe that because of the variety of
equity awards used by companies and the varying methodologies for determining stock-based compensation expense, excluding stock-based
compensation enhances the ability of management and investors to compare financial results over periods. Distribution and administrative
expenses are excluded for the reason set forth above.

Operating income, as adjusted, and operating margin, as adjusted, are calculated using the basis of revenues, as adjusted, and operating
expenses, as adjusted, as described above.

In the above release, we define “organic growth rate” as our annualized net sales divided by beginning long-term open-end mutual fund assets under
management.

The above measures should not be considered as substitutes for any measures derived in accordance with GAAP and may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures of other companies. Exclusion of items in our non-GAAP presentation should not be considered as an inference that these
items are unusual, infrequent or non-recurring.



Investment Performance

For the period ending December 31, 2011, 83%, 84% and 87% of assets eligible for Morningstar rating
had 5- or 4-star load-waived ratings for the 3-, 5-, and 10-year periods, respectively, based on risk adjusted
returns, of a total of 30, 28, and 22 funds, respectively. Had sales load been included, results would be
lower. For each fund with at least a three-year history, Morningstar calculates a Morningstar RatingTM
based on a Morningstar Risk-Adjusted Return measure that accounts for variation in a fund’s monthly
performance (including the affect of sales charges, loads, and redemption fees), placing more emphasis
on downward variation and rewarding consistent performance. The top 10% of funds in each category
receive 5 stars; the next 22.5% receive 4 stars; the next 35% receive 3 stars; the next 22.5% receive 2 stars;
and the bottom 10% receive 1 star. The Overall Morningstar RatingTM for a fund is derived from a
weighted average of performance figures associated with its 3-, 5- and 10-year (if applicable) Morningstar
Rating metrics. Different share classes bear different fees and expenses, which affect performance. Multi-
Sector Short Term Bond Fund Morningstar rating as of 2/29/12 (Stars/# of Funds in Short Term Bond
Category) Class A Overall: 5/352; 3 yr: 5/352; 5 yr: 5/325; 10 yr: 5/185. Load Waived Overall: 5/352; 3

yr: 5/352; 5 yr: 5/325; 10 yr: 5/185. Class | Overall: 5/352; 3 yr: 5/352; 5 yr: 5/325; 10 yr: 5/185. Emerging
Markets Opportunities Fund Morningstar rating as of 2/29/12 (Stars/# of Funds in Diversified Emerging
Markets Category) Class A Overall: 4/353; 3 yr: 3/353; 5 yr: 5/242; 10 yr: 4/148. Load Waived Overall:
5/353; 3 yr: 4/353; 5 yr 5/242; 10 yr: 5/148. Class I Overall: 5/353; 3 yr: 4/353; 5 yr: 5/242; 10 yr: 5/148.

Lipper, a wholly owned subsidiary of Reuters, provides independent insight on global collective
investments including mutual funds, retirement funds, hedge funds, fund fees and expenses to the
asset management and media communities. Lipper ranks the performance of mutual funds within a
classification of funds that have similar investment objectives. Rankings are historical with capital gains
and dividends reinvested and do not include the effect of loads. Funds not ranked by Lipper are not
included in the analysis. If sales loads were reflected, the rankings shown would be lower. If an expense
waiver was in effect, it may have had a material effect on the total return or yield for the period. Lipper
data does not constitute investment advice or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
security. Small-Cap Sustainable Growth Lipper Ranking as of 12/31/11 (Small Cap Growth Category)
Class A: 1 yr percentile rank: 1 (2/497 funds); 5 yr percentile rank: 30 (112/378 funds); 10 yr percentile
rank: NA. Class I Overall: 1 yr percentile rank: 1 (1/497 funds); 5 yr percentile rank: 28 (107/378 funds);
10 yr percentile rank: NA.

Performance data quoted represents past results. Past performance is no guarantee of future results

and current performance may be higher or lower than the performance shown. Investment return and
principal value will fluctuate so your shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their
original cost. Please visit Virtus.com for performance data current to the most recent month-end.
Please carefully consider the Fund’s investment objectives, risks, charges and expenses before
investing. For this and other information about any Virtus mutual fund, call 1-800-243-4361 or visit
Virtus.com for a prospectus. Read it carefully before you invest or send money. Distributed by VP
Distributors, LL.C, member FINRA and subsidiary of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.



Shareholder Information

Security Listing

The common stock of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. is traded on
the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “VRTS.”

Transfer Agent and Registrar

For information or assistance regarding your account, please contact
our transfer agent and registrar:

Virtus Investment Partners

c/o Computershare Investor Services
P.0. Box 43078

Providence, Rl 02940

Toll-free (within U.S.): 866-205-7273

TDD for hearing impaired: 800-231-5469
Foreign Shareowners: 413-775-6091

TDD for Foreign Shareowners: 201-680-6610

Web site: www.computershare.com/investor

E-mail: Virtus.Investment.Partners@virtus.com

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

All shareholders are invited to attend the annual meeting of Virtus
Investment Partners on Wednesday, May 16, 2012 at 10:30 a.m. EDT
at the Hilton Hartford Hotel, 315 Trumbull Street, Hartford, CT

For More Information

To receive additional information about Virtus Investment Partners
and access to other shareholder services, visit Investor Relations in
the “About Us” section of our Web site at www.virtus.com, or contact
us at:

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.
Investor Relations

100 Pearl Street

Hartford, CT 06103

Telephone: 800-248-7971 (Option 2)
Fax: 860-241-1113

E-mail: investor.relations@virtus.com

Affiliated Companies

Duff & Phelps Investment
Management Co.

200 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 500
Chicago, IL 60606
312-263-2610

Euclid Advisors LLC
900 Third Avenue
New York, NY 10022
800-272-2700

Kayne Anderson Rudnick
Investment Management, LLC
1800 Avenue of the Stars,
Second Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90067
800-231-7414

Newfleet Asset Management, LLC
100 Pearl Street

Hartford, CT 06103
860-263-4707

909 Montgomery Street, Suite 500
San Francisco, CA 94133
800-828-1212

Zweig Advisers LLC
900 Third Avenue
New York, NY 10022
800-272-2700

For more information on Virtus Mutual Funds or other products,

callyour financial representative orvisit our Web site at www.virtus.com
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None
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Act. [ ] Yes No
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PARTI

Item 1.  Business.
Organization

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. commenced operations on November 1, 1995 through a reverse merger with
Duff & Phelps Corporation. From 1995 to 2001, we were a majority-owned indirect subsidiary of The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. (“PNX"). On January 11, 2001, a subsidiary of PNX acquired the outstanding shares of the
Company not already owned and the Company became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX. On
October 31, 2008, after the sale of convertible preferred stock to a subsidiary of the Bank of Montreal (“BMO”)
we became an indirect, majority-owned subsidiary of PNX. On December 31, 2008, PNX distributed 100% of
Virtus common stock to PNX stockholders in a spin-off transaction, excluding the net assets and business of the
Company’s former subsidiary, Goodwin Capital Advisers, Inc. (“Goodwin”), which had historically been a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Following the spin-off, BMO owned 100% of the Company’s
outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B”"). All of the outstanding Series B was
converted to shares of Virtus common stock on January 6, 2012. As a result of the conversion, all of the preferred
shares have been retired.

Our Business

We are a provider of investment management products and services to individuals and institutions. We
operate a multi-manager investment management business, comprised of affiliated managers and unaffiliated
sub-advisors, each having its own distinct investment style, autonomous investment process and brand. We
believe our customers value this approach and appreciate individual managers with distinctive cultures and
styles.

We provide our products in a number of forms and through multiple distribution channels. Our retail
products include open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds, variable insurance funds and separately managed
accounts. Our fund family of open-end funds is distributed primarily through intermediaries. Our closed-end
funds trade on the New York Stock Exchange. Our variable insurance funds are available as investment options
in variable annuities and life insurance products distributed by third-party life insurance companies. Retail
separately managed accounts are comprised of intermediary programs, sponsored and distributed by unaffiliated
brokerage firms, and private client accounts, which are offerings to the high net-worth clients of our affiliated
managers. We also manage institutional accounts for corporations, multi-employer retirement funds, public
employee retirement systems, foundations and endowments and special purpose funds. Our earnings are
primarily driven by asset-based investment management fees charged on these various products. These fees are
based on a percentage of assets under management (“AUM?”) and are calculated using daily or weekly average
assets or assets at the end of the preceding quarter.

Our Investment Managers

Our investment management services are provided by investment managers, who are registered investment
advisors under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Advisers Act”). The
investment managers are responsible for portfolio management activities for our mutual funds, variable insurance
funds and closed-end funds, and provide investment management services for institutional and separately
managed accounts. Our investment management services are provided by our affiliated managers as well as by
unaffiliated external managers through sub-advisory agreements. We provide our affiliated managers with
distribution, operational and administrative support, thereby allowing each affiliated manager to focus on
investment management. Our affiliated managers participate in the earnings they generate through compensation
arrangements that include incentive bonus pools based primarily on their profits. For certain of our open-end
mutual funds and variable insurance funds, we complement our affiliated managers’ skills with those of
unaffiliated boutique sub-advisors who offer strategies that we believe also appeal to investors. At December 31,
2011, $10.9 billion or 31.4% of our assets under management were managed by unaffiliated sub-advisors. We
monitor the quality of the managers’ products by assessing their performance, style, consistency and the
discipline with which they apply their investment process.
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Our affiliated firms and their respective assets under management, styles and products are as follows:

Affiliated Managers
Duff & Phelps Kayne
Investment Newfleet Anderson Rudnick Zweig/Euclid
Management Asset Management Investment Management Advisors
AUM at
December 31, 2011
($ in billions) $8.6 $8.0 $5.4 $1.7
Location Chicago, IL Hartford, CT and Los Angeles, CA New York, NY
San Francisco, CA
Investment Style Quality-oriented, Multi-sector, Quality at a Growth at a
equity income; value-driven reasonable price reasonable price,
high quality fixed fixed income high quality
income fixed income
Investment Types
Equities * REITs Small Cap: Core/ Large Cap Core
 Utilities/ Growth/Value Tactical Asset
Infrastructure Mid Cap Core Allocation
* Passive Equity Small-Mid Cap:
Core/Value
Large Cap:
Core/Growth/Value
Fixed Income e Tax Advantaged Multi-sector California U.S. Government
* High Grade Core Core Municipals grade agencies
* Municpals Core Plus Intermediate Investment grade
Bank Loans Total Return & corporates
High Yield Government
Municipals

Products
Open-End Funds
Closed-End Funds
Variables Insurance Funds

Separately Managed
Accounts

Institutional

AN

AN

AN



Our Investment Products

Our assets under management are comprised of mutual fund assets (open- and closed-end), variable
insurance funds, separately managed accounts (intermediary sponsored and private client) and institutional
accounts (traditional institutional mandates and structured products).

Assets Under Management By Product as of December 31, 2011

($ in billions)

Retail Products
Mutual fund assets

Long term open-end funds . ....... ... ... .. $16.9

Closed-end funds .. ....... ...t e 5.7

Money market funds . .. ... 2.3
Total mutual fund assets . .. ... ...t 24.9
Variable Insurance Funds . .......... ... ... ... 1.3
Separately managed accounts

Intermediary sponsored programs . ................iiiiiiiinian.. 2.0

Private client acCoUnts . . .........tt ittt e e 1.9
Total managed account @SSELS . .. ..ottt vttt e 39
Total retail assets ............... .. .. . . . i 30.1
Institutional Products

Institutional aCCOUNTS . . . ..ttt ettt e 3.5

Structured finance products .. .......... .. 1.0
Total institutional assets ............. ... ... ... ... .. 4.5
Total AUM . ... . $34.6

Open-End Mutual Funds

As of December 31, 2011, we managed 43 open-end funds, in a variety of equity and fixed income styles,
including money market, asset allocation and alternative investments, with total assets of $19.2 billion.

Our equity fund offerings encompass a number of market caps and investment styles, including large-, mid-
and small-cap funds offered in value, core and growth styles, and including international, global, emerging
market and sector-specific funds. Our fixed income fund offerings cover a broad range of fixed income asset
classes, including core, multi-sector, tax-exempt and high yield. We also offer individual money market funds
focused on corporate, tax-exempt and government securities.



Our family of open-end mutual funds as of December 31, 2011 is comprised of the following:

Fund Type/Name

Alternatives

Virtus Real Estate Securities Fund . ........................
Virtus Global Infrastructure Fund .........................
Virtus Alternatives Diversifier Fund (3) ....................
Virtus Market Neutral Fund ... ...........................
Virtus Global Commodities Stock Fund ....................

Virtus International Real

Estate Securities Fund ..............

Virtus Global Real Estate Securities Fund .. .................

Asset Allocation
Virtus Balanced Fund . .

Virtus Tactical Allocation Fund . . .........................
Virtus Allocator Premium AlphaSector™ Fund (3) ...........
Virtus Balanced AllocationFund .. ........................

Equity

Virtus Premium AlphaSector™ Fund (3) ...................
Virtus AlphaSector™ Rotation Fund (3) ....................
Virtus Strategic Growth Fund . ....... ... ... ... ... .. ...,
Virtus Mid-Cap ValueFund . ......... .. ... ... ... ... ...
Virtus Quality Small-CapFund ............ .. ... .. ... ...
Virtus Small-Cap Core Fund .............................
Virtus Value Equity Fund ....... . ... ... ... ... ... ....
Virtus Small-Cap Sustainable Growth Fund .................
Virtus Growth & Income Fund . ........... .. ... .. ... ...
Virtus Mid-Cap Growth Fund . ............ .. ... .. ... ...

Virtus Core Equity Fund

Virtus Quality Large-Cap Value Fund .. ....................
Virtus Mid-Cap Core Fund ........... .. ... .. ... ... ...

Fixed Income

Virtus Multi-Sector Short Term Bond Fund .................
Virtus Senior Floating Rate Fund .........................
Virtus Multi-Sector Fixed Income Fund ....................
Virtus Tax-Exempt Bond Fund .............. ... .. ... ...

Virtus Bond Fund . . . ..

Virtus Short/Intermediate Bond Fund ......................

Virtus High Yield Fund

Virtus CA Tax-Exempt Bond Fund .................. ... ...
Virtus High Yield Income Fund . . .......... .. ... .. ... ...

International/Global

Virtus Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund . ..............
Virtus Foreign Opportunities Fund . ................. ... ...
Virtus Global Opportunities Fund .........................
Virtus Global Premium AlphaSector™ Fund (3) .............
Virtus International Equity Fund . ...................... ...
Virtus Greater Asia ex Japan Opportunities Fund .............

Virtus Greater European
Money Market Funds

Opportunities Fund ............. ...

Virtus Insight Government Money Market Fund .............
Virtus Insight Money Market Fund .................. ... ...
Virtus Insight Tax-Exempt Money Market Fund .............

Total Open-End Funds

Advisory 3-Year
Inception Assets Fee (1) Return (2)
($ in millions) (%) (%)
1995 $ 1,113.3  0.75-0.65 21.42
2004 70.6  0.65-0.55 11.86
2005 54.9 n/a 9.15
1998 28.6  1.50-1.40 n/a
2011 20.2  1.00-0.90 n/a
2007 20.2  1.00-0.90 14.03
2009 6.7 0.85-0.75 n/a
1975 578.8 0.55-0.45 11.87
1940 179.8  0.70-0.60 11.16
2011 131.0  1.10-1.00 n/a
1997 72.3  0.50-0.45 11.56
2010 2,658.2 1.10 n/a
2003 441.1  0.45-0.40 12.74
1995 375.2  0.70-0.60 15.01
1997 3394  0.75-0.70 19.03
2006 284.9 0.70 17.70
1996 173.6 0.75 20.05
1996 129.3  0.70-0.65 10.70
2006 105.1  0.90-0.80 21.91
1997 104.5 0.75-0.65 10.98
1975 78.1  0.80-0.70 17.81
1996 74.6  0.70-0.65 11.23
2005 427  0.75-0.65 12.12
2009 2.1  0.80-0.70 n/a
1992 4,669.4  0.55-0.45 13.84
2008 390.1 0.60-0.50 14.99
1989 271.8 0.55-0.45 18.49
1996 229.3 0.45 10.20
1996 158.0 0.45-0.40 8.91
1996 94.3  0.55-0.45 7.78
1980 92.6 0.65-0.55 15.04
1983 574 0.45-0.35 7.83
2002 54.1 0.45 16.29
1997 2,611.9 1.00-0.95 22.71
1990 1,013.5 0.85-0.75 11.62
1960 68.8  0.85-0.75 12.68
2011 66.7 1.10-1.00 n/a
2010 18.6  0.85-0.75 n/a
2009 9.4 1.00-0.95 n/a
2009 5.4  0.85-0.80 n/a
1988 1,422.3  0.14-0.10 0.12
1988 693.2 0.14-0.10 0.28
1988 179.4  0.14-0.10 0.04
$19,191.4
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Percentage of average daily net assets of each fund. A range indicates that the fund has breakpoints at which
management advisory fees decrease as assets in the funds increase. Percentage listed represents the range of
gross management advisory fees paid by the funds, from the highest to the lowest. We pay sub-advisory fees
on funds managed by unaffiliated advisors, which are not reflected in the percentages listed.

Represents average annual total return performance of the largest share class as measured by net assets for
which performance data is available.

These funds invest in other Virtus open-end mutual funds as well as electronically traded funds. The related
assets invested in other Virtus open-end funds are reflected only in the balances of the respective funds.

Past performance does not guarantee future results. Investment return and principal value will fluctuate so

that shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost.

Closed-End Funds

We managed the assets of seven closed-end funds as of December 31, 2011, each of which is traded on the

New York Stock Exchange, with total assets of $5.7 billion. Closed-end funds do not continually offer to sell and
redeem their shares; rather, daily liquidity is provided by the ability to trade the shares of these funds at prices
that may be above or below the shares’ net asset value. Our closed-end funds are comprised of various fixed
income and equity strategies provided by three of our affiliated managers.

)]
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Our family of closed-end funds as of December 31, 2011, is comprised of the following:

Advisory
Fund Type/Name Assets Fee
($ in billions) %
Balanced
DNP Select Income Fund Inc. . ............... $3.1 0.60-0.50 (1)
Zweig Total Return ........................ 0.5 0.70 (2)
Virtus Total Return Fund . .................. 0.1 0.85(2)
Equity
Duff & Phelps Global Utility Income Fund
Inc. ... 1.0 1.00 (3)
ZweigFund ....... .. .. . il 0.3 0.85(2)
Fixed
Duff & Phelps Utility and Corporate Bond Trust
Inc. ... 0.5 0.50 (1)
DTF Tax-Free IncomeInc. .................. 0.2 0.50 (1)
Total Closed-End Funds ................... $5.7

Percentage of average weekly net assets. A range indicates that the fund has breakpoints at which
management advisory fees decrease as assets in the fund increase. Percentage listed represents the range of
gross management advisory fees paid by the funds, from the highest to the lowest.

Percentage of average daily net assets of each fund.

Percentage of average weekly net assets. The adviser has contractually agreed to reimburse the fund for
certain expenses for a specified percentage ranging from 0.25% in the first year and gradually decreasing to
zero after the sixth year, which is not reflected in the percentage listed.



Variable Insurance Trust

We established a Variable Insurance Trust (“VIT”) in the quarter ended December 31, 2010. On
November 5, 2010, we acquired the rights to advise and distribute the former Phoenix Edge Series Funds
(excluding certain of the funds to be merged into a third-party variable insurance trust) from Phoenix Variable
Advisors, Inc. (“PVA”). Our variable insurance trust provides investment options in variable annuities and life
insurance products distributed by third-party life insurance companies. Our family of variable insurance funds as
of December 31, 2011, is comprised of the following:

Advisory
Fund Type/Name Assets Fee (1)
(8 in billions) %

Equity

Virtus Capital Growth Series ................. $0.2 0.70-0.60

Virtus Growth and Income Series ............. 0.2 0.70-0.60

Virtus Small-Cap Growth Series .............. 0.1 0.85

Virtus International Series ................... 0.3 0.75-0.65

Virtus Duff & Phelps Real Estate Series ........ 0.1 0.75-0.65

Virtus Small-Cap Value Series ............... 0.1 0.90
Fixed Income

Virtus Multi-Sector Fixed Income Series ....... 0.2 0.50-0.40
Asset Allocation

Virtus Strategic Allocation Series ............. 0.1 0.60-0.50

Total Variable Products Funds $1.3

(1) Percentage of average daily net assets of each fund. A range indicates that the fund has breakpoints at which
management advisory fees decrease as assets in the fund increase. Percentage listed represents the range of
gross management advisory fees paid by the funds, from the highest to the lowest. We pay sub-advisory fees
on funds managed by unaffiliated sub-advisors which are not reflected in the percentages listed.

Separately Managed Accounts

Separately managed accounts are individually owned portfolios that are managed by an investment
manager. Separately managed accounts include broker-dealer sponsored programs, whereby an intermediary
assists individuals in identifying their investment objectives and hires investment managers that have been
approved by the broker-dealer to fulfill those objectives; and private client accounts that are accounts of high net
worth individuals who are direct clients of our affiliates. Intermediary sponsored programs and private client
account assets totaled $3.9 billion at December 31, 2011.

Institutional Accounts

We offer a variety of equity, fixed income and real estate investment trust strategies to institutional clients,
including corporations, multi-employer retirement funds, public employee retirement systems, foundations and
endowments and special purpose funds. We also act as the collateral manager for structured finance products,
such as collateralized loan obligations and collateralized bond obligations, collectively referred to as
collateralized debt obligations (“CDQs”). Our institutional assets under management totaled $4.5 billion as of
December 31, 2011.



Our Investment Management, Administration and Transfer Agent Fees

Our net investment management fees, administration fees and net transfer agent fees earned in each of the
last three years were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Investment management fees
Open-endfunds ................................... $ 68,831 $ 42,090 $31,377
Closed-end funds ............ ... . ... . ... ... . ....... 26,345 22,131 20,766
Separately managed accounts . .. ............. ... 19,166 17,057 14,800
Institutional products .. .......... ... .. .. ... 11,273 10,299 10,224
Structured finance products . ............ .. .. .. .. ... 3,323 4,581 2,484
Variable insurance funds . ........... ... . ... ... ... ... 6,125 1,838 —
Total investment management fees ................ 135,063 97,996 79,651
Administration fees .. ......... . . 16,695 10,502 9,819
Transferagentfees .......... ... .. ... 7,183 4,822 2,845
Total . ... . $158,941  $113,320  $92,315

Investment Management Fees

We provide investment management services to funds and accounts pursuant to investment management
agreements. With respect to open-end funds, closed-end funds and variable insurance funds, we receive fees
based on each fund’s average daily or weekly net assets. Most fee schedules provide for rate declines as asset
levels increase to certain thresholds. For those funds for which we have sub-advisory agreements, the
sub-advisors receive a management fee based on the percentage of average daily net assets in the funds they
sub-advise. For separately managed accounts and institutional accounts, fees are negotiated and are based
primarily on asset size, portfolio complexity and individual client requests.

Each of our sponsored open-end, closed-end and variable insurance funds has an investment management
agreement with one of the Company’s advisors (each, an “Adviser”). Although specific terms of agreements
vary, the basic terms are similar. Pursuant to the agreements, the Adviser provides overall management services
to a fund, subject to supervision by the fund’s board of directors. The investment management agreements are
approved initially by fund shareholders and must be approved annually by each fund’s board of directors,
including a majority of the directors who are not “interested persons” of the Adviser. Generally, agreements may
be terminated by either party upon written notice, and may terminate automatically in certain situations, such as a
“change in control” of the Adviser. In arrangements where our funds are managed by a sub-advisor, the
agreement calls for the sub-advisor to manage the day-to-day operations of the fund’s portfolio.

Each fund bears all expenses associated with its operations, including the costs associated with the issuance
and redemption of securities, where applicable. The funds do not bear compensation expenses of directors or
officers of the fund who are employed by the Company or its subsidiaries. In some cases, to the extent total
expenses exceed a specified percentage of a fund’s or a portfolio’s average net assets for a given year, the
Adviser has agreed to reimburse the funds for such excess expenses.

We act as the collateral manager for structured finance products, which include CDOs. Fees consist of both
senior and subordinated management fees. Senior management fees are calculated at a contractual fee rate
applied against the current par value of the total collateral being managed. Subordinated management fees, also
calculated against the current par value of the total collateral being managed, are recognized only after certain
portfolio criteria are met. The underlying collateral is primarily comprised of high yield, asset-backed and
mortgage-backed securities and loans. The Company has no financial or operational obligations with respect to
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the underlying performance of the collateral. For the investment management services being provided for
existing structured finance products, this revenue will decline over time as CDOs have finite lives and can
experience redemptions and liquidations. Structured finance product assets under management totaled $1.0
billion at December 31, 2011.

Administration Fees

We provide fund administration services to our open-end funds, variable insurance funds and certain of the
closed-end funds. Administrative services include recordkeeping, preparing and filing documents required to
comply with federal and state securities laws, legal administration and compliance services, supervising the
activities of the funds’ other service providers, providing assistance with fund shareholder meetings, as well as
providing office space, equipment and personnel that may be necessary for managing and administering the
business affairs of the funds.

Transfer Agent Fees

We provide transfer agent services to our open-end funds and certain of the closed-end funds. Transfer agent
services include maintaining shareholder accounts; receiving and processing orders for purchases, exchanges and
redemptions of fund shares; conveying payments; withholding taxes on shareholder accounts; preparing and
filing required forms for dividends and distributions; preparing and mailing transaction confirmation and periodic
statements; and providing shareholder account information. We delegate the performance of certain aspects of
the transfer agent services to a third-party service provider and oversee their performance.

Our Distribution Services

Our principal means of distribution of our long-term open-end mutual funds and separately managed
accounts is through financial intermediaries to individuals. We have broad access in this marketplace, with
distribution partners that include national and regional broker-dealers, independent broker-dealers and
independent financial advisory firms. We support these distribution partners with a team of regional sales
professionals (“wholesalers”), a national account relationship group, an internal sales desk and separate teams for
the retirement market and the registered investment advisor market. Our sales and marketing professionals serve
as a resource to financial advisors seeking to help clients address wealth management issues and support the
marketing of our products and services tailored to this marketplace.

We also have separate resources dedicated to serving high net-worth clients who access investment advice
outside of traditional retail broker-dealer channels. Specialized teams at our affiliated managers develop
relationships in this market and deal directly with these clients.

Our institutional distribution strategy combines both a coordinated and affiliate-centric model. Our product
specialists, who are part of the portfolio management teams at our affiliated managers, team with sales
generalists and consultant relationship personnel, representing all of our investment strategies. Through
relationships with consultants, they target key market segments, including foundations and endowments,
corporate, public and private pension plans.

Our Broker-Dealer Services

VP Distributors, LLC (“VPD”), a broker-dealer registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), serves as principal underwriter and national wholesale distributor of our
open-end mutual funds and managed accounts. Mutual fund shares are distributed by VPD under sales
agreements with unaffiliated national and regional broker-dealers and financial institutions. VPD also markets
advisory services of affiliated managers to sponsors of managed account programs.
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Our Competition

We face significant competition from a wide variety of financial institutions, including other investment
management companies, as well as from proprietary products offered by our distribution partners such as banks,
broker-dealers and financial planning firms. Competition in our businesses is based on several factors including
investment performance, access to distribution channels, service to advisors and their clients and fees charged.
Our competitors, many of which are larger than we are, often offer similar products, use similar distribution
sources, offer less expensive products, have greater access to key distribution channels and have greater
resources than we do.

Our Regulatory Matters

We are subject to regulation by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and other federal and state agencies and self-regulatory organizations. Each
advisor, including unaffiliated sub-advisors, is registered with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act. Each
closed-end mutual fund, open-end mutual fund, and each series of the variable insurance trust is registered with
the SEC under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “Investment Company Act”). VPD is registered with
the SEC under the Exchange Act and is a member of FINRA.

The financial services industry is highly regulated and failure to comply with related laws and regulations
can result in the revocation of registrations, the imposition of censures or fines, and the suspension or expulsion
of a firm and/or its employees from the industry. All of our open-end mutual funds are currently available for
sale and are qualified in all 50 states, Washington, D.C., Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. Most aspects of
our investment management business, including the business of the sub-advisors, are subject to various federal
and state laws and regulations.

Our officers, directors, and employees may, from time to time, own securities that are also held by one or
more of our funds. Our internal policies with respect to personal investments are established pursuant to the
provisions of the Investment Company Act and/or the Investment Advisers Act. Employees, officers and
directors who, in the function of their responsibilities, meet the requirements of the Investment Company Act or
Investment Advisers Act, or of FINRA regulations, must disclose personal securities holdings and trading
activity. Those employees, officers and directors with investment discretion or access to investment decisions are
subject to additional restrictions with respect to the pre-clearance of the purchase or sale of securities over which
they have investment discretion or beneficial interest. Other restrictions are imposed upon supervised persons
with respect to personal transactions in securities held, recently sold or contemplated for purchase by the
Company’s open-end and closed-end funds. All supervised persons are required to report holdings and
transactions on an annual and quarterly basis pursuant to the provisions of the Investment Company Act and
Investment Advisers Act. In addition, certain transactions are restricted so as to seek to avoid the possibility of
improper use of information relating to the management of client accounts.

Our Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 299 full time equivalent employees. None of our employees is a union
member. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Relationship with BMO

Pursuant to an Investment and Contribution Agreement dated as of October 30, 2008 (the “Investment
Agreement”), Phoenix Investment Management Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX (“PIM”), sold
BMO 9,783 shares of our Series A Preferred Stock on October 31, 2008 and in connection with the spin-off of
the Company, on December 31, 2008, BMO and PIM exchanged the Series A Preferred Stock for an equal
number of shares of our Series B. PIM then sold an additional 35,217 shares of our Series B to BMO for $35.0
million.
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On August 6, 2010, the Company converted the original 9,783 shares of the Series B, and related dividends,
into 378,446 shares of our common stock, pursuant to a call option in the Investment Agreement. As of
December 31, 2011, BMO held the remaining 35,217 shares of our Series B. On October 27, 2011, the Company
entered into an agreement with BMO to convert all 35,217 outstanding shares of Series B into 1,349,300 shares
of common stock. In connection with this agreement, the Company made a special dividend payment of $8.1
million on October 31, 2011, which included accrued dividends of $0.9 million. The Series B was converted to
common shares on January 6, 2012. As a result of the conversion, all of the shares of Series B have been retired
and BMO’s right to elect one director to our board of directors pursuant to the Series B Certificate of
Designations has ceased and the current Series B director resigned effective October 31, 2011. In addition, as a
condition of the Investment Agreement, BMO has the right to nominate one director to our board of directors for
election by our common shareholders, so long as it beneficially owns at least 10.0% of our common stock.

For additional information on BMO’s rights under the Investment Agreement and Series B Certificate of
Designations, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.”

Available Information

The Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and all amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act
will be available free of charge on the Company’s website located at www.virtus.com as soon as reasonably
practicable after they are filed with or furnished to the SEC. You may also read and copy any document we file at
the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call 1-800-SEC-0330
for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room. Reports, proxy statements and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, including our filings, are also available to the
public on the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov.

A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Principles, its Code of Conduct, and the charters of the
Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Governance Committee are posted on the Company’s
website, www.virtus.com, under “Investor Relations,” and are available in print to any person who requests
copies by contacting Investor Relations by email to: investor.relations @virtus.com or by mail to Virtus
Investment Partners, Inc., c/o Investor Relations, 100 Pearl Street, Hartford, CT 06103. Information contained on
the website is not incorporated by reference or otherwise considered part of this document.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other information included
in this Annual Report, in evaluating the Company and our common stock. If any of the risks described below
actually occurs, our business, results of operations, financial condition and stock price could be materially
adversely affected.

Assets under management are impacted by market conditions, and adverse market conditions could reduce
our assets under management and our revenue.

Our revenues are based on assets under management, which are directly correlated to domestic and global
market conditions in the equity and credit markets. The value of assets under management can decline due to
price declines in specific securities, in the securities markets generally, or in specific market segments or
geographic areas where those assets are invested. If our revenues decline without a commensurate reduction in
our expenses, our net income will be reduced.

The economic environment has a direct impact on the investing activities of both retail and institutional
investors, which could impact asset flows, and on the value of assets under management. The financial markets
continue to experience significant volatility globally. Funds and portfolios that we manage related to certain
geographic markets and industry sectors are also vulnerable to political, social and economic events. If the
security markets decline or continue to experience volatility, this could have a negative impact on our assets
under management and our revenues.

Increases in interest rates from their present, historically low levels also may adversely affect the net asset
values of our assets under management. Increases in interest rates may result in reduced prices in equity and
credit markets. Conversely, decreases in interest rates could lead to outflows in fixed income or liquidity assets
that we manage as investors seek higher yields. Any of these effects could lower our assets under management
and revenues. The current historically low interest rate environment affects the yields of money market funds,
which are based on the income from the underlying securities less the operating costs of the funds. With short
term interest rates at or near zero, the operating expenses of money market funds may become greater than the
income from the underlying securities.

Poor relative investment performance of our products could adversely affect our assets under management,
sales, revenues and earnings.

The performance of our investment strategies is critical to the maintenance and growth of assets under
management. Net flows related to our investment strategies can be affected by investment performance relative
to other competing investment strategies. Investment management strategies are rated, ranked or assessed by
independent third-parties, distribution partners, and industry periodicals and services. These assessments often
affect the investment decisions of our clients. If the performance or assessment of our investment strategies is
seen as underperforming relative to peers, it could result in an increase in the withdrawal of assets by existing
clients, the inability to attract additional investments from existing and new clients, and an increased risk of
litigation and regulatory action. Lower assets under management would result in a reduction of fee revenue, and,
if our revenues decline without a commensurate reduction in our expenses, our earnings will be reduced.

Our clients could terminate or amend their contracts with us on short notice, which could reduce our
revenues and earnings.

Our clients include the boards of directors for our sponsored mutual funds, managed account program
sponsors, private clients, and institutional clients. Our investment management agreements with these clients may
be terminated upon short notice without penalty. As a result, there would be little impediment to these sponsors
or clients terminating our agreements. Investment contracts are generally terminated for factors including
investment performance or regulatory or compliance issues.
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Our sponsored funds are governed by an independent board of directors. These directors may deem it to be
in the best interests of a fund’s shareholders to make decisions adverse to us, such as reducing the compensation
paid to us, requesting that we subsidize fund expenses over certain thresholds, or imposing restrictions on our
management of the fund.

Under the Investment Company Act, the investment advisory agreements for our mutual funds
automatically terminate in the event of an assignment, which may occur if, among other events, the Company
undergoes a change in control, such as any person acquiring 25% voting rights of our common stock. If an
assignment were to occur, we could continue to act as adviser to a fund only if that fund’s board of directors and
stockholders approved a new investment advisory agreement. In addition, investment advisory agreements for
the separate accounts we manage may not be assigned without the consent of the client. If an assignment occurs,
we cannot be certain that the Company will be able to obtain the necessary fund approvals or the necessary
consents from our clients.

The termination of any investment management contract relating to a material portion of assets under
management would adversely affect our investment management fee revenues and earnings and could require an
impairment charge to the goodwill or intangible assets associated with our asset managers or investment advisory
agreements.

Any damage to our reputation could harm our business and lead to a loss of assets under management,
revenues and income.

Maintaining a strong reputation with the investment community is critical to our success. Our reputation is
vulnerable to many threats that can be difficult or impossible to control, and costly or impossible to remediate
even if they are without merit or satisfactorily addressed. Any damage to our reputation could impede our ability
to attract and retain clients and key personnel, and lead to a reduction in the amount of our assets under
management, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our revenues and income.

We may be required to, or elect to, support the stable net asset values of our money market funds, which
could negatively affect our revenues or earnings.

Approximately $2.3 billion or 6.6% of our total assets under management is managed in money market
funds. Although money market funds seek to preserve a stable net asset value, and our money market funds have
always maintained this stable net asset value, there is no guarantee that this stable net asset value will be
achieved in the future. Market conditions domestically and globally could lead to severe liquidity or security
pricing issues, which could impact their net asset values. If the net asset value of our money market fund were to
fall below its stable net asset value, we would likely experience significant redemptions in money market assets
under management, loss of shareholder confidence, and reputational harm, which could have a material adverse
effect on our revenues or net income.

If a money market fund's stable net asset value comes under pressure, we may elect to provide credit,
liquidity, or other support to the fund. We are not legally required to support any money market fund, and there
can be no assurance that any support would be sufficient to avoid an adverse impact. A decision to provide
support may arise from factors specific to our funds or from industry-wide factors. If we elect to provide support,
we could incur losses from the support we provide and incur additional costs, including financing costs, in
connection with the support. These losses and additional costs could be material, and could adversely affect our
earnings. If we were to take such actions we may also restrict our corporate assets, limiting our flexibility to use
these assets for other purposes, and may be required to raise additional capital.
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Any failure to comply with established client investment guidelines or other contractual requirements could
result in claims from clients and regulatory sanctions.

The agreements under which we manage assets often have established investment guidelines or other
contractual requirements that we are required to comply with in providing our investment management services.
Any allegation of a failure to comply with these guidelines or other requirement could result in client claims, hurt
reputation, withdrawal of assets, and potential regulatory sanctions, any of which may negatively impact our
revenues and earnings.

Our business utilizes third-party service providers, and any inadequate performance by those providers
could adversely impact our revenues and earnings.

We are dependent on certain third-party relationships to maintain essential business operations. These
services include, but are not limited to, information technology infrastructure, investment accounting services,
transfer agent and cash management services, custodial services, security pricing services, and subadvisory
agreements with unaffiliated investment managers for 31.4% of our assets under management at December 31,
2011.

The services provided by these third-parties are critical to our business. While we operate under contractual
arrangements which address fulfillment of services, and we have the ability to terminate providers, any material
disruption or deficiency in these contracted services could materially affect our business operations and
profitability.

Our business relies on the ability to attract and retain key employees, and the loss of such employees could
negatively affect financial performance.

The success of our business is dependent to a large extent on our ability to attract and retain key employees
such as senior executives, portfolio managers, securities analysts and sales personnel. Competition in the job
market for these professionals is generally intense. Most of our employees are not subject to employment
contracts or non-compete agreements so they may voluntarily terminate their employment at any time. In certain
circumstances, the departure of key employees could cause higher redemption rates for certain assets under
management, or the loss of certain client accounts. Any inability to retain our key employees, attract qualified
employees, or replace key employee positions in a timely manner when vacated, could have a negative impact on
our business. There could be additional costs to replace, retain or attract new talent which would result in a
decrease in net income.

We face strong competition in our businesses, and if we are not able to compete effectively, it could impair
our ability to retain existing customers, attract new customers and maintain our profitability.

We face strong competition in our businesses from mutual fund companies, banks and investment
management firms, many of which have advantages over us. We believe that our ability to compete is based on a
number of factors, including, but not limited, to investment performance, service, reputation, distribution
capabilities, product offerings, and fees charged. Industry consolidation has resulted in larger competitors with
financial resources, marketing and distribution capabilities, and brand identities that are stronger than ours.
Larger firms also may be able to offer, due to economies of scale, lower cost products. In addition, new or
alternative product offerings frequently emerge or may increase in popularity, which could create additional
competition and could result in decreased demand for our historical product offerings. If we do not compete
effectively in this environment, our profitability and financial condition would be materially adversely affected.
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We are subject to an extensive and complex regulatory environment and adverse changes in regulations
could materially affect our business.

We are subject to extensive regulation, primarily at the federal level, in conjunction with our investment
management business, and we may be adversely affected as a result of new or revised legislation, regulations or
standards, or by changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and regulations.

The Company is registered with the SEC, our investment advisers are registered with the SEC under the
Investment Advisers Act, our sponsored funds are registered with the SEC under the Investment Company Act
and our broker-dealer is registered with the SEC under the Exchange Act and is a member of FINRA. Most
aspects of our investment management business, including the business of the sub-advisors, are subject to various
federal and state laws and regulations.

These laws generally grant supervisory agencies the power to limit or restrict us and any sub-adviser from
carrying on its investment management business in the event that it fails to comply with applicable laws and
regulations. Sanctions may include the suspension of individual employees, limitations on our investment
management activities for specified periods of time, the revocation of the advisors’ registrations as investment
advisors or other censures and fines.

Although we spend substantial time and resources on compliance with laws and regulations, our inability to
timely and properly modify and update our compliance procedures in this changing and highly complex
regulatory environment could result in our being subject to sanctions, fines, and various other penalties and even
expulsion from particular activities or markets.

Because of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of any legal claims or regulatory inquiries or
other matters, we cannot provide assurance as to the outcome of pending or future matters, or if ultimately
determined adversely to us, monetary or reputational implications. The resolution of such matter or matters, if
unfavorable, could have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

While we maintain insurance that we believe is appropriate relative to our business, we cannot be assured
that insurance will cover all of our potential liabilities or losses. Some regulatory and other liabilities or penalties
are not generally covered by insurance. In addition, insurance coverage may become more costly and require
higher deductibles or co-insurance arrangements. Should this occur, it would expose us to greater non-insured
losses, increase our expenses and negatively impact our earnings.

We have potentially significant tax attributes, and any changes in tax laws or limitations on our tax
attributes could have a material impact on our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

We are subject to federal and state income taxes in the United States. Tax authorities may disagree with
certain positions we have taken and assess additional taxes. We regularly assess the appropriateness of our tax
positions and reporting. However, there can be no assurance that we will accurately predict the outcomes of these
audits, and the actual outcomes of these audits could be unfavorable. In addition, our ability to use net operating
loss carryforwards and other tax attributes available to us will be dependent on our ability to generate taxable
income.

Our ability to utilize tax attributes currently available to us is limited under Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 382”). Section 382 imposes annual limitations on the amount of
net operating loss carryforwards and other tax attributes that can be used to offset taxable income in the event an
ownership change has occurred, as defined as substantial changes in ownership. We currently have limitations as
a result of Section 382 due to changes in the Company’s stockholder base that occurred in 2009, and could
experience additional, more restrictive limitations in the event another ownership change occurs.

Changes in tax law or tax rulings could materially impact our effective tax rate, increase the amount of taxes
we are required to pay and have a significant adverse affect on our future results of operations and net income.
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We have a significant amount of deferred tax assets, a large portion of which related to the dissolution of an
inactive subsidiary and the application of Internal Revenue Code Section 165(g). In connection with the 165(g),
the Company has recorded an ordinary loss related to the dissolution of an inactive subsidiary.

Related to the dissolution, the Company received a private letter ruling that relies on certain facts,
assumptions and representations from management regarding the past conduct of the Company’s businesses and
other matters. If any of these facts, assumptions or representations are determined to be incorrect, the Company
may not be able to rely on the ruling and could be subject to significant tax liabilities in the event we utilize the
related deferred tax assets.

We distribute through intermediaries, and changes in key distribution relationships could reduce our
revenues or increase our costs.

Our primary source of distribution for our retail products is through intermediaries that include national,
regional and independent broker-dealers, financial planners and registered investment advisors. Our success is
highly dependent on access to these various distribution systems. There can be no assurance that we will be able
to retain access to these channels at all or at similar pricing. The inability to have such access could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

In addition, these intermediaries generally offer their customers a significant array of investment products
which are in addition to, and which compete with, our own investment products. The intermediaries or their
customers may favor competing investment products over those we offer. To the extent that existing or future
intermediaries prefer to do business with our competitors, the sales of our products as well as our market share,
revenue and net income could decline.

We and our third-party service providers rely on numerous technology systems, and a temporary business
interruption or security breach could negatively impact our operations, operating expenses and earnings.

Our technology systems are critical to our operations and any failure or interruption of those systems or of
our operations, whether resulting from technology or infrastructure breakdowns, defects or external causes such
as fire, natural disaster or power disruptions, could result in financial loss, impact our reputation, and affect our
ability to do business. Although we have in place disaster recovery plans, we may experience temporary
interruptions if a natural disaster or prolonged power outages were to occur which could have a material negative
impact on operations.

We and certain of our third-party vendors receive and store personal information as well as non-public
business information. Although we and our third-party vendors take precautions to password protect and encrypt
our networks, laptops and mobile electronic hardware, it may still be vulnerable to hacking or other unauthorized
use. A breach of the systems or hardware could result in an unauthorized release of this type of data which may
result in fines or penalties as well as other costly mitigation activities, and harm to our reputation.

Our common stock has relatively limited trading volume, and ownership is concentrated with a small
number of shareholders, which could increase the volatility in our stock trading and dramatically affect our
share price.

A large percentage of our stock is held by a limited number of shareholders. If our larger shareholders
decide to liquidate their positions, it could cause significant fluctuation in the share price of our common stock.
Public companies with a relatively concentrated level of institutional shareholders, such as we have, often have
difficulty generating trading volume in their stock. This illiquidity and our size can result in relative price
discounts as compared to industry peers or to the stock’s inherent value. It can also result in limited or no
research analyst coverage, the absence of which may make it difficult for a company to establish and hold a
market following.
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We have certain intangible assets, which could become impaired and have an adverse impact on our results
of operations.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had total assets of $286.4 million, which included $56.9 million of
goodwill and other net intangible assets. We cannot be certain that we will ever realize the value of such
intangible assets. It could be necessary to recognize impairment of these assets should we experience significant
decreases in assets under management, the termination of one or more material investment management contracts
or material outflows if clients withdraw their assets following the departure of a key employee or for any other
reasons.

We may need to raise additional capital or refinance existing debt in the future, and resources may not be
available to us in sufficient amounts or on acceptable terms.

Our ability to meet the future cash needs of the Company is dependent upon our ability to generate cash or
obtain financing. Although the Company has been successful in generating sufficient cash in the past, it may not
be successful in the future. We may need to raise additional capital to fund current operations or new business
initiatives, or refinance existing debt, and financing may not be available to us in sufficient amounts, on
acceptable terms, or at all. Our ability to access capital markets efficiently depends on a number of factors,
including the state of credit and equity markets, interest rates, credit spreads and our credit ratings. If we are
unable to access capital markets to issue new debt, refinance existing debt or sell shares of our common stock as
needed, or if we are unable to obtain such financing on acceptable terms, our business could be adversely
impacted.

Our shareholder rights plan could be interpreted to discourage takeovers and business combinations that
our stockholders might consider to be in their best interests.

Under our stockholders’ rights agreement, if any person or group, acquires, or begins a tender or exchange
offer that could result in acquiring 15% or more of our common stock, or, in the case of BMO, any additional
shares, without approval by our board under specified circumstances, our other stockholders will have the right to
purchase shares of our common stock, or shares of the acquiring company, at a substantial discount to the public
market price. In addition, provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law also restrict
certain business combinations with interested stockholders. The Delaware General Corporation Law and our
stockholders’ rights agreement may discourage takeovers and business combinations that our stockholders might
consider to be in their best interests.
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SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains statements, including under the captions “Business,” “Risk Factors,” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” that are, or may be
considered to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995, as amended, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Exchange
Act. All statements that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs or expectations, are
forward-looking statements. These statements may be identified by such forward-looking terminology as
“expect,” “estimate,” “plan,” “intend,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “continue,” “project”
or similar statements or variations of such terms and relate to, among other things:
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e The expected impact of pending legal and regulatory matters.

e Our future capital requirements, the anticipated uses of our cash and the sufficiency of our cash
resources.

Our forward-looking statements are based on a series of expectations, assumptions and projections about our
Company, are not guarantees of future results or performance, and involve substantial risks and uncertainty,
including assumptions and projections concerning our assets under management, net cash inflows and outflows,
operating cash flows, and future credit facilities, for all forward periods. All of our forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report are as of the date of this Annual Report only.

The Company can give no assurance that such expectations or forward-looking statements will prove to be
correct. Actual results may differ materially. The Company does not undertake or plan to update or revise any
such forward-looking statements to reflect actual results, changes in plans, assumptions, estimates or projections,
or other circumstances occurring after the date of this Annual Report, even if such results, changes or
circumstances make it clear that any forward-looking information will not be realized. If there are any future
public statements or disclosures by us which modify or impact any of the forward-looking statements contained
in or accompanying this Annual Report, such statements or disclosures will be deemed to modify or supersede
such statements in this Annual Report.

Our business and our forward-looking statements involve substantial known and unknown risks and
uncertainties, including those discussed under “Risk Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this Annual Report, as well as the following risks and
uncertainties: (a) the effects of changes and volatility in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest
rate environment, or financial and capital markets; (b) any poor relative investment performance of our asset
management strategies and any resulting outflows of assets; (c) mutual fund sales in any period may be through a
limited number of financial intermediaries, from a limited number of investment strategies, and impacted by
relative performance and the breadth and type of investment products we offer; (d) any lack of availability of
additional and/or replacement financing, as may be needed, on satisfactory terms or at all; (e) any inadequate
performance of third-party relationships; (f) the withdrawal of assets from under our management; (g) our ability
to attract and retain key personnel in a competitive environment; (h) the ability of independent trustees of our
mutual funds and closed-end funds, and other clients, to terminate their relationships with us; (i) the possibility
that our goodwill or intangible assets could become impaired, requiring a charge to earnings; (j) the competition
we face in our business, including competition related to investment products and fees; (k) potential adverse
regulatory and legal developments; (1) the difficulty of detecting misconduct by our employees, sub-advisors and
distribution partners; (m) changes in accounting or regulatory standards or rules, including the impact of
proposed rules which may be promulgated relating to Rule 12b-1 fees; (n) the ability to satisfy the financial
covenants under existing debt agreements; and (o) certain other risks and uncertainties described in this Annual
Report or in any of our other filings with the SEC, which are available on our website at www.virtus.com under
“Investor Relations.”
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An occurrence of, or any material adverse change in, one or more of the risk factors or risks and
uncertainties referred to in this Annual Report or included in our other periodic reports filed with the SEC could
materially and adversely affect our operations, financial results, cash flows, prospects, and liquidity. You are
urged to carefully consider all such factors.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2.  Properties.

Our principal offices are located at 100 Pearl St., Hartford, CT 06103 and our customer support call center is
located in Greenfield, Massachusetts. In addition, we lease office space in Illinois, California, Connecticut and
New York. We believe our office facilities are suitable and adequate for our business as it is presently conducted.
Given the service nature of our business and the fact that we do not own real property, we do not anticipate that
compliance with federal, state and local provisions regarding the discharge of materials into the environment, or
otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, will have a material effect upon our capital expenditures,
revenue or competitive position.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is regularly involved in litigation and arbitration as well as examinations, inquiries, and
investigations by various regulatory bodies, including the SEC, involving our compliance with, among other
things, securities laws, client investment guidelines, laws governing the activities of broker-dealers and other
laws and regulations affecting our products and other activities. Legal and regulatory matters of this nature may
involve activities as an employer, issuer of securities, investor, investment advisor, broker-dealer or taxpayer.
The Company believes that the outcomes of its legal or regulatory matters are not likely, either individually or in
the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial condition as of December 31, 2011.
However, it is not feasible to predict the ultimate outcome of all legal claims or matters or in certain instances
provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. In the event of unexpected subsequent developments and given the
inherent unpredictability of these legal and regulatory matters, there can be no assurance that our assessment of
any claim, dispute, regulatory examination or investigation or other legal matter will reflect the ultimate outcome
and an adverse outcome in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations or cash flows in particular quarterly or annual periods.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

The Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the trading symbol
“VRTS.” As of February 16, 2012, we had 7,702,447 shares of our common stock outstanding that were held by
approximately 110,835 holders of record. The table below sets forth the quarterly high and low sales prices of
our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market for each quarter in the last two fiscal years.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Quarter Ended High Low High Low
First Quarter .................... $62.30 $43.26 $ 21.61 $ 15.79
Second Quarter .................. $61.60 $49.79 $ 2499 $ 18.56
Third Quarter .. .................. $80.95  $50.10 $31.645 $ 17.89
Fourth Quarter . .................. $79.48  $50.36 $ 50.12  $29.835

We have not declared a cash dividend on our common stock with respect to the periods presented. We
currently do not have any plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock. The payment of any dividends on
our common stock and the amount thereof will be determined by the board of directors depending upon, among
other factors, the Company’s earnings, operations, financial condition, capital requirements, and general business
outlook at the time payment is considered. Additionally, our ability to pay common stock dividends is limited
under the terms of our Credit Facility, as described further in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The holders of our Series B were entitled to receive quarterly dividends, when and if declared by our board of
directors, equal to 8.0% per annum of the stated value of the Series B, before any dividends were declared or paid
upon any equity securities of the Company that ranked junior to the Series B with respect to payment of dividends
or rights upon liquidation. Subject to certain limitations, these dividends were to be paid either in cash or additional
shares of our Series B, at the discretion of the Company and, in the case of payment of any dividend in the form of
additional shares, subject to the approval of additional authorized Series B shares by the Series B holders. In
addition, the holders of our Series B were entitled to share in any dividends paid on shares of our common stock on
a pro rata basis with the holders of our common stock. On January 27, April 28 and July 28, 2011, the board of
directors declared cash dividends on our Series B for the three months ended December 31, 2010, March 31, 2011
and June 30, 2011, respectively, of $0.7 million in each quarter, which we paid in March 2011, June 2011 and
September 2011, respectively. On October 27, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with BMO, the holder
of the Series B, to convert all 35,217 outstanding shares of Series B into 1,349,300 shares of common stock, at the
original conversion rate. In connection with this agreement, the Company made a special dividend payment of $8.1
million on October 31, 2011, which included accrued dividends of $0.9 million. As of October 31, 2011, the Series
B was no longer entitled to receive preferred dividends. In addition, BMO’s right to elect one director to our board
of directors pursuant to the Series B Certificate of Designations has ceased and the current Series B director
resigned effective October 31, 2011. BMO has agreed that to the extent its holdings of common stock exceed 24.0%
of the outstanding common stock solely by reason of the repurchase or redemption of common stock by the
Company, the excess shares will be subject to an irrevocable proxy in favor of the Company to be voted in the same
proportion as the votes cast by all shareholders other than BMO. The Series B was converted to common shares on
January 6, 2012. As a result of the conversion, all of the shares of Series B have been retired.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company implemented a share repurchase program allowing for the
repurchase of up to 350,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the terms of the program, the Company
may repurchase its common stock from time to time in its discretion through open market repurchases and/or
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privately negotiated transactions, depending on price and prevailing market and business conditions. The program is
intended to return capital to shareholders and to generally offset shares issued under equity-based plans. The program
may be suspended or terminated at any time and the authorization for the program expires three years from inception.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, we repurchased 135,000 shares of our common stock for $7.9
million at an average price per share of $58.24 under the share repurchase program. No shares were repurchased
during the three months ended December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, approximately 195,000 shares
remained authorized for future repurchases under this program. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we
also repurchased 12,484 restricted stock units from employees for $0.7 million to cover tax withholdings from
the vesting of these units. No restricted stock units were repurchased during the three months ended
December 31, 2011.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth our selected consolidated financial and other data at the dates and for the
periods indicated. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and the
notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Years Ended December 31,
($ in thousands) 2011 (1) 2010 (1) 2009 (1) 2008 (2) 2007 (2)
Results of Operations (3)
Revenues ......... ... .. .. .. . i $ 204,652 $144,556 $117,152 $ 178,274 $226,217
Goodwill and intangible asset impairments ... .... N/A N/A N/A 559,264 301
EXpenses . .........ieuiiiiiiiiiiiii 190,749 135,285 123,775 760,080 220,869
Operating income (1oss) ...................... 13,903 9,271 (6,623) (581,806) 5,348
Income tax expense (benefit) (4) ................ (132,428) 513 121 (61,508) (5,950)
Netincome (10SS) ... ..o 145,420 9,642 (6,484) (529,088) (14,150)
Earnings (loss) per share—basic (4) (5) .......... 17.98 0.87 (1.76) (91.75) (2.45)
Earnings (loss) per share—diluted (4) (5) ......... 16.34 0.81 (1.76) (91.75) (2.45)
As of December 31,

2011 (1) 2010 (1) 2009 (2) 2008 (2) 2007 (2)
Balance Sheet Data (3)
Cash and Cash Equivalents .................... $ 45267 $ 43,948 $ 28,620 $ 51,056 $ 36,815
Intangible assets,net .............. .. ... ...... 52,096 52,977 54,844 60,985 208,176
Goodwill ........ ... . .. .. 4,795 4,795 4,795 4,795 454,369
Total assets . ..........ooiiriiiiin. 286,379 148911 134,023 159,009 752,163
Accrued compensation and benefits ............. 31,171 19,245 14,707 22,867 34,115
Long-termdebt (6) . ........ .. ... ... 15,000 15,000 15,000 20,000 42,019
Total liabilities .. .......... ... ... ... ..., 68,007 64,720 58,393 71,377 127,236
Convertible preferred stock (7) ................. 35,217 35,921 45,900 45,000 —
Total stockholders’ equity ..................... 183,155 48,270 29,730 36,632 624,927
Working capital (8) .......... ... ... .. .. .. 45,938 44,206 32,120 33,175 (3,211)

As of December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 (9) 2007 (9)

($ in millions)
Assets Under Management (3)
Total assets under management . ................ $ 34,588 $ 29473 $ 25440 $ 36,587 $ 55,545

(1) Derived from audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

(2) Derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this Annual Report.

(3) Historical financial results included in the table above for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
reflect the inclusion of Goodwin in the Company’s consolidated results.

(4) 2011 includes a tax benefit of $132.4 million primarily related to the release of a valuation allowance on
certain deferred tax assets.

(5) Following the spin-off from PNX, the Company had 5,772,076 common shares outstanding. This amount is
being used to calculate the loss per share for the periods prior to the spin-off. The same number of shares
has been used to calculate basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for all such periods as
there were no shares of Virtus common stock publicly traded prior to December 31, 2008, and no Virtus
options to purchase shares nor restricted stock units were outstanding prior to the spin-off.

(6) All outstanding long-term debt on or prior to the spin-off on December 31, 2008 was due to either PNX or
Phoenix Life Insurance Company, which had been a related party of the Company.
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®)
(C))

On October 27, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with the Series B preferred shareholders to
convert 35,217 shares of Series B into 1,349,300 shares of common stock, at the original conversion rate.
The Series B was converted to shares of Virtus common stock on January 6, 2012. As a result of the
conversion, all of the preferred shares have been retired.

Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities.

Assets under management for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 included $13,951 million and
$15,128 million, respectively, related to Goodwin, which was part of the Company prior to the spin-off.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview
Our Business

We are a provider of investment management products and services to individuals and institutions. We
operate a multi-manager investment management business, comprised of affiliated managers and unaffiliated
sub-advisors, each having its own distinct investment style, autonomous investment process and brand. We
believe our customers value this approach, especially institutional customers who appreciate individual managers
with distinctive cultures and styles.

Investors have an array of needs driven by factors such as market conditions, risk tolerance and investment
goals. A key element of our business is offering a variety of investment styles and multiple disciplines to meet
those needs. To that end, for our mutual funds, we supplement the investment capabilities of our affiliated
managers with those of select unaffiliated sub-advisors. We do that by partnering with unaffiliated sub-advisors
whose strategies we believe appeal to investors and are not typically available to retail mutual fund customers.

We provide our products in a number of forms and through multiple distribution channels. Our retail
products include open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds, variable insurance funds and separately managed
accounts. Our fund family of open-end funds is distributed primarily through intermediaries. Our closed-end
funds trade on the New York Stock Exchange. Our variable insurance trust provides investment options in
variable annuities and life insurance products distributed by third-party insurance companies. Retail separately
managed accounts are comprised of intermediary programs, sponsored and distributed by unaffiliated brokerage
firms, and private client accounts, which are offerings to the high net-worth clients of our affiliated managers.
We also manage institutional accounts for corporations, multi-employer retirement funds, public employee
retirement systems, foundations and endowments and special purpose funds. Our earnings are primarily driven
by asset-based investment management fees charged on these various products. These fees are based on a
percentage of assets under management and are calculated using daily or weekly average assets or assets at the
end of the preceding quarter.

Market Developments

The year ended December 31, 2011 marked a year of volatile markets. The global equity market overall was
down for 2011, as evidenced by the MSCI World Index ending the year at 1,183 as compared to 1,280 from the
start of the year. The major U.S. equity indexes remained relatively flat for 2011 amid concerns about
unemployment, economic growth and fears surrounding the downgrade of the U.S. Treasury debt rating and
concerns over European sovereign debt. The Dow Jones Industrial Average ended the year at 12,218, from
11,578 at the beginning of the year, while the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index closed out 2011 at 1,257, the same as
the beginning of the year.

Changes in our assets under management are driven in great part by the performance of the equity markets.
The financial markets have experienced a period of significant volatility over the past five years, which impacted
asset flows and the value of our assets under management. The capital and financial markets could experience
further fluctuation and volatility, which could impact relative investment returns and asset flows among
investment products as well as investor choices and preferences among investment products, including equity,
fixed income and alternative products. Uncertainties remain about the long-term nature of the economic
recovery. The inconsistent nature of the recovery, and the possibility that further economic gains could be
disrupted by local or global events such as adverse changes in interest rates, significant shifts in commodity
supplies or prices, political unrest, or even government initiatives, could adversely impact interest in our
investment products and services and, consequently, revenue and earnings.
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Financial Highlights

Total sales of $11.2 billion, an increase of 92.9% from total sales of $5.8 billion in 2010, driven by higher
long-term open-end mutual fund sales and the launch of a closed-end fund. Total sales and net flows exclude
flows to cash management and structured products. Additional financial highlights include:

e Long-term open-end mutual fund sales were $9.5 billion in 2011 an increase of 109.2 % from $4.5
billion in 2010. Long-term open-end mutual fund sales remained relatively balanced among asset
strategies, and in 2011 39.9% of sales were in domestic equity funds; 33.5% in fixed income strategies;
and 26.6% in international equity funds.

e In 2011, we launched the Duff & Phelps Global Utility Income Fund Inc. (NYSE:DPG), a new
closed-end fund managed by Duff & Phelps Investment Management Co., an affiliated manager. The
fund added $1.0 billion in assets under management and invests in domestic and foreign utility
companies in the electric, gas, water, telecommunications, and midstream energy sectors.

e In 2011, we established the Newfleet Multi-Sector Fixed Income Strategies portfolio management team
by hiring the investment professionals who previously managed $5.2 billion of assets for the Company
through a sub-advisory relationship.

e Net flows of $5.2 billion for 2011, primarily from long-term open-end mutual fund sales contributed to
an increase of $5.1 billion or 17.4% in assets under management to $34.6 billion at December 31, 2011
from $29.5 billion at December 31, 2010. For the year ended December 31, 2011 redemptions
increased $1.7 billion as compared with the same periods in 2010, consistent with industry-wide trends
in redemptions during 2011.

e Total revenue was $204.7 million in 2011, an increase of 41.6% from $144.6 million 2010. Investment
management fees increased 37.8% in 2011 to $135.1 million from $98.0 million in 2010. Total revenue
increased in 2011 compared to prior year as a result of increased mutual fund revenue related to higher
average assets under management, an increase in average fees earned and the impact of the new
affiliated Newfleet Multi-Sector portfolio management team.

Assets Under Management

Assets under management increased 17.4% to $34.6 billion at December 31, 2011 from $29.5 billion at
December 31, 2010. The increase in assets under management was driven primarily by positive net flows of $5.2
billion, market appreciation of $0.8 billion offset primarily by a decrease in cash management assets of $0.9
million. Positive net flows of $5.2 billion in 2011 were primarily due to strong sales of long-term open-end
mutual funds and the launch of the new closed-end fund managed by Duff & Phelps Investment Management
Co., which added $1.0 billion in assets. The best selling open-end mutual fund, Virtus Premium AlphaSector™
Fund, represented 29.0% of long-term open-end mutual fund sales for 2011, compared to 2010 when the largest
selling open-end mutual fund, Virtus Multi-Sector Short Term Bond Fund, represented 39.1% of long-term
open-end mutual fund sales.

During 2011, the Company’s equity assets increased to 54.9% of total assets under management compared
with 48.9% in 2010. Fixed income assets represented 38.1% of total assets under management at December 31,
2011, compared with 39.9% at the end of 2010, and cash management assets declined to 7.0% of total assets
under management at the end of 2011 from 11.2% at December 31, 2010.

Operating Results

In 2011, total revenue increased 41.6% to $204.7 million from $144.6 million in 2010. Revenues increased
in 2011 as compared with 2010 primarily as a result of increased mutual fund revenue and the full year impact
from the fourth quarter 2010 addition of the Virtus Variable Insurance Trust. Average assets under management,
which corresponds to the Company’s fee-earning asset levels, was $33.0 billion for the year ended December 31,
2011, an improvement of 24.7% from $26.5 billion for the year ended December 31, 2010. Operating income
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improved by 50.0% from $9.3 million in 2010 to $13.9 million in 2011 primarily due to increased revenues
driven by higher levels of average fee earning assets under management, offset by $10.8 million in costs related
to the launch of the new closed-end fund, Duff & Phelps Global Utility Income Fund Inc., and $8.2 million in
additional employment expenses related to the addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector portfolio management team
and a continued expense discipline that allowed the Company to improve profitability in spite of the increased
variable expenses that come with the growing levels of sales achieved by the Company in 2011.

Assets Under Management by Product

The following table presents our assets under management by product for the periods indicated:

As of December 31,
2011 2010 2009

($ in millions)
Retail Assets
Mutual fund assets

Long-term open-end funds ................ $16,896.6  $11,801.3 $ 8,902.2

Long-term closed-end funds ............... 5,675.6 4,321.1 4,256.9

Money market open-end funds ............. 2,294.8 2,915.5 3,930.6
Total mutual fund assets ...................... 24.867.0 19,037.9 17,089.7
Variable Insurance Funds (1) .................. 1,308.6 1,538.5 —
Separately managed accounts

Intermediary sponsored programs . .......... 1,991.6 1,893.5 1,661.3

Private clientaccounts . . .................. 1,942.2 1,939.5 1,890.5
Total managed account assets .................. 3,933.8 3,833.0 3,551.8
Total retail assets 30,109.4 24,409.4 20,641.5
Institutional assets

Institutional accounts .................... 3,453.4 4,087.7 3,929.8

Structured finance products . ............... 1,024.8 976.2 868.4
Total institutional assets . .................... 4,478.2 5,063.9 4,798.2
Total AUM . ......... ... . .. . ... $34,587.6  $29,473.3  $25,439.7
Average AUM . ............................ $32,995.6  $26,456.6  $23,235.0

(1) Following a transaction with a third-party VIT, Virtus became the advisor and distributor to $1.5 billion of
variable insurance funds. The Company previously acted as the sub-advisor to institutional mandates with a
third-party VIT representing $0.3 billion, which was included in Institutional assets as of December 31,
2009. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, $0.3 billion and $0.7 billion of variable insurance funds were
sub-advised by external managers, respectively.
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Asset Flows by Product

The following table summarizes our asset flows by product for the periods indicated:

($ in millions) Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Retail Products
Mutual Funds-Long-term Open-end . . .......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ouuu...
Beginning balance . ... ... $11,801.2 $ 89022 $ 6,753.1
InflOWS o 9,478.4 4,530.0 2,776.1
OUtEIOWS .« o oo (4,424.0) (2,868.6) (2,250.6)
NEt flOWS .« ottt 5,054.4 1,661.4 525.5
Market appreciation . . . ... ...ttt e e 181.1 1,347.5 1,736.9
Other (1) .ot e (140.1) (109.9) (113.3)
Ending balance . .......... ... ... $16,896.6 $11,801.2 $ 8,902.2
Mutual Funds—Long-term Closed-end
Beginning balance . ... ... ... $ 43212 $ 42569 $ 3991.2
InflOWS . o 817.1 — —
OUtOWS . . oo — — —
Nt flOWS . . oo 817.1 — —
Market appreciation . . . ... ...ttt e 166.6 64.3 265.8
Other (1) .o e 370.7 — 0.1)
Ending balance .............. ... . . $ 56756 $ 4,321.2 $ 4,256.9
Mutual Funds—Money Market . . ........ . . .. .. .
Beginning balance . ... ... ... $ 29155 $ 3930.6 $ 4,654.0
Other (1) .o (620.7)  (1,015.1) (723.4)
Ending balance . ............. ... i $ 2,294.8 $ 29155 $ 3,930.6
Variable Insurance Funds (2)
Beginning balance . ... ... $ 1,5385 $ — S —
I lOWS . .o 25.8 4.7 —
OU T OWS . . oo (267.8) (76.0) —
Net flOWS . oot (242.0) (71.3) —
Market appreciation . .. ... ... .. 11.1 65.9 —
Other (1) . o 1.0 1,543.9 —
Ending balance . ............. ... i $ 1,308.6 $ 1,5385 $ —
Separately Managed Accounts
Beginning balance . ... ...t $ 3,833.0 $ 3,551.8 $ 3,074.3
INflOWS . o 733.5 539.0 761.3
OULIIOWS . oo (779.5) (672.5) (865.2)
Net flOWS . oot (46.0) (133.5) (103.9)
Market appreciation . .. ... ... . 197.0 437.5 5733
Other (1) . o (50.2) (22.8) 8.1
Ending balance . ............. ... i $ 3,933.8 $ 3,833.0 $ 3,551.8
Institutional Products (3)
Beginning balance ........ ... ... $ 50639 $ 47982 $ 4,163.8
TN OWS « oot 169.0 745.4 322.8
OUTIOWS . ot (544.3) (690.1) (630.0)
Net flOWS . oot (375.3) 55.3 (307.2)
Market appreCiation . .. ... ...ttt e e 240.3 483.4 4009.1
Other (1) ..ot (450.7) (273.0) 532.5
Ending balance . .............. . ... . $ 44782 $ 50639 $ 4,798.2
Total
Beginning balance . . ... $29.473.3  $25,439.7 $22.,636.4
I lOWS . o 11,223.8 5,819.1 3,860.2
OUIOWS . . ettt e (6,015.6) (4,307.2) (3,745.8)
Nt IOWS . ettt e e e e 5,208.2 1,511.9 114.4
Market appreciation . .. ... ..ot 796.1 2,398.6 2,985.1
Other (1) ot e (890.0) 123.1 (296.2)
Ending balance . ............ ... . $34,587.6 $29,473.3 $25,439.7




(1) Comprised of mutual fund distributions, net flows of cash management strategies, market appreciation (depreciation) on
structured products, and net flows from non-sales related activities such as asset acquisitions/ (dispositions) and the impact of
leverage on assets under management.

(2) Following a transaction with a third-party VIT, Virtus became the advisor and distributor to $1.5 billion of variable insurance
funds. The Company previously acted as the sub-advisor to institutional mandates with a third-party VIT representing $0.3
billion, which was included in Institutional assets as of December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, $0.3 billion and
$0.7 billion of variable insurance funds were sub-advised by external managers, respectively.

(3) Institutional Products consists of Institutional Accounts and Structured Products. Prior period presentations included separate
rollforwards for Institutional Accounts and Structured Products.

Assets Under Management by Asset Class

The following table summarizes our assets under management by asset class:

As of December 31,
($ in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Asset Class
Equity ....... .. $18,978.5  $14,403.4  $11,546.7
Fixedincome ........................... 13,187.9 11,752.5 9,482.9
Cash management ....................... 2421.2 3,317.4 4,410.1
Total ............ ... ... . .. .. . ... $34,587.6  $29,473.3  $25,439.7

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2011, we
managed $34.6 billion in total assets representing an increase of $5.1 billion or 17.4% from the $29.5 billion
managed at December 31, 2010. The increase in assets under management for the year ended December 31, 2011
was due primarily to overall positive net flows of $5.2 billion. The positive net flows were primarily the result of
strong sales of long-term open-end mutual fund products and the launch of the Duff & Phelps Global Utility
Income Fund closed-end fund. Market appreciation and redemptions for assets under management for the year
ended December 31, 2011 were consistent with the uncertainty of the security markets during the same period.
Cash management assets declined for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to redemptions of cash
management institutional mandates and as investors continued to shift assets out of these products due to
historically low interest rates.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2010, we
managed $29.5 billion in total assets representing an increase of $4.1 billion or 15.9% from the $25.4 billion
managed at December 31, 2009. The increase in assets under management for the year ended December 31, 2010
was due primarily to market appreciation of $2.4 billion, overall positive net flows of $1.5 billion and completion
of a strategic initiative with the establishment of the Virtus Variable Insurance Trust, representing $1.2 billion in
additional assets. The positive net flows were primarily the result of strong sales of long-term open-end mutual
fund products. Market appreciation for assets under management for the year ended December 31, 2010 was
consistent with the improving performance of the securities markets during the same period. Cash management
assets declined for the year ended December 31, 2010 as investors continued to shift assets out of these products
due to historically low interest rates.
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Average Fee Earning Assets Under Management and Average Basis Points

The following table summarizes average fee earning assets under management and average management fee
basis points:

As of December 31,
Average Fees Earned Average Fee Earning Assets
(expressed in BPs) ($ in millions)

% w w 2011 2010 2009
Products
Mutual Funds—Long-term Open-End (2) ........... 46 40 39 $14,799.0 $10,187.0 $ 7,523.7
Mutual Funds—Closed-End (2) ... ................ 54 53 53 4,851.7 4,195.3 3,935.1
Mutual Funds—Money Market (1) ................ 4 5 5 2,516.1 2,990.1 4,234.6
Variable Insurance Funds (2) .. ................... 42 45 — 1,447.0 237.7 —
Separately Managed Accounts . ................... 49 48 48 3,905.3 3,568.0 3,069.3
Institutional Products . ......... ... . ... ... ... ..., 27 30 28 5,476.5 5,278.5 4,472.3

All Products ............................. 41 37 34 $32,995.6 $26,456.6 $23,235.0

(1) Average fees earned are net of non-affiliated sub-advisory fees.
(2) Average fees earned are net of non-affiliated sub-advisory fees and fund reimbursements.

The average fee earning assets under management and average fees earned expressed in basis points
presented in the table are intended to provide information in the analysis of our asset-based revenue. Money
market, long-term open-end mutual fund and variable insurance fund fees are calculated based on average daily
net assets. Average fees earned will vary based on several factors, including the asset mix and fund
reimbursements. Separately managed account fees are generally calculated based on the end of the preceding
quarter’s asset values. Institutional product fees are calculated based on an average of month-end balances.
Structured finance product fees, which are included in institutional products, are calculated based on a
combination of the underlying cash flows and the principal value of the product.

Our average fees earned increased for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the corresponding
period in the prior year as sales from equity products, which are reflected in long-term mutual funds and which
have higher fees, increased in 2011 as they represented a higher percentage of our sales. Average fees earned on
long-term mutual funds also increased due to the addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector portfolio management
team in 2011, and the corresponding elimination of the prior sub-advisory fees and the addition of the DPG
closed-end fund.
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Results of Operations

Summary Financial Data

Years Ended December 31, Increase/(Decrease)

($ in thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Results of Operations
Investment management fees ................ $ 135,063 $ 97,996 $ 79,651 $ 37,067 $18,345
Otherrevenue ................c.ccuiurnunon.. 69,589 46,560 37,501 23,029 9,059
Total revenues ........................... 204,652 144,556 117,152 60,096 27,404
Operating eXpenses - .. .. .......oeuenenenn.. 186,731 130,363 116,704 56,368 13,659
Intangible asset amortization ................ 4,018 4,922 7,071 (904) (2,149)
Total expenses ........................... 190,749 135,285 123,775 55,464 11,510
Operating income (loss) ................... 13,903 9,271 (6,623) 4,632 15,894
Other income (EXpense) .................... (450) 1,208 1,420 (1,658) (212)
Interest expense, net . ..............c........ 461) (324) (1,160) (137) 836
Income (loss) before income taxes ........... 12,992 10,155 (6,363) 2,837 16,518
Income tax expense (benefit) ................ (132,428) 513 121 (132,941) 392
Netincome (loss) ......................... 145,420 9,642 (6,484) 135,778 16,126
Preferred stockholder dividends .............. (9,482) (3,289) (3,760) (6,193) 471
Allocation of earnings to preferred

stockholders ........................... (24,260) (1,144) — (23,116) (1,144)
Net income (loss) attributable to common

stockholders ........................... $ 111,678 $ 5,209 $(10,244) $ 106,469 $15,453

Revenues

Revenues by source for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Years Ended December 31, Increase/(Decrease)

($ in thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Investment management fees

Mutualfunds ........... ... .. ... .. ...... $ 95,176 $ 64,221 $ 52,143 $30,955 $12,078
Separately managed accounts ................ 19,166 17,057 14,800 2,109 2,257
Institutional accounts . .. .................... 11,273 10,299 10,224 974 75
Structured finance products . ................. 3,323 4,581 2,484 (1,258) 2,097
Variable products ............ ... .. ... .. .. 6,125 1,838 — 4,287 1,838
Total investment management fees .......... 135,063 97,996 79,651 37,067 18,345
Distribution and service fees ............... 43,792 29,572 23,227 14,220 6,345
Administration and transfer agent fees . . . . ... 23,878 15,324 12,664 8,554 2,660
Other income and fees .. ................... 1,919 1,664 1,610 255 54
Totalrevenues ........................... $204,652 $144,556 $117,152 $60,096 $27,404
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Investment Management Fees

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Investment management fees
are earned based on a percentage of assets under management, and are paid pursuant to the terms of the
respective investment management contracts, which generally require monthly or quarterly payment. Investment
management fees increased by $37.1 million or 37.8% for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to a 24.7%
increase in average fee earning assets under management and an increase of approximately 4 basis points in
average fees earned. The increase in average fee earning assets under management for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was due primarily to overall positive net flows of $5.2 billion resulting from higher sales of
long-term open-end mutual funds in 2011 and the launch of the DPG closed-end fund. Revenues increased at a
higher rate than assets under management due to the increase in the average fee rate earned and the mix of assets.
Cash management assets represented 7.0% of total assets under management at December 31, 2011 compared to
11.2% at December 31, 2010. The increase in investment management fees were partially offset by higher fund
expense reimbursements primarily driven by our variable insurance funds adopted in the fourth quarter of 2010.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Investment management fees
increased $18.3 million or 23.0% for the year ended December 31, 2010 due to a 13.9% increase in average fee
earning assets under management. The increase in average fee earning assets under management for the year
ended December 31, 2010 was due primarily to market appreciation of $2.4 billion and overall positive net flows
of $1.5 billion, primarily resulting from strong sales of long-term open-end mutual fund products. Revenues
increased at a higher rate than assets under management due to a lower proportion of money market assets which
have lower investment management fee rates than our other products, and a higher proportion of equity and fixed
income assets. Money market assets represented 11.2% of total assets under management at December 31, 2010
compared to 17.3% at December 31, 2009. Offsetting these increases were higher fund expense reimbursements
resulting from a new fund administration agreement executed in April 2010. Also contributing to the increase
were subordinated management fees recognized on structured finance products that could not be recognized in
the year ended December 31, 2009 as the collateral being managed did not meet payment requirements at that
time.

Distribution and Service Fees

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Distribution and service fees,
which are asset-based fees earned from open-end mutual funds and variable insurance funds, for distribution
services we perform on their behalf, increased by $14.2 million or 48.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011
as compared to the prior year due to higher assets under management. The increase in fees also resulted in a
corresponding increase in trail commissions, which are a component of distribution expenses. Trail commissions
represent asset-based payments to our distribution partners based on a percentage of our assets under
management.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Distribution and service fees
increased by $6.3 million or 27.3% for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the prior year due to
higher assets under management. The increase in fees also resulted in a corresponding increase in trail
commissions.

Administration and Transfer Agent Fees

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Administration and transfer
agent fees represent fees earned for fund administration and transfer agent services from our open-end mutual
funds, variable insurance funds and certain of our closed-end funds. Fund administration and transfer agent fees
increased $8.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the prior year due to higher average
assets under management in our long-term open-end mutual funds and variable insurance funds in 2011 as
compared to 2010.
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Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Administration and transfer
agent fees increased $2.7 million or 21.0% for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the prior year.
Fund administration fees for certain open-end mutual funds increased $0.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 as compared to the prior year due to changes in fund administration contracts discussed
further below. Transfer agent fees, which are reported net of sub-transfer agent expenses, increased $2.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the prior year due to higher average mutual fund assets
under management.

The Company uses outside service providers to perform certain functions related to fund administration and
transfer agent services. Effective January 1, 2010, a new fund administration agreement was executed with our
open-end mutual funds. Under the prior agreement, the fees, which covered all fund administration services, were
paid directly to the Company by the funds and were recorded as revenue. A portion of the fees received by the
Company were remitted to third-party service providers for services performed on behalf of the funds, and were
recorded as a distribution and administration expense. As a result of the new agreement, the funds now directly
contract for the third-party services and fees paid by the funds directly to the service providers are not reflected
as either revenue or expenses of the Company, resulting in a decrease in revenues and a corresponding decrease
in expenses in 2010 as compared to prior year periods. For the year ended December 31, 2009, $6.2 million of
payments to third-party service providers were recorded as revenue and expense of the Company. In April 2010,
an amendment to the fund administration agreement was executed with the open-end mutual funds that changed
and increased the fee rates received by the Company. In connection with the amendment, the Company
implemented additional expense caps that require the Company to reimburse funds for certain expenses that
exceed defined thresholds, resulting in higher expense fee waivers for the year ended December 31, 2010 which
are recorded as a reduction to investment management fees.

Other Income and Fees
Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Other income and fees
increased $0.3 million primarily due to an increase in fees earned for the distribution of unaffiliated products.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Other income and fees
increased $0.1 million primarily due to an increase in fees earned for the distribution of unaffiliated products.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses by category were as follows:

Years Ended December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
($ in thousands) 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
Operating expenses
Employment expenses .................. $ 92,543 $ 65234 $ 57,113  $27,309 $ 8,121
Distribution and administrative expenses . . . 60,176 33,205 29,939 26,971 3,266
Other operating €Xpenses . ............... 32,004 30,289 28,550 1,715 1,739
Restructuring and severance ............. 2,008 1,635 1,102 373 533
Intangible asset amortization ............. 4,018 4,922 7,071 (904) (2,149)
Total operating expenses ................... $190,749 $135,285 $123,775  $55,464 $11,510

Employment Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Employment expenses
primarily consist of fixed and variable compensation and related employee benefit costs. Employment expenses
of $92.5 million increased $27.3 million or 41.9% as compared to the year ended December 31, 2010 primarily
due to increases in variable compensation, both sales and profit-based, including $1.2 million of DPG sales costs
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related to the launch of the new closed-end fund and $8.2 million of additional employment expenses in 2011
related to the addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector team. The increases in variable compensation are the result
of higher sales and improved profitability and operating metrics in 2011 as compared to 2010.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Employment expenses of
$65.2 million increased $8.1 million or 14.2% as compared to the year ended December 31, 2009 primarily due
to increases in variable compensation, both sales and performance based. The increases in variable compensation
are the result of higher sales and improved profitability and operating metrics in 2010 as compared to 2009.

Distribution and Administrative Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Distribution and
administrative expenses primarily consist of payments to financial advisers, broker-dealers and other third-parties
for providing services to investors in our sponsored funds, including marketing support services. These payments
are generally based on percentages of either assets under management or sales. These expenses also include the
amortization of deferred sales commissions related to up-front commissions on shares sold without a front-end
sales charge to shareholders. The deferred sales commissions are amortized over the periods in which
commissions are generally recovered from distribution fee revenues and contingent sales charges received from
shareholders of the funds upon redemption of their shares. Distribution and administrative expenses increased
$27.0 million or 81.2% in the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the prior year. The increases were
primarily due to closed-end fund structuring costs of $9.6 million incurred in connection with the launch of the
DPG closed-end fund and increases to asset-based trail commissions paid to our distribution partners, which
increased $6.8 million consistent with increases in our assets under management. Trail commissions are fees we
pay to broker-dealers for providing sales, marketing and distribution services to investors of our mutual funds
and are a component of distribution expenses. Also contributing to the increase were higher distribution and
administrative expenses related to our variable insurance funds of $4.2 million as well as sales-based fees paid to
third-party distribution partners which increased $6.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2011 due to higher
sales.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Distribution and
administrative expenses increased $3.3 million or 10.9% in the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to
the prior year. The increases were primarily attributable to asset-based trail commissions paid to our distribution
partners which increased $2.8 million consistent with increases in our assets under management. Trail
commissions are fees we pay to broker-dealers for providing sales, marketing and distribution services to
investors of our mutual funds and are a component of distribution expenses. Also contributing to the increase
were higher sales-based fees paid to third-party distribution partners which increased $2.8 million in the year
ended December 31, 2010 due to higher sales. These increases were partially offset by decreased third-party
service provider fees in 2010 compared to 2009 as these fees are no longer paid by the Company. As discussed
further under the “Administration and Transfer Agent Fees” caption above, effective January 1, 2010, certain
administration fees due to a third-party service provider are no longer reflected as revenue or expenses of the
Company in 2010, resulting in a decrease in distribution and administration expenses compared to prior year
periods.

Other Operating Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Other operating expenses
primarily consist of investment research costs, professional fees, travel and entertainment costs, rent and
occupancy expenses and other miscellaneous costs. Other operating expenses increased $1.7 million or 5.7% to
$32.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to $30.3 million in the prior year primarily due
to operating expenses related to the addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector team. The modest increase, despite
larger increases in assets under management and sales in 2011 as compared to 2010, is a result of management’s
continued efforts to control fixed operating costs.
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Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Other operating expenses
increased $1.7 million or 6.1% to $30.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to $28.6
million in the prior year. The modest increase, despite larger increases in assets under management and sales in
2010 as compared to 2009, is a result of management’s continued efforts to control fixed operating costs.

Restructuring and Severance

We incurred $2.0 million, $1.6 million and $1.1 million of restructuring and severance costs in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively, resulting from staff reductions.

Goodwill and Intangible Asset Impairment

There were no goodwill or intangible asset impairments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
20009 as the estimated fair value of goodwill and intangible assets was substantially in excess of their carrying
values.

Intangible Asset Amortization

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Amortization expense of $4.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 decreased from the prior year by $0.9 million or 18.4 % due to a
number of intangible assets related to institutional contracts becoming fully amortized in the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Amortization expense of $4.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2010 decreased from the prior year by $2.1 million or 30.4 % due to a
number of intangible assets related to institutional contracts becoming fully amortized in the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Other Income (Expense), net

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Other income (expense)
decreased $1.7 million to expense of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to decreases in the
market value of trading securities.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Other income (expense)
decreased $0.2 million to income of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 due to decreases in the
market value of trading securities.

Interest Expense, net

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. Interest expense, net is
attributable primarily to our long-term debt and is reported net of interest and dividend income earned on cash
equivalents and investments. Interest expense, net increased $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011
compared to the prior year. The increase in interest expense, net is due to lower interest and dividend income
earned on our cash equivalents and investments offset by lower interest expense due to a lower average
outstanding debt balance and a lower interest rate in 2011 compared to 2010 as a result of our debt refinancing
during the third quarter of 2010. The effective interest rate of the Company’s outstanding long-term debt,
inclusive of the amortization of deferred financing costs, was 4.28% as of December 31, 2011 as compared to
4.43% as of December 31, 2010.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Interest expense decreased

$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the prior year. The decrease in interest expense
is due to a lower average outstanding debt balance and a lower interest rate in 2010 compared to 2009 as a result
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of our debt refinancing during the third quarter of each of these years. The effective interest rate of the
Company’s outstanding long-term debt, inclusive of the amortization of deferred financing costs, was 6.90% as
of December 31, 2009.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to year ended December 31, 2010. During 2011, the Company
determined that recent historical operating results and projections of future income provided sufficient positive
evidence to conclude that it is more likely than not that a substantial portion of its deferred tax assets would be
realized. As a result, the Company released a valuation allowance of $174.5 million during the year ended
December 31, 2011. Offsetting the valuation allowance release was $32.0 million related to the recording of an
uncertain tax position and $4.0 million in deferred tax assets that were rendered not utilizable due to Internal
Revenue Code Section 382, both related to the receipt of a private letter ruling in 2011 concerning the treatment
of a loss related to the dissolution of an inactive subsidiary. Also offsetting the benefit of the valuation allowance
release was $5.1 million of tax expense on current year operations. Our effective tax rate was (1,019.3%) for the
year ended December 31, 2011 compared to 5.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in the
effective tax rate in 2011 as compared to 2010 is primarily attributable to the partial release of the valuation
allowance on certain deferred tax assets in 2011. The Company maintained a valuation allowance relating to
deferred tax assets on items of a capital nature as well as certain state deferred tax assets where the Company
determined that at the current level of projected taxable income the realization of such assets prior to statutory
expiration continued to be less than more likely than not.

Year ended December 31, 2010 compared to year ended December 31, 2009. Our effective tax rate was
5.1% for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to 1.9% for the year ended December 31, 2009. The
increase in the effective tax rate is primarily due to year over year changes in the amount and allocation of
income between the state jurisdictions in which we do business and file separate company income tax returns.

Preferred Stockholder Dividends

On January 27, April 28 and July 28, 2011, the board of directors of the Company declared cash dividends
on our Series B for the three months ended December 31, 2010, March 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011, respectively
of $0.7 million in each quarter, which we paid in March 2011, June 2011 and September 2011, respectively. On
October 27, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with BMO, the holder of the Series B, to convert all
35,217 outstanding shares of Series B into 1,349,300 shares of common stock, at the original conversion rate. In
connection with this agreement, the Company made a special dividend payment of $8.1 million, which included
accrued dividends of $0.9 million. As of October 31, 2011, the Series B was no longer entitled to receive
preferred dividends. Additionally, the Series B preferred shareholders relinquished their right to elect a Series B
director to the Company’s board of directors. The Series B was converted to common shares on January 6, 2012.
As a result of the conversion, all of the preferred shares have been retired.

Effects of Inflation

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, inflation did not have a material effect on our
consolidated revenues or results of operations.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Certain Financial Data

The following table summarizes certain key financial data relating to our liquidity and capital resources:

As of December 31,
($ in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents . ....................... $ 45,267 $43,948 $ 28,620
Marketable securities .. ......... . 14,995 10,273 9,444
Long-term notes payable and other debt ............. 15,000 15,000 15,000
Convertible preferred stock (1) .................... 35,217 35,921 45,900
Working capital (2) .......... .. .. ... 45,938 44,206 32,120
Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Cash Flow Data
Provided by (used in)
Operating activities . ................ooureerno... $ 23,650 $22,144  $(11,650)
Investing activities . .. .........c.ouuuiinenenann .. (4,070) (1,860) (1,995)
Financing activities ...................coouou.... (18,261) (4,956) (8,791)

(1) On August 6, 2010, the Company converted 9,783 shares of the Series B from BMO and dividends that had
been accrued but not yet declared into 378,446 shares of common stock. On January 6, 2012, all 35,217
outstanding shares of the Series B converted to 1,349,300 shares of common stock in connection with the
conversion agreement entered into on October 27, 2011 between the Company and BMO, the holder of the
outstanding Series B shares. As a result of the conversion, all of the preferred shares have been retired.

(2) Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities.

Capital Requirements

Our short-term capital requirements, which we consider to be those capital requirements due within one
year, include payment of annual incentive compensation, contingent consideration payments for our variable
insurance fund investment management contracts and payment of interest on our Credit Facility. Incentive
compensation, which is generally the Company’s largest annual operating cash payment, is paid in the first
quarter of the year. The Company paid approximately $14.5 million in incentive compensation in the first quarter
of 2011 related to incentives that were earned during the year ended December 31, 2010 and results would
indicate that incentive compensation to be paid in the first quarter of 2012 will be higher as compared to what
was paid in the first quarter of 2011 related to incentives that were earned during the year ended December 31,
2010. Short-term capital requirements may also be affected by employee withholding tax payments related to net
share settlement upon vesting of restricted stock units. The amount we pay in future periods will vary based on
our stock price, the number of restricted stock units vesting during the period and whether we and our employees
elect to satisfy withholding taxes through net share settlement. Approximately 360,000 restricted stock units are
expected to vest by March and April of 2012.

Future capital requirements include principal payments on our outstanding Credit Facility, which matures in
September 2013, capital expenditures and other strategic initiatives.

Uses of Capital

We expect that our main uses of cash will be to (i) invest in our organic growth, including our distribution
efforts or closed-end fund launches, (ii) seed new investment strategies and mutual funds to ensure a strong
pipeline of future saleable products, (iii) fund ongoing and potential investments in our infrastructure to achieve
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greater economies of scale and a more efficient overall cost structure (iv) acquire shares of our common stock
and (v) invest in inorganic growth opportunities as they arise.

We anticipate that our available cash, marketable securities and cash expected to be generated from
operations will be sufficient to fund our expected cash operating requirements and other capital requirements in
the short-term, which we consider to be the next twelve months. Our ability to meet our future cash needs will
depend upon our future operating performance and the level and mix of assets under management, as well as
general economic conditions. Current or unexpected events that could require additional liquidity may occur
affecting our results of operations, access to financing and generation of cash. Should assets under management
decline for any reason, revenues, operating income, net income and cash flow would be negatively impacted. If
our revenues decline without a commensurate reduction in our expenses, our net income will be reduced.

Capital and Reserve Requirements

We have a subsidiary that is a broker-dealer registered with the SEC and is therefore subject to certain rules
regarding minimum net capital, as defined by those rules. The subsidiary is required to maintain a ratio of
“aggregate indebtedness” to “net capital,” as defined, which may not exceed 15 to 1 and must also maintain a
minimum amount of net capital. Failure to meet these requirements could result in adverse consequences to us
including additional reporting requirements, tighter ratios and business interruption. At December 31, 2011 and
2010, the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital of the broker-dealer was below the maximum allowed and
our net capital was significantly in excess of that required.

Balance Sheet

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks and highly liquid money market mutual fund
investments. Cash and cash equivalents typically increase in the second, third and fourth quarters of the year as
we record, but do not pay, variable incentive compensation. Historically, annual incentives are paid in the first
quarter of the year. Marketable securities consist primarily of highly liquid investments in our affiliated mutual
funds. We provide capital to launch sponsored funds and incubate new investment strategies in their early stages
of development. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our long-term debt balance was $15.0 million.

Operating Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities of $23.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 improved
by $1.5 million from net cash provided by operating activities of $22.1 million in the prior year due primarily to
the increase in net income related to the overall increases in revenue and operating income. Also contributing to
the improvement was higher stock based compensation and amortization of deferred commissions related to
increased sales of our funds, the change in realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading securities and
higher accounts payable due to the timing of payments and accrued liabilities related to increased employee
incentive compensation accruals. These increases were offset by the release of our previously recorded valuation
allowance on certain deferred tax assets, increases in payments of deferred commissions, higher accounts
receivable associated with the increased assets under management and increased purchases of trading securities.

Net cash provided by operating activities of $22.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 improved
by $33.8 million from net cash used in operating activities of $11.7 million in the prior year due primarily to the
increase in our assets under management and revenues. Also contributing to the improvement was lower annual
incentive payments in the first quarter of 2010 related to the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to the
prior year.

Investing Cash Flow

Net cash used in investing activities consists primarily of capital expenditures related to our business
operations, the purchase of investment management contracts and reinvestment of dividends in our sponsored
mutual funds that are classified as available-for-sale securities. Net cash used in investing activities of $4.1
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million for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased by $2.2 million from net cash used in investing activities
of $1.9 million in the prior year due primarily to the adoption of the former DCA Total Return closed-end fund
investment management contract in the fourth quarter of 2011. The remaining net cash used in investing
activities relates to capital expenditures of approximately $0.3 million in leasehold improvements related to one
of our locations and for the purchase of software, telephone and computer equipment in connection with our
corporate office and our affiliates. Net cash used in investing activities of $1.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 decreased by $0.1 million from net cash used in investing activities of $2.0 million in the
prior year due primarily to decreased capital expenditures as the majority of our capital expenditures were related
to the relocation of our corporate office in 2008 as a result of the spin-off from our former parent company.

Financing Cash Flow

Cash flows from financing activities consist primarily of dividend payments on our Series B preferred stock,
repurchases of our common stock, contingent payments related to investment management contracts purchased,
employee payroll taxes paid related to the net share settlement of employee restricted stock units and principal
repayment on our previous long-term debt, offset by proceeds from our existing long-term debt. For the year
ended December 31, 2011, net cash used in financing activities consists of dividend payments on our Series B of
$10.2 million, repurchases of our common stock of $7.9 million, contingent payments made related to the VIT
adoption of $0.8 million and employee payroll taxes paid related to the net share settlement of employee
restricted stock units of $0.7 million, offset by $1.3 million in proceeds from stock option exercises. For the year
ended December 31, 2010, net cash used in financing activities consists of dividend payments on our Series B of
$3.4 million, repurchases of our common stock of $0.9 million, employee payroll taxes paid related to the net
share settlement of employee restricted stock units of $0.4 million and deferred financing costs paid in
conjunction with refinancing our Credit Facility of $0.4 million. For the year ended December 31, 2009, net cash
used in financing activities consists of principal payments on our long-term debt of $20.0 million, proceeds from
our Credit Facility of $15.0 million, deferred financing costs paid in conjunction with entering into the Credit
Facility of $0.9 million and payment of dividends on our Series B of $2.9 million.

Long-Term Debt

The Company has a Credit Facility, as amended through October 27, 2011, that matures in September 2013.
The Credit Facility provides borrowing capacity of up to $30.0 million, with a $2.0 million sub-limit for the
issuance of standby letters of credit. Borrowings under the Credit Facility may not at any time exceed a minimum
asset coverage ratio of 1.25 which in general represents the sum of the Company’s cash, marketable securities
and investment management fee receivables, excluding certain specified assets, to total outstanding indebtedness
(including outstanding letters of credit). The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of
the Company. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $15.0 million was outstanding under the Credit Facility. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company had the capacity to draw on the remaining amount of the Credit Facility.

Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest at an annual rate equal to, at the Company’s
option, either LIBOR for interest periods of 1, 2, 3 or 6 months or an alternate base rate (as defined in the Credit
Facility agreement), plus an applicable margin, effective August 2, 2010, that ranges from 1.25% to 3.00%. At
December 31, 2011, the interest rate in effect for the Credit Facility was 2.625%, exclusive of the amortization of
deferred financing costs. Under the terms of the Credit Facility the Company is also required to pay certain fees,
including an annual commitment fee of 0.50% on undrawn amounts and a letter of credit participation fee at an
annual rate equal to the applicable margin as well as any applicable fronting fees, each of which is payable
quarterly in arrears.

The Credit Facility contains customary restrictive covenants, including covenants that restrict (subject in
certain instances to minimum thresholds or exceptions) the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
to incur additional indebtedness, create liens, merge or make acquisitions, dispose of assets, enter into leases,
sale/leasebacks or acquisitions of capital stock, and make distributions, dividends, loans, guarantees, investments
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or capital expenditures, among other things. The payment of dividends may not exceed 75.0% of free cash flow
(as defined in the Credit Facility agreement) for any quarter and are also restricted from being declared and paid
if a default or event of default exists. On October 27, 2011, the Company amended the Credit Facility to exclude
closed end fund structuring costs from the definition of free cash flow and to allow during the period from
October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 one or more restricted additional payments in an aggregate amount not in
excess of $3.0 million. In addition, the Credit Facility contains certain financial covenants, the most restrictive of
which include, effective August 2, 2010: (i) minimum required consolidated net worth as of any fiscal quarter
end (total stockholders’ equity plus the liquidation preference of outstanding convertible preferred shares) to be
at least $65.0 million, plus adjustments for net income, redemptions of convertible securities and equity
issuances, if any, after September 1, 2009, (ii) minimum consolidated assets under management (excluding
money market funds) of $15.0 billion as of each quarter end through March 31, 2012 and $18.0 billion as of any
quarter end thereafter, (iii) minimum liquid assets having a fair value not less than $7.5 million, (iv) a minimum
interest coverage ratio (generally, adjusted EBITDA to interest expense as defined in and for the period specified
in the Credit Facility agreement) of at least 3.00:1, and (v) a leverage ratio (generally, total indebtedness as of
any date to adjusted EBITDA as defined in and for the period specified in the Credit Facility agreement) of no
greater than 2.75:1. For purposes of the Credit Facility, adjusted EBITDA generally means, for any period, net
income of the Company before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization expense, and
excluding non-cash stock-based compensation, unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses, certain severance,
and certain non-cash non-recurring gains and losses as described in and specified under the Credit Facility
agreement. At December 31, 2011, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants.

The Credit Facility agreement also contains customary provisions regarding events of default which could
result in an acceleration of amounts due under the facility, including failure to pay principal or interest when due,
failure to satisfy or comply with covenants, change of control, certain judgments, invalidation of liens, and cross-
default to other debt obligations.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011:

Payments Due

Less Than More Than
($ in millions) Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Lease obligations . ... ...........uuuuuuuununnnnnnnn. $13.5  $2.0 $ 4.1 $3.3 $4.1
Credit Facility, including interest (1) ................... 15.7 0.4 15.3 — —
VIT contingent consideration (2) ...................... 1.3 0.8 0.5 — —
Total . ... ... . . e $30.5 $3.2 $19.9 $3.3 $4.1

(1) At December 31, 2011, the Company has $15.0 million outstanding under the Credit Facility that has a
variable interest rate. Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest at an annual rate equal to,
at the Company’s option, either LIBOR for interest periods of 1, 2, 3 or 6 months or an alternate base rate,
plus an applicable margin that ranges from 1.25% to 3.00%. At December 31, 2011, the interest rate in
effect for the Credit Facility was 2.625%. Payments due are estimated based on the interest rate of 2.625%
in effect on December 31, 2011.

(2) On November 5, 2010, the Company acquired the rights to advise and distribute the former Phoenix Edge
Series Funds (excluding certain of the funds to be merged into a third-party variable insurance trust) from
Phoenix Variable Advisors, Inc. (“PVA”). Under the terms of the agreement, during the three years
following the closing, the Company is required to make quarterly payments to PVA based upon fixed
percentages of the average assets under management. These payments are variable and will fluctuate based
on assets under management, influenced by asset flows and market impact. The payments reflected are
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estimates based on projected net flows and market appreciation/(depreciation) and could be materially
different if the actual asset and market assumptions differ from these estimates and could be zero if the
assets run-off or are removed.

The table above excludes approximately $32.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits accounted for under
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740, Income Taxes, as we are unable to reasonably estimate the
ultimate amount or timing of any settlement. See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for more
information.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

For a discussion of accounting standards, see Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not invest in any off-balance sheet vehicles that provide liquidity, capital resources, market or credit
risk support, or engage in any leasing activities that expose us to any liability that is not reflected in our
consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements and the accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, which requires the use of estimates. Actual results will vary from these estimates.
Management believes the following critical accounting policies are important to understanding our results of
operations and financial position.

Goodwill

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill was $4.8 million. Goodwill represents the
excess of purchase price of acquisitions over the fair value of identified net assets and liabilities acquired. For
goodwill, impairment tests for the Company are performed annually, or more frequently, should circumstances
change which would indicate the fair value of goodwill is below its carrying amount. We have determined that
the Company has only one reporting unit.

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for
Impairment (the revised standard) which amends the rules for testing goodwill for impairment. Under the new
rules, an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or
circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, an entity determines it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, then performing the
two-step impairment test is unnecessary. We early adopted ASU 2011-08 for our 2011 annual goodwill
impairment test.

In assessing the qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a
reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, we assess relevant events and circumstances that may impact the
fair value and the carrying amount of the reporting unit. The identification of relevant events and circumstances
and how these may impact a reporting units' fair value or carrying amount involve significant judgments and
assumptions. The judgment and assumptions include the identification of macroeconomic conditions, industry
and market considerations, cost factors, overall financial performance, Company specific events and share price
trends and making the assessment on whether each relevant factor will impact the impairment test positively or
negatively and the magnitude of any such impact.
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Based upon our fiscal 2011 qualitative impairment analysis, prepared in accordance with ASU 2011-08, we
concluded that there was no requirement to do a quantitative annual goodwill impairment test. The key
qualitative factors that led to our conclusion were (i) that our fiscal 2010 impairment analysis indicated that the
fair value of our reporting unit significantly exceeded the carrying amount; (ii) the significant increase in our
share price and market capitalization since our fiscal 2010 annual goodwill impairment analysis; and (iii) that we
continue to show positive financial performance.

No impairment had been identified or recorded by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Significant deterioration in markets or declines in revenue or in the value of the Company could result in
future impairment charges.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying values of indefinite-lived intangible assets were $32.4 million.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are comprised of acquired, closed-end fund investment advisory contracts.
Indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment tests are performed annually, or more frequently should
circumstances change which would reduce the fair value below its carrying value.

The Company estimated fair value of intangible assets using a discounted cash flow analysis. Management
believes a discounted cash flow analysis is most appropriate in valuing the indefinite-lived intangible assets
because it has concluded that it is a likely method that would be utilized by market participants. The key
variables impacting the valuation of the intangible assets under this model include the discount rate, fee rates and
assets under management related to the relevant investment advisory contracts.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, there was no indefinite-lived intangible asset impairments as the
estimated fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets was substantially in excess of its carrying value. There
were improvements in key valuation assumptions used in management’s valuation as compared to the prior year.
For our annual impairment test performed as of October 31, 2011, the discount rate applied in the calculation
used by the Company was 12.0%, based on an estimated cost of capital that reflected the economic conditions at
that time. The Company performed a sensitivity analysis that showed that a discount rate of more than 20% and a
more than 40% decrease in assets under management underlying these investment advisory contracts would
result in an impairment charge as of October 31, 2011. No impairment had been identified or recorded by the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Significant deterioration in markets or declines in revenue or in the value of the Company could result in
future impairment charges.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying values of definite-lived intangible assets were $19.7 million.
Definite-lived intangible assets are comprised of acquired investment advisory contracts. The Company monitors
the useful lives of definite-lived intangible assets and revises the useful lives, if necessary, based on the
circumstances. Significant judgment is required in estimating the period that these assets will contribute to our
cash flows and the pattern over which these assets will be consumed. A change in the remaining useful life of any
of these assets could have a significant impact on our amortization expense. All amortization expense has been,
and continues to be, calculated on a straight-line basis.

For definite-lived intangible assets, impairment testing is performed whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the Company determines the carrying
value of the definite-lived intangible assets is less than the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the asset we will quantify the impairment using a discounted cash flow model.
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The key assumptions in the discounted cash flow model include; the estimated remaining useful life of the
intangible asset; the discount rate; investment management fee rates on assets under management; and the market
expense ratio factor.

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, no events or circumstances occurred that
indicated the carrying value of definite-lived intangible assets might be impaired and therefore no impairment
tests were performed during these periods.

Significant deterioration in markets or declines in revenue or in the value of the Company could result in
future impairment charges.

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees, distribution and service fees and administration and transfer agent fees are
recorded as revenue during the period in which services are performed. Investment management fees, which are
accrued monthly, are earned based upon a percentage of assets under management, and are paid pursuant to the
terms of the respective investment management contracts, which generally require monthly or quarterly payment.
Management fees for structured finance products, such as CDOs, that accrue as services are rendered, but are
subordinated to other interests and payable only if certain financial criteria of the underlying collateral are met,
are recorded as revenue when the structured finance products are in compliance with required financial criteria
and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company accounts for investment management fees in accordance
with ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, and has recorded its management fees net of fees paid to unaffiliated
advisors. Amounts paid to unaffiliated sub-advisors for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were
$36.4 million, $24.0 million and $19.0 million, respectively.

Investment management fees are calculated based on our assets under management. We rely on data
provided to us by mutual funds and custodians in the pricing of assets under management, which are not reflected
within our consolidated financial statements. The boards of our mutual funds and management of custodians of
the assets we manage have formal pricing policies and procedures over pricing of investments. Given our
reliance on the data provided to us by the mutual funds and the custodians in the pricing of the assets under
management, management has established internal procedures to corroborate that mutual fund and custodial
pricing appears adequate and has implemented processes to ensure valuation discrepancies are investigated and
resolved. As of December 31, 2011, our total assets under management by fair value hierarchy level as defined
by ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, was approximately 59.2% Level 1, 40.7% Level 2 and
0.1% Level 3.

Gross investment management fees earned on long-term open-end mutual funds range from 0.35% to 1.50%
of average assets under management, depending on the type of fund. Investment management fees earned on
closed-end funds range from 0.50% to 1.00% of average assets under management. Investment management fees
earned on money market funds range from 0.10% to 0.14% of average assets under management. Investment
management fees earned on separately managed accounts and institutional accounts are negotiated and are based
primarily on asset size, portfolio complexity and individual needs and range from 0.08% to 1.30%. Investment
management fees earned on variable insurance funds range from 0.40% to 0.90% of average assets under
management. Investment management fees earned on structured finance products range from 0.08% to 0.45% of
the principal outstanding.

Distribution and service fees are earned based on a percentage of assets under management and are paid
monthly pursuant to the terms of the respective distribution and service fee contracts. Underwriter fees are sales-
based charges on sales of certain class A-share mutual funds.

Administration and transfer agent fees consist of fund administration fees, transfer agent fees and fiduciary
fees. Fund administration fees are earned based on the average daily assets in the funds. Transfer agent fees are
earned based on the average daily assets in the funds. Fiduciary fees are recorded monthly based on the number
of 401(k) accounts. The Company utilizes outside service providers to perform some of the functions related to
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fund administration and transfer agent services. Effective January 1, 2010, a new fund administration agreement
was executed with our open-end mutual funds. Under the prior agreement, the fees, which covered all fund
administration services, were paid directly to the Company by the funds and were recorded as revenue. A portion
of the fees received by the Company were remitted to third-party service providers for services performed on
behalf of the funds, and were recorded as a distribution and administration expense. As a result of the new
agreement, the funds now directly contract for the third-party services and fees paid by the funds directly to the
service providers are not reflected as either revenue or expenses of the Company. For the year ended

December 31, 2009, $6.2 million of payments to third-party service providers were recorded as revenue and
expense of the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2009 transfer agent fees, which were previously
reported net of payments to third-party service providers, were $4.3 million.

Other income and fees consist primarily of redemption income on the early redemption of class B-share
mutual funds and brokerage commissions and fees earned for the distribution of nonaffiliated products.
Commissions earned (and related expenses) are recorded on a trade date basis and are computed based upon
contractual agreements.

Accounting for Income Taxes

In 2010, the Company recorded a deferred tax asset and corresponding valuation allowance for a capital loss
carryforward in the amount of approximately $93.0 million related to the dissolution of an inactive subsidiary.
During 2011, the Company submitted a request for a private letter ruling (“PLR”) to the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) to allow the capital loss to be claimed as an ordinary loss. During the year ended December 31,
2011, the IRS issued a favorable PLR to the Company.

As a result of the favorable PLR, the Company recharacterized the $93.0 million of deferred tax assets
previously reported as capital in character to $89.0 million in deferred tax assets relating to net operating losses
and intangible assets, with $4.0 million being rendered not utilizable due to Internal Revenue Code Section 382
limitations. The PLR relies on certain facts, assumptions and representations from management regarding the
past conduct of the Company’s businesses and other matters. If any of these facts, assumptions or representations
about the existence of a deductible loss are successfully challenged by the IRS, the Company could be subject to
significant tax liabilities to the extent the reported loss represented an incremental reduction to the Company’s
tax liability in any given year. Notwithstanding the PLR, the IRS could also recharacterize the ordinary loss as a
capital loss should it successfully challenge the validity of the facts, assumptions, or representations made as part
of the PLR request.

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and, in particular, any
valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets. Our methodology for determining the realizability
of deferred tax assets involves estimates of future taxable income from our operations and consideration of
available tax planning strategies and actions that would be implemented by us, if necessary, as well as the
expiration dates and amounts of carryforwards related to net operating losses and capital losses. These estimates
are projected through the life of the related deferred tax assets based on assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable and consistent with demonstrated operating results. The projection also includes consideration of the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities that are in the same period and jurisdiction and are of the same character as the
temporary differences that gave rise to the deferred tax assets. Changes in future operating results not currently
forecasted may have a significant impact on the realization of deferred tax assets.

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates the positive and negative evidence used to determine the
likelihood of realization of all its deferred tax assets. Prior to December 31, 2011, the Company maintained a
valuation allowance on substantially all of its net deferred tax assets as prior to that date, the Company
determined that the likelihood of realization of those assets were less than more likely than not. During 2011, the
Company determined that its recent historical operating results and future projections gave rise to sufficient
positive evidence to conclude that it is more likely than not that a substantial portion of its deferred tax assets
would be realizable. As a result, the Company released a valuation allowance of $174.5 million during the year
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ended December 31, 2011. The Company maintained a valuation allowance in the amount of $3.3 million at
December 31, 2011 relating to deferred tax assets on items of a capital nature as well as certain state deferred tax
assets where the Company determined that at the current level of projected taxable income the realization of such
assets prior to statutory expiration continued to be less than more likely than not. Offsetting the valuation
allowance release was $32.0 million related to the recording of an uncertain tax position and $4.0 million in
deferred tax assets that were rendered not utilizable due to Internal Revenue Code Section 382, both related to the
receipt of a private letter ruling in 2011 concerning the treatment of a loss related to the dissolution of an inactive
subsidiary. Also offsetting the benefit of the valuation allowance release was $5.1 million of tax expense on
current year operations.

Uncertain tax positions taken by the Company are accounted for under ASC 740, Income Taxes, which may
require certain benefits taken on a tax return to not be recognized in the financial statements when there are the
potential for certain tax positions to be successfully challenged by the taxing authorities.

Loss Contingencies

The likelihood that a loss contingency exists is evaluated using the criteria of ASC 450, Loss Contingencies,
and an accrued liability is recorded if the likelihood of a loss is considered both probable and reasonably
estimable at the date of the financial statements.

We believe that we have considered relevant circumstances that we may be currently subject to, and the
financial statements accurately reflect our reasonable estimate of the results of our operations, financial condition
and cash flows for the years presented.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk is directly related to our role as investment advisor for the funds and accounts
we manage as investment advisor. Substantially all of our revenue for the three years ended December 31, 2011
was derived from investment management, distribution and fund administration fees, which are typically based
on the market value of assets under management. Accordingly, a decline in the prices of securities would cause
our revenue and income to decline due to a decrease in the value of the assets we manage. In addition, such a
decline could cause our clients to withdraw their funds in favor of investments offering higher returns or lower
risk, which would cause our revenue and income to decline further.

We are also subject to market risk due to a decline in the market value of our investments, consisting
primarily of marketable securities. At December 31, 2011, the fair value of marketable securities was $15.0
million. Assuming a 10.0% increase or decrease in the fair value of marketable securities at December 31, 2011,
our net income would change by $1.3 million and our total comprehensive income would change by $1.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2011, the Company has $15.0 million outstanding under the Credit Facility that has a
variable interest rate. Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest at an annual rate equal to, at the
Company’s option, either LIBOR for interest periods of 1, 2, 3 or 6 months or an alternate base rate, plus an
applicable margin that ranges from 1.25% to 3.00%. At December 31, 2011, the interest rate in effect for the
Credit Facility was 2.625%. A hypothetical 300 basis point change in interest rates for the year ended
December 31, 2011 would have changed our interest expense by approximately $0.4 million.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The audited Consolidated Financial Statements, including the Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm and the required supplementary quarterly information, required by this item are presented under
Item 15 beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the specified
time periods, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e)
of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Based on their evaluation, as of
the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policy or procedures may deteriorate. Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2011 based upon the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have concluded that our internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2011.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 has been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
which is included in Item 15 of this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or
15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2011 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information concerning the Company’s directors and nominees under the caption “Item 1—FElection of
Directors” and the information concerning the Audit Committee and the “audit committee financial expert” under
the caption “Corporate Governance—Audit Committee” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s
2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, information concerning the Company’s executive officers under the
caption “Executive Officers,” and the information under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, are incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct that applies to the Company’s chief executive officer, senior
financial officers and all other Company employees, officers and Board members. The Code of Conduct is
available on the Company’s website, www.virtus.com, under “Investor Relations,” and is available in print to any
person who requests it. Any substantive amendment to the Code of Conduct and any waiver in favor of a Board
member or an executive officer may only be granted by the Board of Directors and will be publicly disclosed on
the Company’s website, www.virtus.com, under “Investor Relations.”

The information concerning procedures by which shareholders may recommend director nominees set forth
under the caption “Corporate Governance—Governance Committee—Director Nomination Process” in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information relating to executive compensation and the Company’s policies and practices as they relate
to the Company’s risk management is set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Director
Compensation,” “Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee—Risks Related to Compensation Policies
and Practices” and “Corporate Governance—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in
the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and is incorporated
herein by reference. The information included under the caption “Executive Compensation—Report of the
Compensation Committee” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference but shall be deemed “furnished” with this report and shall not be
deemed “filed” with this report.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information set forth under the caption “Security Ownership by Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is
incorporated herein by reference.
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The following table sets forth information as of December 31, 2011 with respect to compensation plans
under which shares of our common stock may be issued:

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of
securities remaining
Number of available for future

securities to be issuance
issued Weighted-average under equity

upon exercise of exercise price of compensation plans

outstanding outstanding (excluding
options, warrants options, warrants securities reflected

Plan Category and rights (a) and rights (1)(b) in column (a)(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders (2) .................. 929,646 $20.21 633,352
Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders ..................... — — —

Total ...... .. .. .. . 929,646 $20.21 633,352

(1) The weighted-average exercise price set forth in this column is calculated excluding outstanding restricted
stock unit awards (“RSUs”) since recipients of such awards are not required to pay an exercise price to
receive the shares subject to these awards. The weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options,
warrants and rights including RSUs is $7.67.

(2) Represents 352,942 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options and 576,704 shares
of our common stock issuable upon the vesting of RSUs outstanding under the Company’s Omnibus
Incentive and Equity Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”). Of the 1,800,000 maximum number of shares of our
common stock authorized for issuance under the Omnibus Plan, 61,672 shares of common stock have been
issued on a cumulative basis in the form of direct grants to directors or upon settlement of vested RSUs.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information set forth under the captions “Corporate Governance—Transactions with Related Persons”
and “Corporate Governance—Director Independence” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Company’s
2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information regarding auditors fees and services and the Company’s pre-approval policies and
procedures for audit and non-audit services to be provided by the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm set forth under the caption “Item 2—Ratification of the Appointment of the Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)(1) Financial Statements: The following Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Virtus are included in this Annual Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information is either
presented in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto or is not applicable or required.
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Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

2) Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession

2.1 Separation Agreement, Plan of Reorganization and Distribution by and between The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., dated as of December 18, 2008 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed December 19,
2008).

3) Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., dated
December 18, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 4
to Form 10, filed December 19, 2008).

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., as adopted on January 28, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
February 2, 2010).

33 Certificate of Designations of Series A Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Voting
Convertible Preferred Stock of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., dated October 31, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 2 to Form 10, filed
November 14, 2008).

34 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Designations of Series A Non-Voting Convertible
Preferred Stock and Series B Voting Convertible Preferred Stock of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 13, 2009).

3.5 Certificate of Designations of Series C Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Virtus Investment
Partners, Inc., dated December 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 2, 2009).

4) Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Indentures

4.1 Rights Agreement between Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC, as
Rights Agent, dated as of December 29, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 2, 2009).

4.2 Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 19, 2011, to Rights Agreement between Virtus Investment
Partners, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC, as Rights Agent, dated as of December 29, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
June 20, 2011).

4.3 Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 21, 2011, to Rights Agreement between Virtus Investment
Partners, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC, as Rights Agent, dated as of December 29, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed
August 5, 2011).

4.4 Note in favor of The Bank of New York Mellon as Lender, dated September 1, 2009 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 4,
2009).

4.5 Note in favor of PNC Bank, National Association as Lender, dated September 1, 2009 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 4,
2009).
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Exhibit
Number

(10)
10.1

10.2

10.3

*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Exhibit Description

Material Contracts

Transition Services Agreement by and between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and Virtus Investment
Partners, Inc., dated as of December 18, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed December 19, 2008).

Tax Separation Agreement by and between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and Virtus Investment
Partners, Inc., dated December 18, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed December 19, 2008).

Employee Matters Agreement by and between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and Virtus Investment
Partners, Inc., dated December 18, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed December 19, 2008).

Change in Control Agreement between George R. Aylward and Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.,
effective as of December 31, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s
Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed December 19, 2008).

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Omnibus Incentive and Equity Plan, effective as of December 31,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Form 10,
filed December 19, 2008).

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Non-Qualified Excess Investment Plan, effective as of November 1,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 2 to Form 10,
filed November 14, 2008).

First Amendment to the Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Non-Qualified Excess Investment Plan,
effective as of February 1, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed May 4, 2010).

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Severance Allowance Plan,
effective as of February 2, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February 4, 2009).

Investment and Contribution Agreement by and among Phoenix Investment Management Company,
Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. (f/k/a Virtus Holdings, Inc.), Harris Bankcorp, Inc. and The Phoenix
Companies, Inc., dated as of October 30, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the
Registrant’s Amendment No. 2 to Form 10, filed November 14, 2008).

Annex A to the Investment and Contribution Agreement by and among Phoenix Investment
Management Company, Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. (f/k/a Virtus Holdings, Inc.), Harris
Bankcorp, Inc. and The Phoenix Companies, Inc., dated October 30, 2008 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.10 of the Registrant’s Annual Report, filed March 1, 2011).

Loan Agreement by and between Phoenix Life Insurance Company and Phoenix Investment Partners,
Ltd., dated as of December 30, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant’s
Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed December 19, 2008).

First Amendment, dated as of June 1, 2006, to the Loan Agreement by and between Phoenix Life
Insurance Company and Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd., dated as of December 30, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 4 to Form 10, filed
December 19, 2008).

Loan Agreement by and between Phoenix Life Insurance Company, as Lender, and Virtus
Investment Partners, Inc., as Borrower, dated December 31, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 6, 2009).
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Exhibit
Number

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

*10.19

*10.20

*10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Exhibit Description

Second Amendment, dated as of March 31, 2009, to the Loan Agreement by and between Phoenix
Life Insurance Company, as Lender, and Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., as Borrower, dated as of
December 31, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed April 6, 2009).

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement made by Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. and certain of its
Subsidiaries in favor of Phoenix Life Insurance Company, as Lender, dated as of December 31, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
January 6, 2009).

Transaction Agreement by and among Harris Investment Management, Inc., Phoenix Investment
Counsel, Inc., Harris Financial Corp. and Phoenix Investment Partners, LTD., dated as of March 28,
2006 (incorporated by reference Exhibit 6.01 of the Schedule 13D, filed January 12, 2009 by Bank of
Montreal, Harris Financial Corp. and Harris Bankcorp, Inc.).

Strategic Partnership Agreement by and between Harris Investment Management, Inc. and Phoenix
Investment Counsel, Inc., dated as of March 28, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 6.02 of
the Schedule 13D, filed January 12, 2009 by Bank of Montreal, Harris Financial Corp. and Harris
Bankcorp, Inc.).

Amendment to Tax Separation Agreement, dated April 8, 2009, by and between The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., dated as of December 18, 2008 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Registrant’s Annual Report, filed April 10, 2009).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Omnibus
Incentive and Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, filed May 13, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Units Agreement under the Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Omnibus
Incentive and Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, filed May 13, 2009).

Form of Performance Share Units Agreement under the Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. Omnibus
Incentive and Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 5, 2011).

Credit Agreement among Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., as Borrower, the lenders party thereto and
The Bank of New York Mellon as Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and Lead Arranger, dated as
of September 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the Registrant’s Annual Report,
filed March 1, 2011).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 8, 2010, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2009,
among Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., as Borrower, the lenders party thereto and The Bank of New
York Mellon, as Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and Lead Arranger (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 13, 2010).

Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 2, 2010, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of September 1,
2009, among Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., as Borrower, the lenders party thereto and The Bank
of New York Mellon, as Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and Lead Arranger (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 6, 2010).

Guarantee Agreement among Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., each of the subsidiary guarantors
thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Administrative Agent, dated as of September 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Registrant’s Annual Report, filed March 1, 2011).
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Exhibit
Number

10.26

*10.27

*10.28

10.29

10.30

*10.31
2y
21.1
(23)
23.1
(24)
241
31.1

31.2

32.1

10135

Exhibit Description

Security Agreement among Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., each of the other grantors party thereto
and The Bank of New York Mellon as Administrative Agent, dated as of September 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Registrant’s Annual Report, filed March 1, 2011).

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed November 4, 2009).

Offer Letter from the Registrant to Jeffrey T. Cerutti dated May 18, 2010 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.27 of the Registrant’s Annual Report, filed March 1, 2011).

Conversion and Voting Agreement, dated as of October 27, 2011, between BMO, Inc. (f/k/a Harris
Bankcorp, Inc.) and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 2, 2011).

Amendment No. 3 and Waiver No. 1, dated as of October 27, 2011, to the Credit Agreement, dated
as of September 1, 2009, among the Registrant, as Borrower, the lenders party thereto and The Bank
of New York Mellon, as Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and Lead Arranger.

Offer Letter from the Registrant to Mark S. Flynn dated December 9, 2010.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., Subsidiaries List.

Consents of Experts and Counsel

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney

Power of Attorney.

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following information formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i)
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

*  Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement.

*#% In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the interactive data files in Exhibit 101 to this Annual
Report shall not be deemed to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that section, and shall not be deemed “filed” or part of any registration statement or
prospectus filed for purposes of Section 11 or 12 of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except as shall
be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting under
Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audits (which were integrated audits in 2011 and 2010). We
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 1, 2012



Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2011 2010
($ in thousands, except share data)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ...............iiiinireiiiieinnnnn. $ 45,267 $ 43,948
Trading securities, at fair value .......... .. ... ... . .. .. . . 12,526 8,357
Available-for-sale securities, at fairvalue ............ ... . . . . . ... 2,469 1,916
Accounts receivable . ... ... 27,089 21,136
Deferred taxes, NEt . .. ...ttt 1,593 —
Prepaid expenses and other assets ............ ...t 3,651 3,009
Total CUITENt @SSELS . . . v vttt e e e e e 92,595 78,366
Furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements, net ...................... 5,453 6,557
Intangible assets, Net . . . . ..ottt 52,096 52,977
GoodWILL . ..o 4,795 4,795
Deferred taxes, NEt . . ... 122,099 —
Long-term investments and other assets ($2,826 and $2,340 at fair value,
TESPECHIVELY) . oot 9,341 6,216
TOtal ASSELS . o v v et et $ 286,379 $ 148911
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Accrued compensation and benefits . ......... ... . $ 31,171 $ 19,245
Accounts payable . ... ... 5,031 4,229
Other accrued lHabilities . .. ...t 5,661 5,999
Broker-dealer payable . .. ... .. 4,794 4,687
Total current liabilities . . ... ... .. i 46,657 34,160
Deferred taxes, NEt . ... — 8,785
Long-term debt . . ... ... e 15,000 15,000
Lease obligations and other long-term liabilities ............ ... ... ... ... .. .... 6,350 6,775
Total Habilities . . . ... 68,007 64,720
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 9)
Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (stated at liquidation value), $.01 par
value, 45,000 shares authorized, 35,217 and 35,217 shares issued and outstanding, at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively ......... ... ... 35,217 35,921
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock, $.01 par value, 1,000,000,000 shares authorized; 6,343,295 shares
issued and 6,188,295 shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 6,271,821 shares
issued and 6,251,821 shares outstanding at December 31,2010 .................. 63 63
Additional paid-in capital . . ... ... 909,983 912,942
Accumulated deficit . ... ... .. ... .. (718,083) (863,503)
Accumulated other comprehensive 0SS . ... . . (14) (308)
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 155,000 and 20,000 shares at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively . ....... ... (8,794) (924)
Total stockholders' equity . ... ... ...ttt 183,155 48,270
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity .................... $ 286,379 $ 148,911

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009

$ 97,996 $ 79,651
29,572 23,227
15,324 12,664

1,664 1,610

144,556 117,152

65,234 57,113
33,205 29,939
28,282 26,630
1,635 1,102
2,007 1,920
4,922 7,071

135,285 123,775

9,271 (6,623)

1,131 1,699
77 (279)

1,208 1,420

(983) (1,784)
659 624

(324)  (1,160)

10,155 (6,363)
513 121

9,642  (6,484)
(3,289)  (3,760)
(1,144) —

$ 5209 $(10,244)

$ 087 $ (1.76)

$ 081 $ (1.76)

6,014 5,812

2011
($ in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues
Investment management fees ........... ... .. . .. i $ 135,063
Distribution and service fees . . . ... ... 43,792
Administration and transfer agentfees . .......... ... ... . . . . 23,878
Otherincome and fees .. ... i 1,919
TOtal TEVENUES . . . .ttt e e e e 204,652
Operating Expenses
Employment XPEenses . ... ..ottt et 92,543
Distribution and administration eXpenses . .. ...........c...eemenenen... 60,176
Other Operating EXPEenSES . . ... v vt vttt ettt et e 30,157
Restructuring and SEVErance .. ..............ouuumininennnnenenann.. 2,008
Depreciation and other amortization . . ......... .. .. .. .. .. .. ... 1,847
Intangible asset amortization . ...............c.. .ot 4,018
Total Operating EXPenSeS . . . v v vttt ettt 190,749
Operating Income (LoSS) ............ ... ... i, 13,903
Other Income (Expense)
Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on trading securities . ................ (256)
Other INCOME (EXPENSE) . o . v v v ettt ettt e e e e (194)
Total other income (expense), et . .. ...........oueuenenn.n.. (450)
Interest Income (Expense)
INEETeSt EXPENSE .« . v v v ettt e e (782)
Interest & dividendincome . . ........ ... . ... ... ... ... ... 321
Total interest eXpense, Net ... .........veuerernenenennen... 461)
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes ............................... 12,992
Income tax expense (benefit) ......... .. ... .. . i (132,428)
Net Income (LOSS) . ... ... .. .. . e 145,420
Preferred stockholder dividends .............. .. ... .. ... ... .. (9,482)
Allocation of earnings to preferred stockholders ....................... (24,260)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common Stockholders . ............ $ 111,678
Earnings (Loss) per share—Basic ................................. $ 1798
Earnings (Loss) per share—Diluted ............................... $ 16.34
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding—Basic (in thousands) ......... 6,211
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding—Diluted (in thousands) ....... 6,834

6,437 5,812

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in  Accumulated Comprehensive —Treasury Stock
Shares Par Value Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares Amount Total

($ in thousands)

Balances at December 31,2008 .... 5,772,076 $ 58 $903,825  $(866,661) $(590) — — $ 36,632
Netloss ..........covviunn. — — — (6,484) — — (6,484)
Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized gain on
securities
available-for-sale ....... — — — — 445 — — 445
Total comprehensive loss ... ... (6,039)
Preferred stockholder dividend . . — — (3,760) — — — — (3,760)
Issuance of common stock related
to employee stock
transactions ............... 52,312 — — — — — — —
Stock-based compensation .. ... — — 2,897 — — — — 2,897

Balances at December 31, 2009 . ... 5,824,388 58 902,962 (873,145) (145) — — 29,730
Netincome .................. — — — 9,642 — — — 9,642
Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized loss on
securities
available-for-sale ....... — — — — (163) — — (163)
Total comprehensive income . . . . 9,479
Preferred stockholder dividend . . — — (3,289) — — — — (3,289)
Conversion of Series B preferred
shares .................... 378,446 4 9,859 9,863
Repurchase of common shares ..  (20,000) — — 20,000 (924) (924)
Issuance of common stock related
to employee stock
transactions . .............. 68,987 1 145 — — — — 146
Stock-based compensation . .. .. —_ —_ 3,265 —_ —_ —_ —_ 3,265

Balances at December 31, 2010 .... 6,251,821 63 912,942 (863,503) (308) 20,000 (924) 48,270
Netincome . ................. — — — 145,420 — — — 145,420
Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized gain on
securities
available-for-sale ....... — — — — 294 — — 294
Total comprehensive income . . . . 145,714
Preferred stockholder dividend . . — — (9,482) — — — — (9,482)
Repurchase of common shares .. (135,000) — — — — 135,000 (7,870) (7,870)
Issuance of common stock related
to employee stock
transactions . .............. 71,474 —_ 1,720 —_ —_ —_ —_ 1,720
Stock-based compensation . . ... — — 4,803 — — — — 4,803
Balances at December 31,2011 .... 6,188,295 $ 63 $909,983  $(718,083) $ (14) 155,000 $(8,794) $183,155

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (1I0SS) . ..ottt ittt e e e e $ 145420 $ 9,642 $ (6,484)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and other amortization . ...................uiuiineenennenn.. 1,847 2,007 1,920
Intangible asset amortization . ............ ... ..t 4,018 4,922 7,071
Stock-based compensation . ... ......... .. 5,625 3,894 3,521
Amortization of deferred commissions .............. ... ... .. ... 8,874 5,053 2,755
Payments of deferred commissions .. ..............ouiiiiiniiiin.. (11,392)  (5,636) (3,605)
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of dividends .......... ... ... .. ... ... .... 223 (48) 295
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on trading securities ................... 256 (1,131) (1,699)
Sale (purchase) of trading securities, NEt . .............c.oeuiirneneenennen.. (4,425) 429 (758)
Deferred inCOME taXes .. ... .ottt e (132,477) 218 40
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .. ... ... (5,953) (1,736) (1,313)
Prepaid expenses and other assets .. ............ ... i (945) 650 (342)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... ... ... ... ... ..... 13,047 4,045 (9,250)
Other liabilities . . ... ...t (468) (165) (3,801)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ...................... 23,650 22,144  (11,650)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital eXpenditires . . . ... ..ottt e e e e (743) (323) (824)
Purchase of investment management CONtractS . ................ueuueneenennennn (3,068) (1,419) (1,043)
Purchase of available-for-sale securities ............. ... ... ... i, (259) (118) (128)
Net cash used in investing activities . . .. ..o, (4,070)  (1,860) (1,995)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Preferred stock dividends paid . .......... . .. (10,186)  (3,404) (2,860)
Repurchase of common shares . ............ .. .. i (7,870) (924) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ............. ... ..., 1,345 146 —
Payment of deferred financing costs . ........ ... ... i 41) (367) 931)
Repayment of long-termdebt . ...... ... .. — — (20,000)
Proceeds from long-termdebt ........... ... . ... .. — — 15,000
Contingent consideration for investment management contracts . ................. (789) — —
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of restricted stock units ................ (720) 407) —
Net cash used in financing activities . ......................ou.. (18,261)  (4,956) (8,791)
Net increase (decrease) incash . ............ .. .. i 1,319 15,328 (22,436)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ............. ... ... ... . ... ...... 43,948 28,620 51,056
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endof Year ..................................... $ 45267 $43,948 $ 28,620
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
INCETESt PAIA . . oo ettt et e e e $ 362 $ 472 $ 1,319
Income taxes paid, NEL . ... ..ottt e $ 427 $ 679 $ 368
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Purchase of investment management CONtracts . .......................... $ — $2100 $ —
Non-Cash Financing Activities:
Non-cash furniture, equipment and leasehold improvement additions ......... $ — $ —  $ (3442

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Business

9 < 9 ¢ 9 <

Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. (the “Company,” “we,” “us,” “our” or “Virtus”), a Delaware corporation,
operates in the investment management industry through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. A subsidiary of the Bank
of Montreal (“BMO”), owns 100% of the Company’s outstanding shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
(the “Series B”).

The Company provides investment management and related services to individual and institutional clients
throughout the United States of America. Retail investment management services (including administrative
services) are provided to individuals through products consisting of open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds,
variable insurance funds and separately managed accounts. Separately managed accounts are offered to high
net-worth individuals and include intermediary programs that are sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated
broker-dealers, and individual direct managed account investment services that are sold and administered by the
Company. Institutional investment management services and variable insurance funds are provided primarily to
corporations, multi-employer retirement funds, public employee retirement systems, foundations and
endowments and special purpose funds.

Virtus commenced operations on November 1, 1995 through a reverse merger with Duff & Phelps
Corporation. From 1995 to 2001, we were a majority-owned indirect subsidiary of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
(“PNX”). On January 11, 2001, a subsidiary of PNX acquired the outstanding shares of Virtus Partners, Inc. not
already owned and the Company became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX. On October 31, 2008,
after the sale of convertible preferred stock to BMO, we became an indirect, majority-owned subsidiary of PNX.
On December 31, 2008, PNX distributed 100% of Virtus common stock to PNX stockholders in a spin-off
transaction.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Material intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated. The Company also evaluates for consolidation any variable interest entities
(“VIEs”) in which the Company is the primary beneficiary. A VIE is an entity in which either (a) the equity
investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its own activities without additional financial
support or (b) the group of holders of the equity investment at risk lack certain characteristics of a controlling
financial interest. The primary beneficiary is the entity that has the obligation to absorb a majority of the
expected losses or the right to receive the majority of the residual returns. The Company evaluates whether
entities in which it has an interest are VIEs and whether the Company is the primary beneficiary of any VIEs
identified in its analysis.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets and
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting periods. Management believes the estimates used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segment information

Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 280, Segment Reporting, establishes disclosure requirements
relating to operating segments in annual and interim financial statements. Business or operating segments are
defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is regularly
evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance.
The Company operates in one business segment, namely as an asset manager providing investment management
and distribution services for individual and institutional clients. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer are the Company’s chief operating decision makers. Although the Company does make
some disclosure regarding assets under management and other asset flows by product, the Company’s
determination that it operates in one business segment is based on the fact the same investment and operational
resources support multiple products, they have the same regulatory framework and that the Company’s chief
operating decision makers review the Company’s financial performance at a consolidated level. All of the
products and services provided relate to investment management and are subject to a similar regulatory
framework and environment. Investment organizations within the Company are generally not aligned with
specific product lines. Investment professionals may manage both retail and institutional products.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks and highly liquid money market mutual fund
investments.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of investments in the Company’s sponsored mutual funds and other publicly
traded securities which are carried at fair value in accordance with ASC 320, Investments—Debt and Equity
Securities. Marketable securities transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Mutual fund investments held by
the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary are classified as assets held for trading purposes. The Company provides
the initial capital to funds or separately managed account strategies for the purpose of creating track records. For
the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recognized a realized loss less than $(0.1) million. For the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized realized gains and (losses) of $0.3 million
and $(1.5) million, respectively. Other mutual fund investments held by the Company are considered to be
available-for-sale, with any unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of income taxes, reported as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Marketable securities are marked to market
based on the respective publicly quoted net asset values of the funds or market prices of the equity securities or
bonds.

On a quarterly basis, the Company conducts reviews to assess whether other-than-temporary impairment
exists on its available-for-sale marketable securities. Other-than-temporary declines in value may exist when the
fair value of a marketable security has been below the carrying value for an extended period of time. If an other-
than-temporary decline in value is determined to exist, the unrealized investment loss, net of tax is recognized in
the consolidated statements of operations in the period in which the other-than-temporary decline in value occurs,
as well as an accompanying permanent adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income.
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Deferred Commissions

Deferred commissions, which are included in long term investments and other assets, are commissions paid
to broker-dealers on sales of mutual fund shares. Deferred commissions are recovered by the receipt of monthly
asset-based distributor fees from the mutual funds or contingent deferred sales charges received upon redemption
of shares within one to five years, depending on the fund share class. The deferred costs resulting from the sale of
shares are amortized on a straight-line basis over a one to five-year period, depending on the fund share class, or
until the underlying shares are redeemed. Deferred commissions are periodically assessed for impairment and
additional amortization expense is recorded, as appropriate.

Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements, Net

Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years for furniture and office equipment, and 3 to 5
years for computer equipment and software. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the
remaining estimated lives of the related leases or lives of the improvements. Major renewals or betterments are
capitalized and recurring repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Leasehold improvements that are
funded upfront by a landlord and are constructed for the benefit of the Company are recorded at cost and
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the minimum term of the lease and a corresponding lease incentive
liability in the same amount is also recorded and amortized over the same period.

Leases

The Company currently leases office space and equipment under various leasing arrangements. Leases are
classified as either capital leases or operating leases, as appropriate. Most lease agreements are classified as
operating leases and contain renewal options, rent escalation clauses or other inducements provided by the lessor.
Rent expense under noncancelable operating leases with scheduled rent increases or rent holidays is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease term, beginning on the date of initial possession or the effective date of
the lease agreement. The amount of the excess of straight-line rent expense over scheduled payments is recorded
as a deferred liability. Build-out allowances and other such lease incentives are recorded as deferred credits, and
are amortized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of rent expense beginning in the period they are deemed to be
earned, which generally coincides with the effective date of the lease.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Definite-lived intangible assets are comprised of acquired investment advisory contracts. These assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of such assets, which range from 1 to 16 years.
Definite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for impairment on an ongoing basis under GAAP whenever events
or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the definite-lived intangible asset may not be fully
recoverable. The Company determines if impairment has occurred by comparing estimates of future
undiscounted cash flows to the carrying value of assets. Assets are considered impaired, and impairment is
recorded, if the carrying value exceeds the expected future undiscounted cash flows.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of acquisitions and mergers over the identified net
assets and liabilities acquired. In accordance with ASC 350, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is
not being amortized. A single reporting unit has been identified for the purpose of assessing potential future
impairments of goodwill. An impairment analysis of goodwill is performed annually or more frequently, if
warranted by events or changes in circumstances affecting the Company’s business. In September 2011, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2011-08,
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Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Testing Goodwill for Impairment (the revised standard) which amends the rules for testing goodwill for
impairment. Under the new rules, an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether
the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, an
entity determines it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, then performing the two-step impairment test is unnecessary. We early adopted ASU 2011-08 for our
2011 annual goodwill impairment test.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are comprised of acquired, closed-end fund investment advisory contracts.
These assets are tested for impairment annually and when events or changes in circumstances indicate the assets
might be impaired. Our fiscal 2011 and 2010 annual indefinite-lived intangible assets impairment analyses did
not result in any impairment charges.

When we perform a quantitative assessment of intangible assets and goodwill impairment, the determination
of the fair value of these assets involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions include assets under management and revenue growth rates and operating margins used to calculate
projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, future economic and market conditions and
determination of appropriate market comparables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to
be reasonable but that are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those
estimates.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is accounted for under the cost method and is included as a deduction from equity in the
Stockholders' Equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Upon any subsequent resale, the treasury stock
account is reduced by the cost of such stock using the average cost method.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company implemented a share repurchase program allowing for the
repurchase of up to 350,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the terms of the program, the
Company may repurchase its common stock from time to time in its discretion through open market repurchases
and/or privately negotiated transactions, depending on price and prevailing market and business conditions. The
program is intended to return capital to shareholders and to generally offset shares issued under equity-based
plans. The program may be suspended or terminated at any time and the authorization for the program expires
three years from inception. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has repurchased a total of 155,000 common
shares for $8.8 million.

Collateralized Debt and Loan Obligations

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, our affiliates Virtus Investment Advisers, Inc. or Newfleet Assset
Management, LLC (formerly known as SCM Advisors, LLC) served as the investment advisors for our
collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs”) and our collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”). The CLOs and CDOs,
which are investment trusts, had aggregate assets of $1.0 billion, $1.0 billion and $0.9 billion at December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, which were primarily invested in a variety of fixed income securities. The
CLOs and CDOs reside in bankruptcy remote, special purpose entities in which the Company provides neither
recourse nor guarantees. The Company has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of these VIEs as
defined by ASC 810, Consolidation. Accordingly, the Company’s financial exposure to these CLOs and CDOs is
limited only to the investment management fees it earns, which totaled $3.3 million, $4.6 million and $2.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees, distribution and service fees and administration and transfer agent fees are
recorded as revenue during the period in which services are performed. Investment management fees, which are
accrued monthly, are earned based upon a percentage of assets under management, and are paid pursuant to the
terms of the respective investment management contracts, which generally require monthly or quarterly payment.
Management fees for structured finance products, such as CLOs and CDOs, that accrue as services are rendered,
but are subordinate to other interests and payable only if certain financial criteria of the underlying collateral are
met, are recorded as revenue when the structured finance products are in compliance with required financial
criteria and collectability is reasonably assured.

Gross investment management fees earned on long-term open-end mutual funds range from 0.35% to 1.50%
of average assets under management, depending on the type of fund. Investment management fees earned on
closed-end funds range from 0.50% to 1.00% of average assets under management. Investment management fees
earned on money market funds range from 0.10% to 0.14% of average assets under management. Investment
management fees earned on separately managed accounts and institutional accounts are negotiated and are based
primarily on asset size, portfolio complexity and individual needs and range from 0.08% to 1.30%. Investment
management fees earned on variable insurance funds range from 0.40% to 0.90% of average assets under
management. Investment management fees earned on structured finance products range from 0.08% to 0.45% of
the principal outstanding. The Company accounts for investment management fees in accordance with ASC 605,
Revenue Recognition, and has recorded its management fees net of fees paid to unaffiliated advisors. Amounts
paid to unaffiliated advisors for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $36.4 million, $24.0
million and $19.0 million, respectively.

Distribution and service fees are earned based on a percentage of assets under management and are paid
monthly pursuant to the terms of the respective distribution and service fee contracts. Underwriter fees are sales-
based charges on sales of certain class A-share mutual funds.

Administration and transfer agent fees consist of fund administration fees, transfer agent fees and fiduciary
fees. Fund administration fees are earned based on the average daily assets in the funds. Transfer agent fees are
earned based on the average daily assets in the funds. Fiduciary fees are recorded monthly based on the number
of 401(k) accounts. The Company utilizes outside service providers to perform some of the functions related to
fund administration and transfer agent services. Effective January 1, 2010, a new fund administration agreement
was executed with our open-end mutual funds. Under the prior agreement, the fees, which covered all fund
administration services, were paid directly to the Company by the funds and were recorded as revenue. A portion
of the fees received by the Company were remitted to third-party service providers for services performed on
behalf of the funds, and were recorded as a distribution and administration expense. As a result of the agreement,
the funds now directly contract for the third-party services and fees paid by the funds directly to the service
providers are not reflected as either revenue or expenses of the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2009,
$6.2 million of payments to third-party service providers were recorded as revenue and expense of the Company.
For the year ended December 31, 2009 transfer agent fees, which were previously reported net of payments to
third-party service providers, were $4.3 million.

Other income and fees consist primarily of redemption income on the early redemption of class B, C, and
T-share mutual funds and brokerage commissions and fees earned for distribution of nonaffiliated products.
Commissions earned (and related expenses) are recorded on a trade date basis and are computed based upon
contractual agreements.
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Adbvertising and Promotion

The Company expenses all advertising and promotion costs as incurred. Advertising and promotional
expense was $0.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and are classified in other operating expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense in accordance with ASC 718,
Compensation—Stock Compensation, which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense
for share-based awards based on the estimated fair value on the date of grant. The fair value of each option award
is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The Black-Scholes option
valuation model incorporates assumptions as to dividend yield, volatility, an appropriate risk-free interest rate
and the expected life of the option.

Restricted stock units (“RSUs”) are stock awards that entitle the holder to receive shares of the Company’s
common stock as the award vests over time. The fair value of each restricted stock unit award is estimated using
the intrinsic value method which is based on the fair market value price on the date of grant. Compensation
expense for restricted stock awards is recognized ratably over the vesting period on a straight-line basis.

Income Taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and, in particular, any
valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets. Our methodology for determining the realizability
of deferred tax assets involves estimates of future taxable income from our operations and consideration of
available tax planning strategies and actions that would be implemented by us, if necessary, as well as the
expiration dates and amounts of carryforwards related to net operating losses and capital losses. These estimates
are projected through the life of the related deferred tax assets based on assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable and consistent with demonstrated operating results. The projection also includes consideration of the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities that are in the same period and jurisdiction and are of the same character as the
temporary differences that gave rise to the deferred tax assets. Changes in future operating results not currently
forecasted may have a significant impact on the realization of deferred tax assets. During 2011, the Company
determined that historical operating results and future projections gave rise to sufficient positive evidence to
conclude that it is more likely than not that a substantial portion of its deferred tax assets are realizable.

Uncertain tax positions taken by the Company are accounted for under ASC 740, Income Taxes, which may
require certain benefits taken on a tax return to not be recognized in the financial statements when there are the
potential for certain tax positions to be successfully challenged by the taxing authorities.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports all changes in comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income includes net income (loss) attributable
to common shareholders and unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as available-for-sale (net of
tax).

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings per Share. Net income per
common share reflects application of the two-class method. Basic EPS excludes dilution for potential common
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stock issuances and is computed by dividing basic net income available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential
dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into
common stock. For the calculation of diluted EPS, the basic weighted average number of shares is increased by
the dilutive effect of restricted stock units and common stock options using the treasury stock method.

The Company’s Series B shareholders are currently entitled to participate in any dividends paid on shares of
our common stock on a pro rata basis with the holders of our common stock. Under the two-class method, during
periods of net income, participating securities are allocated a proportional share of net income. During periods of
net loss, no effect is given to participating securities since they do not share in the losses of the Company.
Participating securities have the effect of diluting both basic and diluted EPS during periods of net income.

Fair Value Measurements and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The FASB defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures establishes a framework for measuring fair value and a valuation hierarchy based
upon the transparency of inputs used in the valuation of an asset or liability. Classification within the hierarchy is
based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The valuation hierarchy
contains three levels as follows:

Level 1—Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. Level 1 assets and liabilities may
include debt securities and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and
significant value drivers are observable in active markets. Level 2 inputs may include observable market
data such as closing market prices provided by independent pricing services after considering factors such
as the yields or prices of comparable investments of comparable quality, coupon, maturity, call rights and
other potential prepayments, terms and type, reported transactions, indications as to values from dealers and
general market conditions. In addition, pricing services may determine the fair value of equity securities
traded principally in foreign markets when it has been determined that there has been a significant trend in
the U.S. equity markets or in index futures trading. Level 2 assets and liabilities may include debt and equity
securities, purchased loans and over-the-counter derivative contracts whose fair value is determined using a
pricing model without significant unobservable market data inputs.

Level 3—Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or
significant value drivers are unobservable in active exchange markets.

At December 31, 2011, all of the Company’s recurring fair value measurements, which consist solely of
mutual funds and marketable securities, represent Level 1 fair value measurements, which as defined in ASC
820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities equal or
approximate fair value based on the short-term nature of these instruments. The estimated fair value of long-term
debt at December 31, 2011, which has a variable interest rate, approximates its carrying value. Marketable
securities are reflected in the financial statements at fair value based upon publicly quoted market prices.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs, and the
International Accounting Standards Board issued International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) 13, Fair
Value Measurement (together, the new guidance). The new guidance results in a consistent definition of fair
value and common requirements for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between U.S. GAAP and
IFRS. The new guidance changes some fair value measurement principles and disclosure requirements. The
Company is required to adopt the amendments in this ASU prospectively in the quarter ending March 31, 2012.
Early adoption is prohibited under this ASU. Adoption of this ASU is not expected to have an impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which eliminates
the current option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the statement of changes in equity
and allows an entity to elect to present items of net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous
statement or in two separate, but consecutive, statements. The Company is required to adopt this ASU as of
January 1, 2012. Early adoption is permitted, but full retrospective application is required under this ASU.
Adoption of this ASU is not expected to have an impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment (the revised
standard) which provides entities with the option of performing a qualitative assessment to determine whether
further impairment testing is necessary. The revised standard allows an entity to choose to perform the qualitative
assessment on none, some, or all of its reporting units. The Company is required to adopt this ASU for annual
and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. Early
adoption is permitted if an entity has not yet issued its financial statements for the period that includes its annual
test date. The Company has early adopted and applied this standard as of December 31, 2011.

3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are summarized as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Definite-lived intangible assets:
INVeStmeEnt CONLTACES . . . . o\ v ot et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 269,489 $ 271,568
Accumulated amortization . ............ ...t (249,809) (248,081)
Definite-lived intangible assets, net ................ ... i, 19,680 23,487
Indefinite-lived intangible assets . ................................ 32,416 29,490
Total intangible assets, Net ... ......uiriirn e, $ 52,096 $ 52977

Virtus Total Return Fund

On December 9, 2011, the Company acquired the rights to advise the former DCA Total Return Fund from
Dividend Capital Investments LLC (“DCI”). Upon adoption, the fund was renamed to the Virtus Total Return
Fund (NYSE:DCA). The estimated fair value of the acquired contract of $2.9 million was recorded as an
indefinite-lived intangible asset in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of the adoption date. The
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transaction was accounted for as an asset purchase and accordingly, transaction costs of $0.1 million were
capitalized as of the adoption date.

Variable Insurance Funds

On November 5, 2010, the Company acquired the rights to advise and distribute the former Phoenix Edge
Series Funds (excluding certain of the funds to be merged into a third-party variable insurance trust) from
Phoenix Variable Advisors, Inc. (“PVA”). Under the terms of the agreement, during the three years following the
closing, the Company is required to make quarterly payments to PVA based upon fixed percentages of the
average assets under management. The estimated fair value of the acquired contracts of $2.1 million and a
corresponding contingent liability were recorded in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of the
adoption date. The transaction was accounted for as an asset purchase and accordingly, transaction costs of $0.6
million were capitalized as of the adoption date. The acquired contracts and related costs are being amortized on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of sixteen years.

Activity in intangible assets and goodwill is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Intangible assets
Balance, beginning of period ....................... $52,977  $54,844  $60,985
Purchases ...... ... . . 3,068 3,055 930
AmOrtization . .. ......v it (3,949) (4,922) (7,071)
Balance,end of period ........................... $52,096  $52,977  $54,844
Goodwill
Balance, beginning of period ....................... $ 4795 $ 4,795 $ 4,795
Balance,end of period ........................... $ 4795 $ 4,795 $ 4,795

Definite-lived intangible asset amortization for the next five years is estimated as follows: 2012—
$3.8 million, 2013—$3.8 million, 2014—3$3.7 million, 2015—%$3.1 million, 2016—$2.2 million and thereafter—
$3.0 million. At December 31, 2011, the weighted average estimated remaining amortization period for definite-
lived investment contracts is 6.5 years.
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4. Marketable Securities

The Company’s marketable securities consist of both trading (including securities held by a broker-dealer
affiliate) and available-for-sale securities. The composition of the Company’s marketable securities is
summarized as follows:

December 31, 2011
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Loss Gain Value
($ in thousands)
Trading:

Sponsored mutual funds and variable insurance funds ........ $ 9,195 $(1,263) $1,048 $ 8,980

Equity Securities . ...........ouuniiii i 3,434 3) 115 3,546
Available-for-sale:

Sponsored closed-end funds ............ ... ... . . ... 2,240 (38) 267 2,469
Total marketable securities . ................ .. ... $14,869  $(1,304) $1,430  $14,995
December 31, 2010

Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Loss Gain Value
($ in thousands)
Trading:

Sponsored mutual funds . .......... . $ 8368 $(1,169) $1,158 $ 8,357
Available-for-sale:

Sponsored closed-end funds ............ ... .. .. .. ... 1,981 (68) 3 1,916
Total marketable securities ............................... $10,349  $(1,237) $1,161  $10,273

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, all of the Company’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value,
which consist solely of mutual funds and marketable securities, utilize a Level 1 valuation technique which, as
defined in ASC 820, is quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

5. Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements are summarized as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Furniture and office equipment ... .......... ... .. . $ 3,157 $ 7,673
Computer equipment and SOftware . ........... .. i 4,906 4,869
Leasehold improvements . .. ......... oottt 5,076 5,618
13,139 18,160
Accumulated depreciation and amortization . ................iuiniinti .. (7,686) (11,603)
Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements, net ............................. $ 5453 $ 6,557

F-16



Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

6. Long-Term Investments and Other Assets

Long-term investments and other assets include deferred commissions, equity method investments, deferred
compensation plan assets and security deposits. A summary of the significant items included in this caption is as
follows:

Deferred Commissions

Deferred commissions are commissions paid to broker-dealers on sales of mutual fund shares. Deferred
commissions are recovered by the receipt of monthly asset-based distributor fees from the mutual funds or
contingent deferred sales charges received upon redemption of shares within one to five years, depending on the
fund share class. The deferred costs resulting from the sale of shares are amortized on a straight-line basis over a
one to five-year period, depending on the fund share class, or until the underlying shares are redeemed. Deferred
commissions were $5.7 million and $3.2 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Inverness Partnerships

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had a 23.3% interest in Inverness/Phoenix Capital LLC
(“IPC”). IPC is a joint venture with Inverness Management LLC, an unrelated third-party. IPC acts as a general
partner to a private equity limited partnership, Inverness /Phoenix Partners LP (“IPP”), in which the Company
also owns an interest. IPP is approaching the end of its contractual life and will be dissolved after the disposition
of its single remaining portfolio investment. IPC and IPP are accounted for using the equity method. The
Company’s share of the earnings of unconsolidated investments is included in other income in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s investment in IPP was $0.5 million and $0.3 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2010, the Company had a liability of $1.2 million recorded in other accrued
liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect a negative capital balance associated with the
Company’s general partnership interest in IPC as the Company may be required to refund distributions
previously received, depending on the future performance of the remaining investment held in IPP. On April 29,
2011 the Company satisfied its obligation under the partnership agreement to refund previously received
distributions and accordingly, no liability is recorded at December 31, 2011.

Deferred Compensation

The Company has a non-qualified retirement plan (the “Excess Incentive Plan”) that allows certain
employees to voluntarily defer compensation. Under the Excess Incentive Plan, participants elect to defer a
portion of their compensation which the Company then contributes into a trust. Each participant is responsible
for designating investment options for assets they contribute and the ultimate distribution paid to each participant
reflects any gains or losses on the assets realized while in the trust. The Company holds Excess Incentive Plan
assets in a rabbi trust, which is subject to the claims of the Company’s creditors in the event of the Company’s
bankruptcy or insolvency. Assets held in trust, included in long-term investments and other assets and the
associated obligation to participants, included in lease obligations and other long-term liabilities in the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, were $2.8 million and $2.3 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Assets held in trust consist of mutual funds and are recorded at fair value, utilizing Level 1
valuation techniques.
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7. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

($ in thousands)
Current

Federal ......... ... .. ... . . . . . . .. $ — $— $—

State .. 49 467 81
Total current tax eXpense . . . .. .v.vvvenenennenen .. 49 467 81
Deferred

Federal ....... ... ... ... . . (104,227)  (172) —

State .. (28,250) 218 40
Total deferred tax expense (benefit) .................... (132,477) 46 40
Total expense (benefit) for income taxes ................ $(132,428) $513  $121

The following presents a reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income taxes computed at the federal
statutory rate to the provision (benefit) for income taxes recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

($ in thousands)

Tax at Statutory rate . ..................couo.... $ 4,547 35% $ 3,554 35% $(2,227) (35)%
State taxes, net of federal benefit ................. 6,222 48% 442 4% 70 1%

Affiliated stock loss ......... ... ... ... ........ 3,283 25% (72,397) (713)% — — %

Adjustments to tax accruals ..................... — — % — — % 1,313 21%

Contingency reServe . ... ......uveuereunenenen... 27911 215% — — % — — %

Change in valuation allowance . .................. (174,527) (1,343)% 69,109 681% 836 13%

Other,net . ..........c.ii ... 136 1% (195) ()% 129 2%

Income tax expense (benefit) .................... $(132,428) (1,0199% $ 513 5% $ 121 2%
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Deferred taxes resulted from temporary differences between the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The tax effects of temporary differences are as
follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Intangible assets . .. ... $ 65380 $ 68,449
Net operating loSSes . . ..o .vvut et 63,886 16,506
Capital loss carryforward .. ...... ... .. .. .. .. . ... 1,760 94,353
Other . ... . e 9,139 3,660
Gross deferred tax asSets .. ... 140,165 182,968
Valuation allowance . ............... it (3,336) (177,863)
Gross deferred tax assets after valuation allowance ............ 136,829 5,105
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets .. ... i (12,131) (12,827)
Other InVestments . .............uuiutiiie i (1,006) (1,063)
Gross deferred tax liabilities .............................. (13,137) (13,890)
Deferred tax assets (liability), net .......................... $123,692 $ (8,785)

In prior reporting periods, the Company maintained a valuation allowance on substantially all of its net
deferred tax assets since the likelihood of realization of those assets were less than more likely than not. At each
reporting date, the Company evaluates the positive and negative evidence used to determine the likelihood of
realization of all its deferred tax assets. During 2011, the Company determined that historical operating results
and future projections gave rise to sufficient positive evidence to conclude that it is more likely than not that a
substantial portion of its deferred tax assets are realizable. As a result, the Company released valuation allowance
of $174.5 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011. The Company maintained a valuation allowance
in the amount of $3.3 million at December 31, 2011 relating to deferred tax assets on items of a capital nature as
well as certain state deferred tax assets where the Company determined that at the current level of projected
taxable income the realization of such assets prior to statutory expiration continued to be less than more likely
than not.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, due to known changes in the Company’s stockholder base,
management conducted a study to evaluate whether a change of control had occurred as defined under Internal
Revenue Code Section 382 (“Section 382”). Section 382 imposes limits on the amount of annual net operating
losses and realized built in losses that can be used to offset taxable income in certain situations where a taxable
entity experiences a greater than 50% change in ownership. Management concluded that a change of control
occurred as of December 31, 2009. Based on the Company’s filing position in 2010, the Section 382 limitations
did not result in the loss or limitation in the availability of the use of pre-change federal net operating loss
carryovers; however, the change in control did result in a reduction in the amount of intangible asset and realized
built in loss amortization that the Company can deduct in computing future federal taxable income.

In 2011, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) issued a favorable private letter ruling (“PLR”) to the
Company concerning the treatment of a loss related to the dissolution of an inactive subsidiary. As a result of the
PLR, the Company recharacterized the $93.0 million of deferred tax assets previously reported in 2010 as capital
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in character to $89.0 million in deferred tax assets relating to net operating losses and intangible assets, with $4.0
million being rendered not utilizable due to Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limitations. In connection with
this, the Company derecognized approximately $32.0 million of previously recorded gross deferred tax assets
and related offsetting valuation allowance to account for uncertainties related to the loss.

The PLR relies on certain facts, assumptions and representations from management regarding the past
conduct of the Company’s businesses and other matters. If any of these facts, assumptions or representations
about the existence of a deductible loss are successfully challenged by the IRS, the Company could be subject to
significant tax liabilities to the extent the reported loss represented a reduction to the Company's tax liability in
any given year. Notwithstanding the PLR, the IRS could also recharacterize the ordinary loss as a capital loss
should it successfully challenge the validity of the facts, assumptions, or representations made as part of the PLR
request.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had deferred tax assets of $52.8 and $0.4 million related to net
operating losses and capital losses, respectively, for federal income tax purposes. The related federal net
operating loss carryovers are scheduled to begin to expire in the year 2019. The related federal capital loss
carryovers are scheduled to begin to expire beginning in year 2014. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had
deferred tax assets of $11.0 million and $1.4 million related to net operating losses and capital losses,
respectively, for state income tax purposes. The related state net operating loss carryovers are scheduled to begin
to expire in the year 2013. The related state capital loss carryovers are scheduled to begin to expire in the year
2011.

The Company recorded a valuation allowance of $3.3 million and $177.9 million at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, with respect to certain temporary differences because management believes it is more likely
than not that the Company will not realize the deferred tax assets associated with those basis differences.

Activity in unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Balance, beginning of year . ................ ..., $ — $— $—
Decrease related to tax positions taken in prior years ......... — — —
Increase related to positions taken in the current year ......... 34,139 — —
Balance,endof year ........ ... ... $34,139  $— $—

The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties related to income taxes as a component of income

tax expense. The Company recorded no interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions at December 31,
2011, 2010 and 20009. If recognized, $32.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits would impact the effective tax
rate. Based upon the timing and status of its current examinations by taxing authorities, the Company does not
believe that it is reasonably possible that any changes to the balance of unrecognized tax benefits occurring
within the next 12 months will result in a significant change to the results of operations, financial condition or
liquidity. In addition, the Company does not anticipate that there will be additional payments made or refunds
received within the next 12 months with respect to the years under audit.

The earliest federal tax year open for examination is 2008. The earliest open years in the Company’s major
state tax jurisdictions are 1998 and 2005 for Connecticut and New York, respectively. The Company does not
believe that any adjustment from any open tax year will result in a material change in the Company’s financial
position.
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8. Long-Term Debt
Credit Facility

The Company has a senior secured revolving credit facility (“Credit Facility”), as amended through
October 27, 2011, that matures in September 2013. The Credit Facility provides borrowing capacity of up to
$30.0 million, with a $2.0 million sub-limit for the issuance of standby letters of credit. Borrowings under the
Credit Facility may not at any time exceed a minimum asset coverage ratio of 1.25, which in general represents
the sum of the Company’s cash, marketable securities and investment management fee receivables, excluding
certain specified assets, to total outstanding indebtedness (including outstanding letters of credit). The Credit
Facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $15.0
million was outstanding under the Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had the capacity to
draw on the remaining amount of the Credit Facility.

Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest at an annual rate equal to, at the Company’s
option, either LIBOR for interest periods of 1, 2, 3 or 6 months or an alternate base rate (as defined in the Credit
Facility agreement), plus, in each case, an applicable margin, effective August 2, 2010, that ranges from 1.25% to
3.00%. At December 31, 2011, the interest rate in effect for the Credit Facility was 2.625%, exclusive of the
amortization of deferred financing costs. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, the Company is also required to
pay certain fees, including an annual commitment fee of 0.50% on undrawn amounts and a letter of credit
participation fee at an annual rate equal to the applicable margin as well as any applicable fronting fees, each of
which is payable quarterly in arrears.

The Credit Facility contains customary restrictive covenants, including covenants that restrict (subject in
certain instances to minimum thresholds or exceptions) the ability of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries
to incur additional indebtedness, create liens, merge or make acquisitions, dispose of assets, enter into leases,
sale/leasebacks or acquisitions of capital stock, and make distributions, dividends, loans, guarantees, investments
or capital expenditures, among other things. The payment of dividends may not exceed 75.0% of free cash flow
(as defined in the Credit Facility agreement) for any quarter and are also restricted from being declared and paid
if a default or event of default exists. On October 27, 2011, the Company amended the Credit Facility to exclude
closed end fund structuring costs from the definition of free cash flow and to allow during the period from
October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 one or more restricted additional payments in an aggregate amount not in
excess of $3.0 million. In addition, the Credit Facility contains certain financial covenants, the most restrictive of
which include, effective August 2, 2010: (i) minimum required consolidated net worth as of any fiscal quarter
end (total stockholders’ equity plus the liquidation preference of outstanding convertible preferred shares) to be
at least $65.0 million, plus adjustments for net income, redemptions of convertible securities and equity
issuances, if any, after September 1, 2009, (ii) minimum consolidated assets under management (excluding
money market funds) of $15.0 billion as of each quarter end through March 31, 2012 and $18.0 billion as of any
quarter end thereafter, (iii) minimum liquid assets having a fair value not less than $7.5 million, (iv) a minimum
interest coverage ratio (generally, adjusted EBITDA to interest expense as defined in and for the period specified
in the Credit Facility agreement) of at least 3.00:1, and (v) a leverage ratio (generally, total indebtedness as of
any date to adjusted EBITDA as defined in and for the period specified in the Credit Facility agreement) of no
greater than 2.75:1. For purposes of the Credit Facility, adjusted EBITDA generally means, for any period, net
income of the Company before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization expense, and
excluding non-cash stock-based compensation, unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses, certain severance,
and certain non-cash non-recurring gains and losses as described in and specified under the Credit Facility
agreement. At December 31, 2011, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants.

The Credit Facility agreement also contains customary provisions regarding events of default which could
result in an acceleration of amounts due under the facility, including failure to pay principal or interest when due,
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failure to satisfy or comply with covenants, change of control, certain judgments, invalidation of liens, and cross-
default to other debt obligations.

Notes Payable

Prior to the Credit Facility, the Company entered into various note payable and debt agreements with PNX.
Interest was payable in arrears at annual rates of 9.00% and 6.55% for the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively. In connection with the Company’s entry into the Credit Facility, on September 1, 2009 the
Company repaid the previously outstanding $18.0 million note payable principal in full along with unpaid and
accrued interest using $15.0 million of proceeds from the Credit Facility and $3.0 million of cash on hand.

9. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Matters

The Company is regularly involved in litigation and arbitration as well as examinations and investigations
by various regulatory bodies, including the SEC, involving its compliance with, among other things, securities
laws, client investment guidelines, laws governing the activities of broker-dealers and other laws and regulations
affecting its products and other activities. Legal and regulatory matters of this nature may involve activities as an
employer, issuer of securities, investor, investment advisor, broker-dealer or taxpayer. We cannot predict the
ultimate outcome of such legal claims or matters or in certain instances provide reasonable ranges of potential
losses. As of the date of this report, the Company believes that the outcomes of its legal or regulatory matters are
not likely, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial
condition. However, in the event of unexpected subsequent developments and given the inherent unpredictability
of these legal and regulatory matters, there can be no assurance that the Company’s assessment of any claim,
dispute, regulatory examination or investigation or other legal matter will reflect the ultimate outcome and an
adverse outcome in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations or cash flows in particular quarterly or annual periods.

Variable Insurance Funds

On November 5, 2010, the Company acquired the rights to advise and distribute the former Phoenix Edge
Series Funds (excluding certain of the funds to be merged into a third-party variable insurance trust) from
Phoenix Variable Advisors, Inc. (“PVA”). Under the terms of the agreement, during the three years following the
closing, the Company is required to make quarterly payments to PVA based upon fixed percentages of the
average assets under management. The estimated fair value of the contingent liability was recorded in other
accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of the
adoption date.

Insight Funds

The Company acquired the rights to advise, distribute and administer the Insight Funds from Harris
Investment Management, Inc. (“Harris”), a subsidiary of BMO, in May 2006 for $4.1 million plus $1.3 million of
transaction costs. As discussed further in Note 12, Harris is a related party of the Company. Under the terms of
the agreement, for the first four years after becoming the advisor of the Insight Funds, the Company agreed to
pay Harris 50.0% of the net profit earned by the Company on the money market funds acquired from Harris. The
Company made cumulative annual payments to Harris related to this agreement totaling $4.0 million through the
year ended December 31, 2010. The final annual payment of $0.8 million, for the measurement period ended in
May 2010, was made on August 18, 2010. The initial purchase price and these additional money market
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payments have been allocated to identified intangible assets and are being amortized over periods ranging from
one to five years. Harris continues to manage the majority of the Insight Funds as sub-advisor.

Additionally, the Company entered into a strategic partnership agreement with Harris, whereby Harris
would be available to the Company as a sub-advisor for non-Harris funds. Harris was subsequently appointed a
sub-advisor to certain funds. The agreement includes a provision that requires the Company to pay on the fifth
anniversary of the closing date an amount equal to the lesser of (i) $20.0 million, less certain cash flows paid to
Harris from the closing date to the fifth anniversary of the closing date or (ii) $35.0 million, adjusted by a factor
representing the percentage of average assets that are sourced by Harris after five years. As of December 31,
2011, there was no contingent liability under this agreement.

Other Matters

The Company indirectly guarantees the activities of its broker-dealer subsidiary. In addition, in the ordinary
course of business the Company may enter into contracts with third-parties pursuant to which the third-parties
provide services on the Company’s behalf or the Company provides services on behalf of the third-parties. In
certain circumstances, the Company may agree to indemnify the third-party service provider. The terms of
indemnification may vary from contract to contract and the amount of indemnification liability, if any, cannot be
determined. The Company made no payments to third-parties in 2011, 2010 or 2009 and has recorded no
liabilities with regard to commitments as of December 31, 2011. The Company believes that any risk of loss for
direct or indirect guarantees is not probable and would not have a material impact on the Company’s operating
results or financial position.

Lease Commitments

The Company incurred rental expenses, primarily related to office space, on operating leases of $2.4
million, $2.5 million and $2.8 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and received income from subleases
of $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Minimum aggregate rental
payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of
one year as of December 31, 2011 are as follows: $2.0 million in 2012; $2.2 million in 2013; $1.9 million in
2014; $2.0 million in 2015; $1.4 million in 2016; and $4.1 million thereafter.

10. Capital and Reserve Requirement Information

As a broker-dealer registered with the SEC, our subsidiary VP Distributors, LLC (“VPD”) is subject to
certain rules regarding minimum net capital. VPD operates pursuant to Rule 15¢3-1, paragraph (a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, accordingly, is required to maintain a ratio of “aggregate indebtedness” to
“net capital” (as those items are defined in the rule) which may not exceed 15.0 to 1.0.

Aggregate indebtedness, net capital, and the resultant ratio for VPD were as follows:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Aggregate indebtedness ........................... $17,527  $19,315 $13,142
Netcapital ......... ... .. .. .. . i 10,874 4,812 5,802
Ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital . ......... 1.6to 1 40to 1 23to01

VPD’s minimum required net capital at December 31, 2011 and 2010 based on its aggregate indebtedness
on those dates was $1.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively.
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The operations of VPD do not include the physical handling of securities or the maintenance of open
customer accounts. Accordingly, VPD is exempt from the reserve provisions of Rule 15¢3-3 under the exemption
allowed by paragraph (k)(2)(i) of such rule.

11. Restructuring and Severance

During 2008, the Company consolidated certain overlapping investment strategies and closed two locations,
resulting in employee headcount reductions and lease abandonments. Lease losses associated with various
abandoned office space have been recognized representing the Company’s best estimate of the present value of
the amount owed under the leases reduced by sub-lease income. The activity in the accrued restructuring liability
related to the 2008 restructuring activities for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is summarized
as follows:

2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Beginning unpaid balance ............................. $260 $1,095 $1,835
Restructuring expense related to lease abandonment ........ — — —
Costs paid . . .o vt (260) (835) (740)
Ending unpaid balance . ........... ... ... ... .. $— $ 260  $1,095

In fourth quarter of 2011, the Company recorded restructuring and severance charges of $1.3 million related
to headcount reduction and portfolio management consolidation activities at one of our affiliates. The charges
comprised of $1.0 million in severance and outplacement costs and $0.3 million in expenses related to the write
off of reimbursable product launch costs. In addition, the Company incurred $0.7 million of severance and
outplacement costs related to other headcount reduction activities. These one-time restructuring and severance
charges have been included within restructuring and severance expenses in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2011, the remaining liability related to severance and
outplacement costs totaled $1.1 million. These costs are expected to be paid or settled by March 31, 2012.

12. Related Party Transactions
BMO Related Party Transactions

Effective as of December 31, 2008, BMO owned 100% of the Company’s outstanding shares of Series B. In
May 2006, the Company acquired the rights to advise, distribute and administer the Insight Funds from Harris, a
subsidiary of BMO, as further discussed in Note 9. Harris and BMO are related parties of the Company.

Sub-advisory investment management fees, pursuant to its strategic partnership agreement with Harris,
which are netted against investment management fees in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations,
and distribution and administration fee expenses paid or payable to Harris, are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Sub-advisory investment management fees ............... $2,919  $4,039  $5,791
Distribution and administration expenses ................ 124 583 2,997
Total fees and expenses related to Harris .. ............... $3,043  $4,622  $8,788
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At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $0.2 million and $0.5 million were payable to Harris and its affiliates
related to sub-advisory investment management fees and distribution fees in accordance with the above
agreement. At December 31, 2009, $0.4 million was payable to Harris and its affiliates related to the money
market earn-out obligation in accordance with the above agreement. The final annual money market earnout
payment of $0.8 million, for the measurement period ended in May 2010, was made on August 18, 2010.

13. Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

On October 31, 2008 and December 31, 2008, the former parent company of the Company sold a total of
45,000 shares of Series B for net proceeds of $35.0 million. BMO, a related party as discussed further in Note 12,
owned 100% of the outstanding Series B. On August 2, 2010, the Company issued notice to exercise its call
option to redeem 9,783 shares of the Series B and BMO elected to convert the 9,783 shares of Series B, including
dividends that had been accrued but not yet declared, into 378,446 shares of common stock. The conversion of
the 9,783 shares of Series B preferred shares was effected on August 6, 2010. Accrued and undeclared preferred
stock dividends on the converted shares for the period July 1, 2010 through the conversion date were settled on
the conversion date through the issuance of 3,621 shares of the Company’s common stock.

As of December 31, 2011, 35,217 shares of our Series B, $1,000 stated value per share, were outstanding.
The Series B was entitled to one vote for each share of our common stock into which the Series B was then
convertible on all matters to be voted on by our shareholders, other than the election of directors; provided that
the Series B is entitled to vote as a separate class to elect a Series B director (and pursuant to the Investment
Agreement with BMO, so long as BMO continued to own beneficially not less than 10.0% of our common stock,
BMO was entitled to nominate another director for election by our common shareholders). On October 27, 2011,
the Company entered into an agreement with BMO to convert all 35,217 outstanding shares of Series B into
1,349,300 shares of common stock, at the original conversion rate. In connection with this agreement, the
Company made a dividend payment of $8.1 million, representing accrued dividends of $0.9 million plus the net
present value of dividend payments through October 31, 2014, the earliest date that the Company could have
called for BMO to redeem or convert, at BMO’s discretion, all of its preferred shares. As of October 31, 2011,
the Series B was no longer entitled to receive preferred dividends. Additionally, the Series B preferred
shareholders lost the right to elect a Series B director to the Company’s board of directors. As a result, the current
Series B director resigned from the Company’s board of directors effective October 31, 2011. Upon conversion,
BMO has agreed that to the extent its holdings of common stock exceed 24.0% of the outstanding common stock
solely by reason of the repurchase or redemption of common stock by the Company, the excess shares will be
subject to an irrevocable proxy in favor of the Company to be voted in the same proportion as the votes cast by
all shareholders other than BMO. The conversion was subject to regulatory approval. On January 6, 2012, 35,217
shares of the Series B converted to 1,349,300 shares of common stock related to the agreement entered into on
October 27, 2011 between the Company and BMO, the holders of all of the outstanding Series B shares. As a
result of the conversion, all of the preferred shares have been retired.

Liquidation Preference

Upon a liquidation of the Company, and after satisfaction of creditors and before any distribution is made to
holders of any junior stock, holders of Series B were entitled until conversion to receive a per share amount equal
to the greater of (i) the stated value then in effect, or (ii) the amount the holder of Series B was entitled to receive
if their Series B was converted into Company common stock at the conversion rate then in effect immediately
prior to such liquidation through the date of liquidation (the greater of (i) and (ii) is called the “liquidation
preference”). As of January 6, 2012, there are no shares of Series B outstanding.

F-25



Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

14. Retirement Savings Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) retirement plan (the “401(k) Plan”) covering all
employees who meet certain age and service requirements. Employees may contribute a percentage of their
eligible compensation into the 401(k) Plan, subject to certain limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code
(the “Code”). The Company matches employees’ contributions at a rate of 100% of employees’ contributions up
to the first 3.0% and 50.0% of the next 2.0% of the employees’ compensation contributed to the 401(k) Plan. The
Company’s matching contributions were $1.6 million, $1.1 million and $1.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

15. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has an Omnibus Incentive and Equity Plan (the “Plan”) under which officers, employees,
directors and consultants may be granted equity-based awards, including RSUs, stock options and unrestricted
shares of common stock. At December 31, 2011, 1,800,000 shares of common stock were authorized for issuance
under the Plan, of which 633,352 remain available for grant. Each RSU entitles the holder to one share of Virtus
common stock when the restriction expires. RSUs generally have a term of one to three years and may be either
time-vested or performance-contingent. Stock options generally vest over three years and have a contractual life
of ten years. Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares at the
date of grant. The fair value of each RSU is estimated using the intrinsic value method which is based on the fair
market value price on the date of grant. Shares that are issued upon exercise of employee stock options and
vesting of RSUs are newly issued shares and not issued from treasury stock. Prior to the spin-off, there were no
Virtus RSUs or stock options outstanding. Upon the spin-off, all outstanding PNX stock options and RSUs held
by Virtus employees were converted to Virtus stock options and RSUs in a manner intended to preserve the
relative value of such awards. In total, 114,153 RSUs and 180,923 stock options were issued upon conversion.

The Company estimated the grant-date fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model with the following assumptions:

2011 2010
Expected dividend yield ............. .. .. ... ... .. ... 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility ........... ... .. 47.2% 54.0%
Risk-free interestrate ............... ... ... ... 24% -29%  1.9% -3.0%
Expectedlife ....... .. . i 6.5 years 6.5 years

Expected dividend yield—The Company has never declared or paid dividends on its common stock. We
currently do not have any plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock.

Expected volatility—Volatility is a measure of the amount by which a financial variable such as a share
price has fluctuated (historical volatility) or is expected to fluctuate (expected volatility) during a period. The
Company based its estimated volatility on the historical volatility of a peer group of publically traded companies,
which includes companies that are in the same industry or are competitors, because of the Company’s limited
history as an independent public company.

Risk-free interest rate—This is the average U.S. Treasury rate at the time of grant having a term that most
closely approximates the expected term of the option.

Expected life—This is the period of time that the option grants are expected to remain outstanding. The
Company calculates the expected life of the options using the “simplified method” as prescribed under the
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provisions of ASC 718. The simplified method was used because sufficient historical exercise data necessary for
the Company to provide a reasonable basis to estimate the expected life does not exist. The Company generally

uses the midpoint between the end of the vesting period and the contractual life of the grant to estimate option
exercise timing. The simplified method was applied for all options granted during 2010 and 2011.

Stock-based compensation expense is summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Stock-based compensation €Xpense . .................... $5,625  $3.894  $3,521

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company granted 88,030 performance contingent RSUs.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, total stock-based compensation expense includes $1.3 million for
these performance contingent RSUs as part of annual and long-term incentive compensation plans. As of
December 31, 2011, unamortized stock-based compensation expense for performance contingent RSUs was $3.0
million. No performance contingent awards were granted for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

As of December 31, 2011, unamortized stock-based compensation expense for outstanding RSUs and stock
options was $7.1 million and $0.5 million, respectively, with weighted average remaining amortization periods of
0.9 years and 0.5 years, respectively. The Company did not capitalize any stock-based compensation expenses
during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is summarized as follows:

Weighted
Number Average
of shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31,2010 . ................ 386,190 $20.83
Granted ... ..o 10,454 $55.30
Exercised . ... (33,357) $40.35
Forfeited ......... ... .. . .. . (10,345) $13.85
Outstanding at December 31,2011 ................. 352,942 $20.21
Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2011 ........ 119,741 $35.54
Options expected to vest at December 31,2011 ....... 222,018 $12.44

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 was $27.56, $12.14 and $5.71, respectively. The weighted-average remaining contractual term for
options outstanding at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 was 6.4 and 7.0 years, respectively. The
weighted-average remaining contractual term for options vested and exercisable at December 31, 2011 was 4.3
years. The weighted-average remaining contractual term for options expected to vest at December 31, 2011 was
7.5 years. At December 31, 2011, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding, options vested and
exercisable, and options expected to vest was $19.7 million, $4.8 million, and $14.1 million, respectively. The
total grant-date fair value of options vested during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was less
than $0.1 million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0.9 million and $0.1 million, respectively. No stock options
were exercised for the year ended December 31, 2009. Cash received from stock option exercises were $1.3
million and $0.1 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively. No cash was received from stock option exercises in
20009.
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RSU activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 is summarized as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number Grant Date
of shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31,2010 .................. 460,633 $13.39
Granted . ... ... 178,661 $52.28
Forfeited ........ .. ... . . .. (13,609) $34.52
Settled . ... (48,981) $21.83
Outstanding at December 31,2011 .................. 576,704 $24.16

The grant-date intrinsic value of RSUs granted during the year ended December 31, 2011 was $7.8 million.
At December 31, 2011, outstanding RSUs have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.9 years. The
weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSUs granted during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009 was $52.28, $20.21 and $9.54 per share, respectively. The total fair value of RSUs vested during the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $2.9 million, $1.5 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Cash
used for employee withholding tax payments related to net share settlement upon vesting of RSUs were $0.7
million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company offers an employee stock purchase plan that allows employees to purchase shares of common
stock on the open market at market price through after-tax payroll deductions. The initial transaction fees are
paid for by the Company and shares of common stock are purchased on a quarterly basis. The Company does not
reserve shares for this plan or discount the purchase price of the shares.

16. Earnings Per Share
The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

($ in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net Income (LOSS) . .....oouinen. $145420 $9.642 $ (6,484)
Preferred stockholder dividends ................... (9,482) (3,289) (3,760)
Allocation of earnings to preferred stockholders ... ... (24,260) (1,144) —
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common

Stockholders . ........... ... ... . ... ... ... .... $111,678  $5,209  $(10,244)
Shares:
Basic: Weighted-average number of shares

outstanding . . .. ... 6,211 6,014 5,812
Plus: Incremental shares from assumed conversion of

dilutive instruments . ................ .. 623 423 —
Diluted: Weighted-average number of shares

outstanding . .. ... 6,834 6,437 5,812
Earnings (loss) per share—basic ................... $ 1798 $ 087 $ (1.76)
Earnings (loss) per share—diluted ................. $ 1634 $ 081 $ (1.76)

For the year ended December 31, 2011, there were no non-participating securities (stock options) excluded
from the above computations of weighted-average shares for diluted earnings per share. For the year ended
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December 31, 2010, non-participating securities (stock options) representing 150,738 shares of common stock
were excluded from the above computations of weighted-average shares for diluted earnings per share due to the
antidilutive effect of the securities’ exercise prices as compared to the average market price of the common
shares during the period. For the year ended December 31, 2009, non-participating securities (RSUs and stock
options), which are summarized in Note 15, were excluded from the above computations of weighted-average
shares for diluted loss per share due to the net loss for the period.

17. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents in bank deposits
with financial institutions. Cash deposits at these financial institutions may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insurance limits.

The concentration of credit risk with respect to advisory fees receivable is generally limited due to the short
payment terms extended to clients by the Company. The following funds provided 10 percent or more of the total
revenue of the Company:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
($ in thousands)
Virtus Multi-Sector Short Term Bond Fund
Investment management, administration and transfer
agentfees ......... .. $24.445  $14,506
Percent of total revenue . ....................... 14% 10% *
DNP Select Income Fund Inc.
Investment management, administration and transfer
agentfees ............. . ... *  $14,959 $13,787
Percent of total revenue . ....................... * 10% 12%

* Less than 10 percent of total revenue of the Company.
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18. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

2011
Fourth Third Second First
(8 in thousands, except share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues .. ... $ 56,172  $55,457  $48,902  $44,121
Operating Income (Loss) .. .............coooo... 8,194 (2,193) 3,459 4,443
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common
Stockholders ............... ... ... . . ... .. ... 109,555 (3,483) 2,043 2,979
Earnings (Loss) per share—Basic ................. $ 1760 $ (0.56) $ 033 $ 048
Earnings (Loss) per share—Diluted ............... $ 1635 $ (0.56) $ 030 $ 043
2010
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
REVENUES . . oot $40,739 $35,582  $34,788  $33,447
Operating Income . ............ ... ... ... ..... 4,450 2,897 1,217 707
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common
Stockholders ............... ... ... .. ... .. ... 3,071 2,406 (487) 124
Earnings (Loss) per share—Basic ................. $ 049 $ 039 $ (0.08) $ 0.02
Earnings (Loss) per share—Diluted ............... $ 045 $ 037 $ (0.08) $ 0.02
2010
First Quarter
As Previously First Quarter
Reported Adjustment (1) As Revised
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common
Stockholders ........................ $ 160 $ (36) $124
Earnings (Loss) per share—Basic and
Diluted ........... ... ... ... ........ $0.03 $(0.01) $0.02

(1) Adjustment relates to the hypothetical allocation of earnings to preferred stockholders in the determination
of net income attributable to common stockholders as required under the two class method of calculating

earnings per share.

In preparing the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the three months ended
September 30, 2010, the Company determined that for the first quarter of 2010 previously reported basic and
diluted earnings per share were overstated due to the omission of the hypothetical allocation of earnings to
preferred stockholders in the determination of net income attributable to common stockholders as required under
the two class method of calculating earnings per common share. Management concluded, based on an analysis of
quantitative and qualitative factors that the resulting effect of this overstatement of earnings per share was not
material to the reporting period affected and, therefore, amendment of previously filed reports with the Securities
and Exchange Commission was not required.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 302
I, George R. Aylward, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2012

/s/  GEORGE R. AYLWARD

George R. Aylward
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 302
I, Michael A. Angerthal, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2012

/S/ MICHAEL A. ANGERTHAL

Michael A. Angerthal
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF CEO AND CFO PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc. (the “Company”)
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of his
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 1, 2012

/s/  GEORGE R. AYLWARD

GEORGE R. AYLWARD
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
( Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ MICHAEL A. ANGERTHAL
Michael A. Angerthal
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Supplemental Financial Information

Schedule of Non-GAAP information
(Dollars in thousands)

The company reports its financial results on a Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

basis; however management believes that evaluating the company’s ongoing operating results may be
enhanced if investors have additional non-GAAP financial measures. Management reviews non-GAAP
financial measures to assess ongoing operations and considers them only to be additional metrics for
both management and investors to consider the company’s financial performance over time, as noted in
the footnotes below. Management does not advocate that investors consider such non-GAAP financial
measures in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial results prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Reconciliation of Revenues, Operating Expenses and
Operating Income on a GAAP Basis to Revenues,
Operating Expenses and Operating Income, as Adjusted

Twelve Months Ended

Dec 31, 2011 Dec 31, 2010
Revenues, GAAP basis $204,652 $144,556
Less:

Distribution and administration expenses 50,563 33,205
Newfleet transition related subadvisory fees! (1,057) -
Revenues, as adjusted’ $155,146 $111,351
Operating Expenses, GAAP Basis $190,749 $135,285

Less:
Distribution and administration expenses 50,563 33,205
Depreciation and amortization 5,865 6,929
Stock-based compensation 4926 3,894
Restructuring and severance charges 2,008 1,635
Newfleet transition related operating expenses’ 5,152 -
Closed-end fund launch costs * 10,767 -
Operating Expenses, as adjusted’ $111,468 $89,622
Operating Income, as adjusted® $43,678 $21,729
Operating margin, GAAP basis 7% 6%
Operating margin, as adjusted® 28% 20%

(continued)



Supplemental Financial Information  (continueq)

Quarterly Reconciliation Three Months Ended

Dec 31,2011 Sep 30, 2011 June 30, 2011 Mar 31, 2011

Revenues, GAAP basis $56,172 $55,457 $48,902 $44,121

Less:

Distribution and administration expenses 13,482 13,637 12,367 11,077
Newfleet transition related subadvisory fees! - (37) (1,020) -

Revenues, as adjusted’ $42,690 $41,857 $37,555 $33,044

Operating Expenses, GAAP Basis $47,978 $57,650 $45,443 $39,678

Less:

Distribution and administration expenses 13,482 13,637 12,367 11,077
Depreciation and amortization 1,403 1,431 1,496 1,535
Stock-based compensation 1,336 1,162 1,587 841
Restructuring and severance charges 1,260 7 594 147

Newfleet transition related operating expenses’ 1,381 1,580 2,191 -
Closed-end fund launch costs* - 10,767 - -

Operating Expenses, as adjusted’ $29,116 $29,066 $27,208 $26,078

Operating Income, as adjusted® $13,574 $12,791 $10,347 $6,966

Operating margin, GAAP basis 15% (4)% 7% 10%
Operating margin, as adjusted® 32% 31% 28% 21%

1

o

Reflects 30 days of fees payable under the termination provisions of the subadvisory agreement with a former unaffiliated subadvisor of the
Multi-Sector assets. These subadvisory fees ended effective July 2, 2011. The company records its management fees net of fees paid to unaffiliated
subadvisors.

Revenues, as adjusted, is a non-GAAP financial measure calculated by netting distribution and administration expenses from GAAP revenues.
Management believes, Revenues, as adjusted, provides useful information to investors because distribution and administration expenses are costs
that are generally passed directly through to external parties. For the three months ended September 30, 2011, Virtus incurred $23.3 million of
distribution and administration expenses that included $9.6 million of structuring fees related to the closed-end fund launch. For the purposes
of calculating Revenues, as adjusted for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011,
structuring fees paid to third party distributors for the closed-end fund launch are excluded as they do not have a related revenue offset.

For the twelve months ended Dec. 31, 2011, Newfleet transition-related operating expenses consist of compensation expenses of $4.8 million and
certain legal and professional fees of $0.4 million incurred in conjunction with the addition of the Newfleet Multi-Sector team. Compensation
expenses include $0.7 million of stock-based compensation.

Closed-end fund launch costs are comprised of structuring fees of $9.6 million payable to underwriters and sales-based incentive compensation of
$1.2 million.

Operating expenses, as adjusted, is a non-GAAP financial measure that management believes provides investors with additional information
because of the nature of the specific excluded operating expenses. Specifically, management adds back amortization attributable to acquisition-
related intangible assets as this may be useful to an investor to consider our operating results with the results of other asset management firms
that have not engaged in significant acquisitions. In addition, we add back restructuring and severance charges as we believe that operating
expenses exclusive of these costs will aid comparability of the information to prior reporting periods. We believe that because of the variety of
equity awards used by companies and the varying methodologies for determining stock-based compensation expense, excluding stock-based
compensation enhances the ability of management and investors to compare financial results over periods. Distribution and administrative
expenses are excluded for the reason set forth above.

Operating income, as adjusted, and operating margin, as adjusted, are calculated using the basis of revenues, as adjusted, and operating
expenses, as adjusted, as described above.

In the above release, we define “organic growth rate” as our annualized net sales divided by beginning long-term open-end mutual fund assets under
management.

The above measures should not be considered as substitutes for any measures derived in accordance with GAAP and may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures of other companies. Exclusion of items in our non-GAAP presentation should not be considered as an inference that these
items are unusual, infrequent or non-recurring.



Investment Performance

For the period ending December 31, 2011, 83%, 84% and 87% of assets eligible for Morningstar
rating had 5- or 4-star load-waived ratings for the 3-, 5-, and 10-year periods, respectively,
based on risk adjusted returns, of a total of 30, 28, and 22 funds, respectively. Had sales load
been included, results would be lower. For each fund with at least a three-year history,
Morningstar calculates a Morningstar Rating™ based on a Morningstar Risk-Adjusted Return
measure that accounts for variation in a fund’s monthly performance (including the affect of
sales charges, loads, and redemption fees), placing more emphasis on downward variation and
rewarding consistent performance. The top 10% of funds in each category receive 5 stars; the
next 22.5% receive 4 stars; the next 35% receive 3 stars; the next 22.5% receive 2 stars; and
the bottom 10% receive 1 star. The Overall Morningstar Rating™ for a fund is derived from a
weighted average of performance figures associated with its 3-, 5- and 10-year (if applicable)
Morningstar Rating metrics. Different share classes bear different fees and expenses, which
affect performance. Multi-Sector Short Term Bond Fund Morningstar rating as of 2/29/12
(Stars/# of Funds in Short Term Bond Category) Class A Overall: 5/352; 3 yr: 5/352; 5 yr: 5/325;
10 yr: 5/185. Load Waived Overall: 5/352; 3 yr: 5/352; 5 yr: 5/325; 10 yr: 5/185. Class | Overall:
5/352; 3 yr: 5/352; 5 yr: 5/325; 10 yr: 5/185. Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund Morningstar
rating as of 2/29/12 (Stars/# of Funds in Diversified Emerging Markets Category) Class A
Overall: 4/353; 3 yr: 3/353; 5 yr: 5/242; 10 yr: 4/148. Load Waived Overall: 5/353; 3 yr: 4/353;

5 yr 5/242; 10 yr: 5/148. Class | Overall: 5/353; 3 yr: 4/353; 5 yr: 5/242; 10 yr: 5/148.

Lipper, a wholly owned subsidiary of Reuters, provides independent insight on global collective
investments including mutual funds, retirement funds, hedge funds, fund fees and expenses to
the asset management and media communities. Lipper ranks the performance of mutual funds
within a classification of funds that have similar investment objectives. Rankings are historical
with capital gains and dividends reinvested and do not include the effect of loads. Funds not
ranked by Lipper are not included in the analysis. If sales loads were reflected, the rankings
shown would be lower. If an expense waiver was in effect, it may have had a material effect on
the total return or yield for the period. Lipper data does not constitute investment advice or an
offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any security. Small-Cap Sustainable Growth
Lipper Ranking as of 12/31/11 (Small Cap Growth Category) Class A: 1 yr percentile

rank: 1 (2/497 funds); 5 yr percentile rank: 30 (112/378 funds); 10 yr percentile rank: NA.
Class | Overall: 1 yr percentile rank: 1 (1/497 funds); 5 yr percentile rank: 28 (107/378 funds);
10 yr percentile rank: NA.

Performance data quoted represents past results. Past performance is no guarantee of future
results and current performance may be higher or lower than the performance shown.
Investment return and principal value will fluctuate so your shares, when redeemed, may be
worth more or less than their original cost. Please visit Virtus.com for performance data
current to the most recent month-end. Please carefully consider the Fund’s investment
objectives, risks, charges and expenses before investing. For this and other information
about any Virtus mutual fund, call 1-800-243-4361 or visit Virtus.com for a prospectus.

Read it carefully before you invest or send money. Distributed by VP Distributors, LLC,
member FINRA and subsidiary of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.











